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RA. 

JOSEPH R.ATTERBURY 

JACK A. GOLDBERGER 

JASON S.WEISS 
- Road Ceo 'Hied Co ififinal lal Mot my 
/ Member of New lersey R norm:. Bars 

July 21, 2008 

AUSA 
U.S. Department of Justice 
United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 
500 South Australian Avenue, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

SENT A FA IMILE 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Ms. 

Enclosed please find a Motion For Return of Property that I filed in Mr. Epstein's state case. Out 
of abundance of caution, I am providing you a copy of the motion. 

Ple advise me as to what your position is on this matter. 

dberger 

G/na 
nclosure 

One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 250 Australian Avenue South West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
• 

p 561.659.8300 f 561.835.8691 wwwagwpa.com 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, 
IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA CASE NO.: 2006CF009454AXX 
DIVISON: "W" 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR RETURN OF PROPERTY 

COMES NOW the Defendant, JEFFREY EPSTEIN, by and through his undersigned 

attorney, and moves this Honorable Court to enter an Order for return of property seized on 

October 20, 2005 during execution of a search warrant at the Defendant's residence. In support 

thereof the Defendant states as follows: 

1. On October 20, 2005, the Palm Beach Police Department executed a search warrant at 

the Defendant's residence. During the execution of the warrant, numerous items of the 

Defendant's personal property were seized and impounded by the Palm Beach Police 

Department. A copy of the search warrant return is attached to this motion (Exhibit A). 

2. On June 30, 2008, the criminal charges arising from the search warrant were resolved 

through a negotiated plea agreement. 

3. No legal justification exists for the continued impoundment of the Defendant's 

personal property. The Defendant is entitled to the return of all personal property listed in 

Exhibit A. 

WHEREFORE, the Defendant, JEFFREY EPSTEIN, respectfully requests this 

Honorable Court to enter an Order for the return of his personal property. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Motion was sent via 

FAX and U.S. MAIL to Lanna Belohlavek, Esq., Assistant State Attorney, 401 North Dixie 

Highway, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401, this 2.\ a day of July, 2008. 

ATTERBURY, GOLDBERGER & WEISS, P.A. 
250 ustralian Avenue South, Suite 1400 
W Palm Beac Florida 33401 
(56 65;-8300 

J BERGER, ESQUIRE 
Flo Bar Number 262013 
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LEWIS TE IN PL 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

July 21, 2008 

Copy via facsimile 

NM Esq. 
Office of the United States Attorney 
500 S. Australian Avenue 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Ms. 

Thank you for your letter of July 17, 2008. In it, you ask whether Mr. Epstein "intends to fully 
abide by the Non-Prosecution Agreement." The answer is yes. 

We confirm as you state in your letter that the Agreement requires that "the federal Grand Jury 
investigation will remain suspended, and all pending federal Grand Jury subpoenas will be held 
in abeyance unless and until [Mr. Epstein] violates any term of [the Non-Prosecution 
Agreement]." We also confirm that under the Agreement, "prosecution in this District for these 
offenses shall be deferred in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, provided that Epstein 
abides by the , . . conditions and the requirements of th[e] Agreement." 

As you know, there la no 'provision in the Agreement referring in any way to Section 3509(k). 
By that statute, Congress imposed a mandatory obligation on federal district courts to stay 
certain civil cases. Its operation is not subject to the control or discretion of any party. Whether 
Title 18, United States Code, Section 3509(k) applies to this civil litigation is a question of law 
for resolution by Judge Marra. Accordingly, we are abiding by our ethical obligation to advise 
the Court of its statutory mandate under Section 3509(k). 

Finally, thank you for notifying me that our motion to quash technically remains outstanding. 
We had previously notified. the Court that the parties did not wish to argue the issue. I agree that 
the Agreement requires its withdrawal and we will file a formal notice withdrawing it this week. 

Please do not hesitate to call me if you wish further clarification of our position or to discuss this 
matter in any way. Until then, I remain, 

Very truly yours, 

Michael R. 'rein 

cc: _lick Goldberge1.1:sLi 
Ro Black Ls . 

3069 GRAND AVENUE • SUITE 340 • COCONUT GROVE, FLORIDA 33133 

TELEPHONE (305) 442.1101 • FACSIMILE (305) 442-6744 • VAVW.LEWISTEIN.COM 
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LEWIS TE IN PL 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

July 21, 2008 

Copy yin facsimile 

Mae Esq. 
Office of the United States Attorney 
500 S. Australian Avenue 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Ms. 

Thank you for your letter of July 17, 2008. In it, you ask whether Mr. Epstein "intends to fully 
abide by the Non-Prosecution Agreement." The answer is yes. 

We confirm as you state in your letter that the Agreement requires that "the federal Grand Jury 
investigation will remain suspended, and all pending federal Grand Jury subpoenas will be held 
in abeyance unless and until [Mr. Epstein] violates any term of [the Non-Prosecution 
Agreement]." We also confirm that under the Agreement, "prosecution in this District for these 
offenses shall be deferred in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, provided that Epstein 
abides by the . . . conditions and the requirements of th[e] Agreement." 

As you know, there is no provision in the Agreement referring in any way to Section 3509(k). 
By that statute, Congress imposed a mandatory obligation on federal district courts to stay 
certain civil cases. Its operation is not subject to the control or discretion of any party. Whether 
Title 18, United States Code, Section 3509(k) applies to this civil litigation is a question of law 
for resolution by Judge Marra. Accordingly, we are abiding by our ethical obligation to advise 
the Court of its statutory mandate under Section 3509(k). 

Finally, thank you for notifying me that our motion to quash technically remains outstanding. 
We had previously notified the Court that the parties did not wish to argue the issue. I agree that 
the Agreement requires its withdrawal and we will file a formal notice withdrawing it this week. 

Please do not hesitate to call me if you wish further clarification of our position or to discuss this 
matter in any way. Until then, I remain, 

Very truly yours, 

• 

Michael R. Tein 

• 

cc: Jack Goldberger, Esq. 
• Roy Black, Esq. 

Alex Acosta, Esq. 

3059 GRAND AVENUE • SUITE 340 • COCONUT GROVE, FLORIDA 33133 

TELEPHONE (305) 442-1101 • FACSIMILE (305) 442-6744 • WWW.LEW1STEIN.COM 
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IN RE: 
INVESTIGATION OF 
JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

NON-PROSECUTION AGREEMENT 

IT APPEARING that the City of Palm Beach Police Department and the State 
Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County (hereinafter, 
the "State Attorney's Office") have conducted an investigation into the conduct of Jeffrey 
Epstein (hereinafter "Epstein"); 

IT APPEARING that the State Attorney's Office has charged Epstein by indictment 
with solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Florida Statutes Section 796.07; 

IT APPEARING that the United States Attorney's Office and the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation have conducted their own investigation into Epstein's background and any 
offenses that may have been committed by Epstein against the United States from in or 
around 2001 through in or around September 2007, including: 

(1) knowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknown to 
commit an offense against the United States, that is, to use a facility or means 
of interstate or foreign commerce to knowingly persuade, induce, or entice 
minor females to engage in prostitution, in violation of Title 18, United States 
Code, Section 2422(b); all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 
371; 

(2) knowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknown to travel 
in interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual conduct, as 

defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with minor females, in violation of Title 18, 
United States Code, Section 2423(b); all in violation of Title 18, United States 
Code, Section 2423(e); 

(3) using a facility or means of interstate or foreign commerce to knowingly 
persuade, induce, or entice minor females to engage in prostitution; in 
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2; 

(4) traveling in interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual 
conduct, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with minor females; in violation 
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of Title I8, United States Code, Section 2423(b); and 

(5) knowingly, in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, recruiting, 
enticing, and obtaining by any means a person, knowing that the person had 
not attained the age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a 
commercial sex act as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 159 I (cX I); in violation of Title 
18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)(1) and 2; and 

IT APPEARING that Epstein seeks to resolve globally his state and federal criminal 
liability and Epstein understands and acknowledges that, in exchange for the benefits 
provided by this agreement, he agrees to comply with its terms, including undertaking certain 
actions with the State Attorney's Office; 

IT APPEARING, after an investigation of the offenses and Epstein's background by 
both State and Federal law enforcement agencies, and after due consultation with the State 
Attorney's Office, that the interests of the United States, the State of Florida, and the 
Defendant will be served by the following procedure; 

THEREFORE, on the authority of R. Alexander Acosta, United States Attorney for 
the Southern District of Florida, prosecution in this District for these offenses shall be
deferred in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, provided that Epstein abides by the 
following conditions and the requirements of this Agreement set forth below. 

If the United States Attorney should determine, based on reliable evidence, that, 
during the period of the Agreement, Epstein willfully violated any of the conditions of this 
Agreement, then the United States Attorney may, within ninety (90) days following the 
expiration of the term of home confinement discussed below, provide Epstein with timely 
notice specifying the condition(s) of the Agreement that he has violated, and shall initiate its 
prosecution on any offense within sixty (60) days' of giving notice of the violation. Any 
notice provided to Epstein pursuant to this paragraph shall be provided within 60 days of the 
United States learning of facts which may provide a basis for a determination of a breach of 
the Agreement. 

After timely fulfilling all the terms and conditions of the Agreement, no prosecution 
for the offenses set out on pages 1 and 2 of this Agreement, nor any other offenses that have 
been the subject of the joint investigation by the Federal Bureau of Investigation and the 
United States Attorney's Office, nor any offenses that arose from the Federal Grand Jury 
investigation will be instituted in this District, and the charges against Epstein if any, will be 
dismissed. 
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Terms of the Agreement: 

1. Epstein shall plead guilty (not nob contendere) to the Indictment as 
currently pending against him in the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for 
Palm Beach County (Case No. 2006-0f-009495/UO:3(MB) charging 
one (1) count of solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Fl. Stat, § 
796.07. In addition, Epstein shall plead guilty to an Information filed 
by the State Attorney's Office charging Epstein with an offense that 
requires him to register as a sex offender, that is, the solicitation of 
minors to engage in prostitution, in violation of Florida Statutes Section 
796.03; 

2. Epstein shall make a binding recommendation that the Court impose a 
thirty (30) month sentence to be divided as follows: 

(a) 

(b) 

Epstein shall be sentenced to consecutive terms of twelve (12) 
months and six (6) months in county jail for all charges, without 
any opportunity for withholding adjudication or sentencing, and 
without probation or community control in lieu of 
imprisonment; and 

Epstein shall be sentenced to a term of twelve (12) months of 
community control consecutive to his two terms in county jail 
as described in Term 2(a), supra. 

3. This agreement is contingent upon a Judge of the 15th Judicial Circuit 
accepting and executing the sentence agreed upon between the State 
Attorney's Office and Epstein, the details of which are set forth in this 
agreement. 

4. The terms contained in paragraphs 1 and 2, supra, do not foreclose 
Epstein and the State Attorney's Office from agreeing to recommend 
any additional charge(s) or any additional term(s) of probation and/or 
incarceration. 

5. Epstein shall waive all challenges to the Information filed by the State 
Attorney's Office and shall waive the right to appeal his conviction and 
sentence, except a sentence that exceeds what is set forth in paragraph 
(2), supra. 

6. Epstein shall provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all 
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proposed agreements with the State Attorney's Office prior to entering 
into those agreements. 

7. The United States shall provide Epstein's attorneys with a list of 
individuals whom it has identified as victims, as defined in 18 U.S.C. 
§ 2255, after Epstein has signed this agreement and been sentenced. 
Upon the execution of this agreement, the United States, in consultation 
with and subject to the good faith approval of Epstein's counsel, shall 
select an attorney representative for these persons, who shall be paid for 
by Epstein. Epstein's counsel may contact the identified individuals 
through that representative. 

8. If any of the individuals referred to in paragraph (7), supra, elects to 
file suit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, Epstein will not contest the 
jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Southern District 
of Florida over his person and/or the subject matter, and Epstein waives 
his right to contest liability and also waives his right to contest damages 
up to an amount as agreed to between the identified individual and 
Epstein, so long as the identified individual elects to proceed 
exclusively under 18 U.S.C. § 2255, and agrees to waive any other 
claim for damages, whether pursuant to state, federal, or common law. 
Notwithstanding this waiver, as to those individuals whose names 
appear on the list provided by the United States, Epstein's signature on 
this agreement, his waivers and failures to contest liability and such 
damages in any suit are not to be construed as an admission of any 
criminal or civil liability. 

9. Epstein's signature on this agreement also is not to be construed as an 
admission of civil or criminal liability or a waiver of any jurisdictional 
or other defense as to any person whose name does not appear on the 
list provided by the United States. 

10. Except as to those individuals who elect to proceed exclusively under 
18 U.S.C. § 2255, as set forth in paragraph (8), supra, neither Epstein's 
signature on this agreement, nor its terms, nor any resulting waivers or 
settlements by Epstein are to be construed as admissions or evidence of 
civil or criminal liability or a waiver of any jurisdictional or other 
defense as to any person, whether or not her name appears on the list 
provided by the United States. 

11. Epstein shall use his best efforts to enter his guilty plea and be 
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sentenced not later than October 26, 2007. The United States has no 
objection to Epstein self-reporting to begin serving his sentence not 
later than January 4, 2008. 

12. Epstein agrees that he will not be afforded any benefits with respect to 
gain time, other than the rights, opportunities, and benefits as any other 
inmate, including but not limited to, eligibility for gain time credit 
based on standard rules and regulations that apply in the State of 
Florida. At the United States' request, Epstein agrees to provide an 
accounting of the gain time he earned during his period of 
incarceration. 

13. The parties anticipate that this agreement will not be made part of any 
public record. If the United States receives a Freedom of Information 
Act request or any compulsory process commanding the disclosure of 
the agreement, it will provide notice to Epstein before making that 
disclosure. 

Epstein understands that the United States Attorney has no authority to require the 
State Attorney's Office to abide by any terms of this agreement. Epstein understands that 
it is his obligation to undertake discussions with the State Attorney's Office and to use his 
best efforts to ensure compliance with these procedures, which compliance will be necessary 
to satisfy the United States' interest. Epstein also understands that it is his obligation to use 
his best efforts to convince the Judge of the 15th Judicial Circuit to accept Epstein's binding 
recommendation regarding the sentence to be imposed, and understands that the failure to 
do so will be a breach of the agreement. 

In consideration of Epstein's agreement to plead guilty and to provide compensation 
in the manner described above, if Epstein successfully fulfills all of the terms and conditions 
of this agreement, the United States also agrees that it will not institute any criminal ch es 

a to •o- irators of E stein including but not limited to IN 
or . Further, upon execution o t rs 

agreement and a plea agreement with the State Attorney's Office, the federal Grand Jury 
investigation will be suspended, and all pending federal Grand Jury subpoenas will be held 
in abeyance unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement. The 
defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending motion to intervene and to quash certain 
grand jury subpoenas. Both parties agree to maintain their evidence, specifically evidence 
requested by or directly related to the grand jury subpoenas that have been issued, and 
including certain computer equipment, inviolate until all of the terms of this agreement have 
been satisfied. Upon the successful completion of the terms of this agreement, all 
outstanding grand jury subpoenas shall be deemed withdrawn. 
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By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that each of these terms is 
material to this agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach 
of any one of these conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement 
and to investigate and prosecute Epstein and any other individual or entity for any and all 
federal offenses. 

By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that he is aware of the fact that 
the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all criminal 
prosccutions the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial. Epstein further 
is aware that Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides that the Court 
may dismiss an indictment, information, or complaint for unnecessary delay in presenting 
a charge to the Grand Jury, filing an information, or in bringing a defendant to trial. Epstein 
hereby requests that the United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida defer such 
prosecution. Epstein agrees and consents that any delay from the date of this Agreement to 
the date of initiation of prosecution, as provided for in the terms expressed herein, shall be 
deemed to be a necessary delay at his own request, and he hereby waives any defense to such 
prosecution on the ground that such delay operated to deny him rights under Rule 48(b) of 
the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the 
United States to a speedy trial or to bar the prosecution by reason of the running of the statute 
of limitations for a period of months equal to the period between the signing of this 
agreement and the breach of this agreement as to those offenses that were the subject of the 
grand jury's investigation. Epstein further asserts and certifies that he understands that the 
Fifth Amendment and Rule 7(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provide that all 
felonies must be charged in an indictment presented to a grand jury. Epstein hereby agrees 
and consents that, if a prosecution against him is instituted for any offense that was the 
subject of the grand jury's investigation, it may be by way of an Information signed and filed 
by the United States Attorney, and hereby waives his right to be indicted by a grand jury as 
to any such offense. 

/II 

/I/ 

/II 
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By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has been read 
and explained to him Epstein hereby states that he understands the conditions of this Non-
Prosecution Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Dated:  By; 

Dated:  iti/9 —

Dated: 

Dated: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

LILLY ANN SANCHBZ, ESQ. 
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN 
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By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has been read 
and explained to him. Epstein hereby states that he understands the conditions of this Non-
Prosecution Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Dated:  By: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

Dated: 

Dated:  7/9-4,/ 0 7 

Dated: 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

9".FCOUR ESQ. 
OUNSEL TO JEFFR .Y EPSTEIN 

LILLY ANN SANCHEZ, ESQ. 
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN 
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By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has been read 

and explained to him. Epstein hereby states that he understands the conditions of this Non-

Prosecution Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Dated:  By: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

Dated: 
JEN/REY EPSTEIN 

Dated: 
GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

Dated: q -j cit,t/P —
, ESQ. 

ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN 
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IN RE: 

INVESTIGATION OF 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

ADDENDUM TO THE NON-PROSECUTION AGREEMENT 

IT APPEARING that the parties seek to clarify certain provisions of page 4, paragraph 7 
of the Non-Prosecution Agreement (hereinafter "paragraph 7"), that agreement Is modified as 
follows: 

7A. The United States has the right to assign to an independent third-party the responsibility 
for consulting with and, subject to the good faith approval of Epstein's counsel, selecting 
the attorney representative for the individuals identified under the Agreement. If the 
United States elects to assign this responsibility to an independent third-party, both the 
United States and Epstein retain the right to make good faith objections to the attorney 
representative suggested by the independent third-party prior to the final designation of 
the attorney representative. 

713. The parties will Jointly prepare a short written submission to the independent third-party 
regarding the role of the attorney representative and regarding Epstein's Agreement to 
pay such attorney representative his or her regular customary hourly rate for representing 
such victims subject to the provisions of paragraph C, infra. 

7C. Pursuant to additional paragraph 7A, Epstein has agreed to pay the fees of the attorney 
representative selected by the independent third party. This provision, however, shall not 
obligate Epstein to pay the fees and costs of contested litigation filed against him. Thus, 
if after consideration of potential settlements, an attorney representative elects to file a 
contested lawsuit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. s 2255 or elects to pursue any other contested 
remedy, the paragraph 7 obligation of the Agreement to pay the costs of the attorney 
representative, as opposed to any statutory or other obligations to pay reasonable 
attorneys fees and costs such as those contained in s 2255 to bear the costs of the attorney 
representative, shall cease. 
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By signing this Addendum, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has been read and 
explained to him. Epstein hereby states that he understands the clarifications to the Non-
Prosecution Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Dated:  By: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

Dated: 
JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

Dated: 
GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
COUNSEL 'II) JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

Dated: if:LaIM 
LILLY A ANCHEZ, ES 
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN 
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By signing this Addendum, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has been read and 
explained to him. Epstein hereby states that he understands the clarifications to the Non-
Prosecution Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Dated: 

Dated: 

Dated 

Dated: 

By: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

ERALD LEFCO RT ESQ. 
COUNSEL TO JEFFR Y EPSTEIN 

LILLY ANN SANCHF,Z, ESQ. 
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN 
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Sincerely, 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
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With this in mind, I have considered defense counsel arguments regarding the Section 2255 
portions of the Agreement. As I previously observed, our intent has been to place the victims in the 
same position as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no less. 
From our meeting, it appears that the defense agrees that this was the intent. During the course of 
negotiations that intent was reduced to writing in Paragraphs 7 and 8, which as I wrote previously, 
appear far from simple to understand. 1 would thus propose that we solve our disagreements over 
interpretations by saying precisely what we mean, in a simple fashion. I would replace Paragraphs 7 
and 8 with the following language: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense enumerated in 
Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, wilt have the same rights to proceed under 
Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein been tried federally and convicted of an 
enumerated offense, For purposes of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall 
provide Mr. Epstein's attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 
Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial authority 
interpreting this provision, including any authority determining which evidentiary burdens if 
any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is the intent of the parties to place these 
identified victims in the same position as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been 
convicted at trial. No more; no less." 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

R ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITEDSTATES ATTORNEY 

DELIVERY BY FACSIMILE
Lilly Ann Sanchez 
Fowler White Burnett, PA 
1395 Brickell Aye, le Floor 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Ms. Sanchez: 

99 NE (Street 
Main& FL 13111 
(105)9614100 Telephone 
005)1104444 - Facsimile 

December 19, 2007 

I write to follow up on the December le meeting between defense counsel and the Eps 
prosecutors, as well as our First Assistant, the Miami FBI Special Agent in Char e and mysel . 

2 Section 2255 provides that: "falny person who, while a minor, was a victim of a violation of [enumerated sections 
of Title 18) and who suffen personal injury as a result of such violation . . . may sue in any appropriate United States 
District Court and shall recover the actual damages such person sustains and the cost of the suit, including a 
reasonable attorney's fcc " 
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By signing this Addendum, Epstein asserts end certifies that the above has been read and 

explained to him. Epstein hereby, states that he understands the clarifications to the Non-

Prosecution Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

K. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Dated:  By' 

U.S. ATTORNEY 

Dated:  / °''I 163-

Dated: 

Dated: 

GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

LILLY ANN SANCHEZ, ESQ. 
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN 
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Westlaw 
West's F.S.A. § 951.24 Page 1 

C 
Effective:Pee Text Amendments] 

West's Florida Statutes Annotated Currentness 
Title XLVII. Criminal Procedure and Corrections (Chapters 900-999) (Refs & Annos) 

Chapter 951. County and Municipal Prisoners (Refs & Annos) 

951.24. Extend the limits of confinement for county prisoners 

(I) Any county shall be deemed to have a work-release program upon the motion of that county's board of 
county commissioners which shall require the concurrence of the sheriff of the county. 

(2)(a) Whenever punishment by imprisonment in the county jail is prescribed, the sentencing court, in its discre-
tion, may at any time during the sentence consider granting the privilege to the prisoner to leave the confines of 
the jail or county facility during necessary and reasonable hours, subject to the rules and regulations prescribed 
by the court, to work at paid employment, conduct his or her own business or profession, or participate in an 
educational or vocational training program, while continuing as an inmate of the county facility in which he or 
she shall be confined except during the period of his or her authorized release. 

(b) My prisoner, at the time of sentencing or thereafter, may request the court in writing for the privilege of be-
ing placed on the work-release program. The Department of Corrections, upon the request of the court, is author-
ized to conduct such investigations as are necessary and to make recommendations to the court pertaining to the 
suitability of the plan for the prisoner and to supervise such prisoner if released under this program. Such a re-.
lease may be granted by the court with the advice and consent of the sheriff and upon agreement by the prisoner. 
The court may withdraw the privilege at any time, with or without notice. 

(c) No person convicted of sexual battery pursuant to s. 794.011 is eligible for any work-release program or any 
other extension of the limits of confinement under this section. 

(3)(a) The wages or salary of prisoners employed under this program may be disbursed by the sheriff pursuant to 
court order for the following purposes in the order listed: 

I. Board of the prisoner. 

2. Necessary travel expense to and from work and other necessary incidental expenses of the prisoner. 

3. Support of the prisoner's legal dependents. 

C 2008 Thomson Reuters/West. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works. 
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West's F.S.A. § 951.24 Page 2 

4. Payment, either in full or ratable, of the prisoner's obligations acknowledged by him or her in writing or 
which have been reduced to judgment. 

5. The balance to the prisoner upon discharge from his or her sentence, or until an order of the court is entered 
declaring that the prisoner has left lawful confinement, declaring that the balance remaining is forfeited, and dir-
ecting the sheriff to deposit the funds in the general fund of the county to be spent for general purposes. 

(b) The sheriff may collect from a prisoner the wages or salary earned pursuant to this program. The sheriff shall 
deposit the same in a trust checking account and shall keep a ledger showing the status of the account of each 
prisoner. Such wages and salaries shall not be subject to garnishment in the hands of either the employer or the 
sheriff during the prisoner's sentence and shall be disbursed only as provided in this section. 

(c) Every prisoner gainfully employed is liable for the cost of his or her board in the jail as fixed by the county. 
The sheriff shall charge the prisoner's account, if he or she has one, for such board. If the prisoner is gainfully 
self-employed he or she shall deposit with the sheriff an amount determined by the court sufficient to accom-
plish the provisions of subparagraphs (a)I.-5., in default of which his or her privileges under this section are 
automatically forfeited. 

(d) The board of county commissioners of any county may, upon the recommendation of the sheriff, authorize 
the person in charge of a county stockade or workcamp to implement paragraphs (a), (b), and (c), when such fa-
cility is not directly under the sheriff. 

(4) Any prisoner who willfully fails to remain within the extended limits of his or her confinement or to return 
within the time prescribed to the place of confinement shall be deemed an escapee from custody and shall be 
subject to punishment as prescribed by law. 

(5) Exchange for the purpose of work-release of county prisoners among other counties of the state that have im-
plemented work-release programs is hereby authorized, with the concurrence of the sheriffs of the involved 
counties. For the purpose of this subsection, upon exchange, the prisoner shall be deemed a prisoner of the 
county where confined unless or until he or she is removed from extended confinement status. Prisoners from 
other jurisdictions, serving lawful sentences, may also be received into a county work-release program as above 
provided. 

(6) In carrying out the purpose of this section, any board of county commissioners may provide in its annual 
budget for payment to the Department of Corrections out of funds collected from those being supervised such 
amounts as are agreed upon by the board and department to be reasonable and necessary. County judges arc 
hereby authorized to levy $10 per month upon those supervised for purposes of paying for supervision under this 
act. 

CREDIT(S) 
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• 

• 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
Plaintiff 

-VS-

JEFFREY
Defendant 

IN THE nrnarrrs JUDICIAL 

. CIRCUIT COURT, IN AND FOR 
PALM BEACH COUNTY -* 

CASE NUMBER IDLNACERQ2211/62Q2S12 
DIVISION MCSORLEY "V PI 

1,113$155 DC NUMBER 
CIRCUIT NUMBER: 15-4/ JAIL spur 

ORDER OF COMMUNITY CONTROL I 

This cause coming before the Court to be heard, and you, the defendant, being now present before the mutt and you. 

having 

El catered a plea of guilty to O been found guilty laYinrY verdict of 

O entered a plea of nolo cone sere to 0 been found guilty by tho court trying the cat without a jury of 

Count L isocuRtrasoN UNDERAGE_QT 18 FOR PROSTITOTIQN 

SECTION 3.: JUDGMENT OF GUILT 

El The court hereby adjudge" you to be guilty of the above offense (s). 

Now, therefore, it is ordered and adjudged that rho imposition of sentence is baby withheld and that you be placed 

on Probation I for a period of candor the supervilion of the Department of Correction", subject to Florida law. 

SECTION 2t ORDER WITHHOLDING ADJUDICATION 

O Now, therefore, it is ordered and adjudged that the adjudication of guilt is hereby withheld and that you be placed on 
Probation fora period of under the supervision of tho Department of Corrections, subject to Florida law. 

SECTION 3: INCARCERATION DURING PORTION OF SUPERVISION SENTENCE 

It is hereby ordered and adjudged that you be 

O committed to the Department of Contetions 
or 

O confined In the County Jail 
fore tout of with credit for jar] time. After you have served of the term, you shall be placed on 
Probation for a period of under the supervision of the Deportment of Cormotions, subject to Florida lbw. 
or 

• oontired in the County /all 
fors term of SIX (61 MONTHS AS TO COUNT 1IrOLLOWED DY TWELVE (121 MONTHS, 
0212111CLUSdatigaL I CONSECUTIVE TO IMEE (121 MONTH SENTENCE IIZ 
CASEY! 2008CF009454AbfE with credit for ONE al DAY Jail limo, as s special condition of 
tutoervielon 
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. . • • . 

XT 78 FURTHER ORDERED that you &sitcoms* with the following gjandard °midi dons otintervision assioxided . by Fiptida • 
• . . • • 

law: 

(1) You will report to the probed= office as directed. Not later than the fifth day of each month, unless othawbe littered, you Will . . . 

• ' make e full end ttuthfW tittOn io youryouroffice/ on the form For that purpose. .

.. • . • • 
(2) You will pay the State °Mori& the amount of 950.00 per month, es well as 4% surcharge, toward rho post of your supervislcm fn 

• . • . 
accordance with s. 948.09,F.S,, unless otherwise exempted in compliance with Florida Statutes. .

(3) You will remain in a specified piece. You will not change your residanse or employment or leave the county of your residence 

without first procuring th000nsent of your officer. • • 
• 

(4) You will not possess, carry or own any fires= or weapon, unless authorized by the court 

(5) You will live without :violating the law. A conviction in a court of law shall not be necessary for such a violation to constitute a 

violation of your probstiodeonunuoity cootrol. 

46) You Will not *stook= win. any person engaged in any criminal activity. 

(7) You will not use ineoxiccetS to- excess or possess any drugs or narcotics =less prescribed by a physician. Nor will :you visit

places where intoxicants, drugs or other dangerous substances are =lawfully sold, dispensed or used. 

(8) You will work diligently at a lawful occupation, advise your employer of your probation statue, and support any dependents to the 

best of your ability, as directed by your officer. 

(9) You will promptly and truthfully answer all inquiries directed to you by the court or the officer, and allow your officer to visit In. 

your borne, at your employment site or elsewhere, and you will comply with all instructions your officer may give you; 

(10)You will pay restitution, own costs, and/or foss in accordance with special conditions imposed or In accordance with the attached 

orders. 

(11)You will submit to random testing es directed by your officor or the professional staff of the treatment center whore he/she Is 

receiving treatment to determine the presence of alcohol or illegal. drugs. You will bo required to pay for the tests unless exempt 

by the court. 

(12)You will submit two biologic:Li specimens, as directed by your office?, for DNA analysis as prescribed In as, 943,325 and 
948.014, F.S. 

(13)You will report in person within 72 hours of your release from incarceration to the probation office in BALM 131  I1 County, 
Florida, unless otherwise instructed by the court or department. (Ma oondition applies only if section 3 on the previous page is 
checked.) Marxist, yon must report immediately to the probation office located at '444 SOUTHSONGflaAlain& 
Toittcr. VORTIR FL 33451, 
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.............. ...., . . SPECIAL c,cisnrnpris-
• - ,..., 

O L You must undergo a Drug and Alcohol evaluation and, if treatment is doomed necessary, you must successfully complete 

the treatment, and be tosponsible for the payment of any costa Maimed while receiving said evaluation anritreatmentoun1°35. 
waived by the court.- . . . • 

Additional instructioriordercdf 

O 2. You will make ralitution to the following viotka(s), as treeted by tho court, until the obligation is paid in full: 

NAME: • . 
TOTAL AMOUNP, S 
Additional inetruedone ordolod, including spoolfto monthly amount, begin date, due date, otjoint & several: 

• 

NAME'. 
TOTAL AMOUNT: S ' 
Additional instructions ordered, including spoolfie monthly amount, begin date, due date, or Joint & several: 

• - 

SPECIAL CONDMONS — CONTINUED 

❑ 3. You will enter the Dopertment of Corrootione Non-Swum Thug Treatment Program or other residential treatment 

program/Probation sad Restitution. Center for a period of successful completion as approved by your officer. You are to 

remain until you succesefully complete said Program add Aftercare. You are to oomply with all Rules and Regulations of 

the Program. You shall be confined In the county Jail until placement in said program, and if you are confined in theist'', 

the Sheriff will transpon you to said program. 

❑ 4. Yi..1 will abstain entirely from the use of alcohol and/or illegal thugs, and you will not 3330eillte with anyone who Is 

illegally using drugs or calumnies alcohol. 

O 3. You will submit to urinalysis testing on a monthly basis to determine the presence of alcohol or illegal drugs. You will 

be required I pay for to tens unless exempt by the court. 

❑ 6. You will not visit any establishment where the primary business is the sale and dispensing ofaleoholio beverages. 

O 7, You will successfully complete •haus of community service at a rate of , at a work site approved by your 
officer. 
Additional Instructions ordered: 

O 8, You will male at your residence between 10 p.m and 6 a.m. due to a curfew imposed unless otherwise directed by the 

cow. 

❑ 9. You will submit b electronic monitoring, follow the rules of electronic monitoring, and pay S pa month for the 
cost of the monitoring service, unless otherwise direoted by the omm. 

O 10. You will not associate with during the period of supervision. 

❑ IL You will have no contact (direct or indirect) with the victim or the victim's family during the period of supervision. 

O 12. You will have no contact (direct or indirect) with during the period of supervision. 

❑ 13. You will maintain full time omploymont or attend echoed/vocational school full time ore oombloation of school/work 
during the term of your supervision. 

❑ 14. You will make a good faith effort toward completing basic, or functional literacy siolb or a high school equivalency 
diploma. 

O 15. You will succomfully complete the Probation de Restitution Program, abiding by all rules and regulations. 
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O 16. You will attend Alooholles Anonymous ox Narcotics Anonymous meetings at least monthly, Soso .otherodse directed 

by the court. • • • " • . . 
• .• 

. . 
O 17. You pint 3i1O0AnfullY complete MRHIlitillasna, and be rerionsible for the payment of any costs incurred while 

receiving said treatment, unless waived. If convicted of a Domestic Violence offense, as defined fn a. 741.28, P.S., yeti.

must attend and auccesefully complete a batteries intervention proviso, unless otherwise directed by the QOWI " ..• 

Additional Inattuctioniorderid: • . • . 

O 1a, You will attend m HIV/AIDS Awareness Program'Cooststing of a elms at not leas than two (2) boors or more than four 

(4) boars in length, the that for which willbepald by you.

O 19. You aball submit your person, mammy, place of residence, vehicle or personal effects to a warrantless search at any 

time, by any probadon or community control officer or any low enforcement officer. 

• 23 20. DEFENDANT MUST REGISTER AS A SEXUAL OFFENDER WITHIN 48 HOURS OF RELEASE 

C3 21. AS A SPECIALCOMMON OF HIS commurtm CONTROL, TPIE DEFENDANT IS TO WAVE NO

UNSUPERVISED CONTACT WITH MINORS, ANDTHE SUPERVISING ADULT MUST BE APPROVED BY 

. THE DEPARTMENT OR CORRECTIONS 

• • • 

0 22. THE DEFENDANT IS DESIGNATED AS A SEXUAL OFFENDER PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE ' 

943.05 AND MUST ABIDE BY ALL THE CORRESPONDING REQUIREMENTS OF THESTATUTE, A 

COPY OF WHICH IS ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN 

21 23. DEFENDANT MUST PROVIDE A DNA SAMPLE IN COURT AT THE TIME OF THIS PLEA. 

0 24, SPECIFIED CONTACT WITH THE PAROLE AND PROBATION OFFICER • 

O 25. CONFINEMENT TO AN AGRZZO•UPON RESIDENCE DURING HOUR, AWAY FROM EMPLOYMENT 

AND FUBLIC SERVICE Activrraks 

• El 25, MANDATORY PUBLIC SERVICE 

O 26. SUPERVISION, BY THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS BY MEANS OF AN ELECTRONIC 

MONITORING DEVICE OR SYSTEM 

O 27. ELECTRONIC MONITORING 24 HOURS PER DAY 

23 28. CONFINEMENT. TO A DESIGNATED RESIDENCE DURING DESIGNATED HOURS 

AND, IF PLACED ON pipci OFF_Et(Mat PROBATION YOU WILL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOW= CONDITION 
OF SUPERVISION IN ADDITION TO THE STANDARD CONDITIONS LISTED ABOVE AND ANY OTHER SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS ORDERED )3Y THE COURT: 

(14)You will participate in a specialized drug treatment program, either as an In-patient or out patient, A8 rotommonded by the 
treatment provider. You will attend ell counseling sessions, submit to random urinalysis and, if an Impatient, you will comply 
with all operating rules, regulations end procedures of the treatment facility. You will pay for all costs associated with treatment 
and testing unless when*, directed. 
Additional Instructions ordered: 

(15) You will =MID at your residence between • p.m. and am. duo to a curfew Imposed, unless otherwise 
❑ directed by the ow. 

AND, W PLACED ON COMMUNITY CONTROL YOU WILL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS, IN 
ADDITION TO THE STANDARD CONDITIONS LISTED ABOVE AND ANY OTHER SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
ORDERED BY THE COURT: 
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(14)Y will repots to your officer le directed, it least Basel; unless yop have.vnitten eamentethenyba. 

(15)You will remain confined a your approved residence except for one half hoar before and after your approved emplortents. 

. Public service work, m any other special activities appioved by your officer. 
. . . • . . " 

..(16)You will maintain an hourly accounting of all your activities on a daily lOg, which you will submit to:your caw on, request.

(17) You will successfully complete bows of community service at a rite of_; at a Work site approved by your offiem, 

Additional inetrucnotts ordered:" ' ' ' . •• • . • 

(18) You will submit to electronic monitoring, follow the rules of olcotronle monitoring, and pay S per month 

ED for the cost of the monitoring service, unless otherwise directed by the court. 

AND, IF PLACED ON j rtr1BATION AA GOMMCrrr1TY CO1iTR01 FORA SH.X 0 PROVIDED IN CRAPTER . 
28, a. 800.04 a. 827.071, or s,1147,0145, COMMATTED ON OR AFTER OCTOBER I. 1995 YOU WILL COMPLY WITS 
TAE FOLLOWING STANDARD SSX OFFENDER CONDITIONS, IN ADDITION TO THE STANDARD poNpinoNs 

• -LISTED ABOVE AND ANY OTICER SPECIAL CONDITIONS ORDERED BY TEE COURT: • 

(14)A mandatory airtime from 10 p.m. to 6 a.m. The court may designate another 8-hour period if the attendee employment . 
precludes the above speollied dine, and the alternative is recommended by the Department of Corrections, if the court determines 
that imposing a curfew would endanger the victim, the court may consider alternative unctions. 

(15)11 the vietim was under the age of 18, a prohibition on living within 1,000 feet of a school, day care center, pack playground. or 

other place when children regularly congregate, es prescribed by the taut Tho 1,000-foot distance shall be measured. in a 
straight line from the offender's place of residence to the nearest boundary line of the school, day care center, park, playground, or 
other place where children congregate. The distance may cot be measured by a pedestrian route or automobile route. 

(l6)Active participation in and successful completion of a sex offender yea:rent program with qualified practitioners .apecifleally 
trained to treat sex offenders, at the offender's own expense. If a qualified practitioner Is not available within a 50-mile radius of 
the offender's residence, the offender shall participate in other appropriate therapy. 

(17)A prohibition on any contact with the victim, directly or indirectly, including through a third person, unless approved by the 
victim, the offender's therapist, and the sentencing court. 

(18)If the victim was under the ago of 18, a prohibition on contact with a child under the age of 18 except as provided in this 
paragraph. The court may approve supervleed contact with -a child under the ago of 18 If the approval is based upon a 
recommendation for contact issued by a qualified proodtioner who is basing the recommendation on a risk as carmen'. Further, 
the 50% offender must be currently enrolled in or have successfully convicted a sex offender therapy programa. be court may not 
guard Supervised contact with a ohild if the contact is not recommended by a quadded practitioner and may deny supervised 
contact with a child et any time, 

(19)11 the victim was under ego 18, a prohibition on working for pay or as a volunteer at any place where children regularly 
°engage's, including, but not limited to any school, daycare center, park, playground, pot store, library, zoo,.theme park, or mall. 

(20)Unless otherwise indicated in the treaunent plan provided by the aerial offender treatntent program, a prohibition on viewing 
accessing, °voting, or potsessing any obscene, pornographic, or sexually stimulating visual or auditory material, including 
telephone, electronic media, computer prove:rat or computer services that are relevant to the offender's deviant behavior pattern. 

(21)A requirement that the offender submit two specimens of blood or other approved biological specimens to the Florida Department 
of Lave Enforcement to be registered with the DNA data bank. 

(22)A requirement that the offender make restitution to the victim, as ordered by the court under s. 775.089, Thrill necessary medical 
and Misted professional =vices relating to physical, psychiatric, and psychological area 

(23)Submission to a mummies, search by the community control or probation officer of the offender's person, residence, or vehicle. 

te 
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EFFECTIVE FOR PROBATIONELOR toromary CONTROLLEE WHOSE CRIME WAS COWITITED  . ..• , 

Ann corona -LIM, AND WHO IS_PLACED ON COMMUNITY CONTROL OR SEX OFFENDER ?IODATION • 

FORA VIOLATION OF. CHAPTER s, s.837.071, or 8.147.0145, IN ADDITION TO. ANY oTh..TR,PRonst : . • -  • l• • •a

OF THIS SECTION, YOU MUST COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF SUPERYISIONt7. • • . 

(24)Aa part of a treatment program, participation nicest manually in polygraph examinations to obtain information accessary fi's*. 
management and trait:moot and to reduce the sex offonder's denial mechanisms. A polygraph examination must be conducted by a . 
Polygrapher trained specifically in the use of dm polygraph for the monitoring of sex offenders, whemaytillithie, end shall •- 
by the sex offender. .•• .•. • . 

(25)Maintenance of a driving log and a prohibition against driving a motor wshick alone without the prior approval of the supervising 
officer. 

(26)A prohibition against obtaining or using a post °Moe box without the prior approval of the supervising officer. 

(27)If there wee 'sexual 'contact, • submission to, at the offender's expense, an MY teat with the'rethlts to be released to the victim
• andfor thevicthn'a pate li of guaidiais.,. . • A. • 

(28)Ekitronio monitoring 'when deemed 'necessary by the probation officer and supervisor, and Ordered by the court at the 
. . 

recomroendation of the Department of Corrections,  . 
. . . . • 

. . 
(29)Effective for an offender whose crime was committed nor after July 1, 2405, and who are planed on supervision tor 

violation of chapter 794, s. 800.04, s. 827.071, ors. 847.0145, a prohibition on accessing the Internet or other computer servicos 
until the offender's sex offender treatment program, after a risk assessment is completed, approves and implements a safety plan 
for the offender's accessing or using the Internet or other comphter services. . 

(30) Effective for offenders whose crime was committed on or after September 1,2005, them is botchy Imposed, in addition to 
any other provision in this section, mandatory electronic monitoring as a condition of supervision for those who: 

An placed on supervision for a violation of chapter 794, s. 800.04(4), (5), or (6), e. 827.071, or a, 847.0145 and the 
uniewhti sexual activity involved a victim 15 years of age or younger and the offender b 18 years of age or older, or 

• Are designated as a sexual predator pursuant to a. 775.21; or 
• Hee proviouely been convicted o f a violation Mahatma 794, a. 800.04(4), (5), cc (6), 3. 827.071, or s. 847,0145 and the 

unlawful sexual activity involved a victim 15 years of age or younger and the offender is 13 years of age cr older. 

You are hereby placed on notke.that should you cloak your probation or community control, and the conditions set forth in 
a. 948.063(1) or (2) are sallefied, whether your probation or community control is revoked or not revoked, you shall be placed on • 
electronic monitoring in accordanoe with F.S. 948.063. • .• • 

YOU ARE HEREBY PLACED ON NOTICE that the court may at any time rescind or modify any of the conditions bf your'
probation, or may extend the period of probation as authorized by law, or may discharge you from Author supervision If you violate 
any of the conditions of your probation, you may bo arrested and-the court may revoke your probation, adjudicate you guilty if. 
adjudication of guilt was withheld, and impose any sentence that it might have imposed before placing you on probation or require 
you to serve the balance of the sentence. . 

• 
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. IT.ISCFUITHEN. ORDERED that When you:Mite boat instructed ai bid= conditions of probation, you shall be released froth ' t.: •••• : 
custody if you aro in custody; and If you enetlibityOp bond, the swedes thereon shall stand discharged from liability, (rwe . 
peragreph applies only if section I or section 2 is checked.) • 

• . 

if IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Week of this wart file fide order in the clerk's saes and provide certified copies ofsame 
the officer fbr use to compliance with the requirements of law. 

DONE AND °ADULT, on 

NEMO PRO 71.1NC D6-30-2008 

:t.-e7tq< 

• Sandra K. MoSerley,.Ciroult dge 

Dint 
• 

Instructed by: 
Supervising Officer 

? 

I acimowledge receipt of copy of this order and that the oonclitiom ban be plaited to me and I agree to abide by them. 

op/O7.02.08 
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COURT ORDERED PAYMENTS 

CENCI( ALL. THAT AREORDERED5 : - '. —. ' '• • 
•. . . . • EWES,. • 

$__,... Total of fines assessed in sentence, pursuant to s. 775.083 (I Xs) through (g) or Chepter 316, F.S.
Statutorily mandated 3% anchors/eon iffino anniscd (on first line) pursuant to s. 938.04, P.S. • .... I. 

;An Crime Stoppers Trim Fund pursuant to 3. 938.06(1), P.S. ligutorliv mondatoi if. One it hi tiontl 

. . , . • pin AMATORY COSTS IN Altl, CARPs 
' .0 5100,00 Additional ovit'coat for felony offense, pursuant to 3. 938,05( IXo), F,8, , 

O i„52,12 Additional court cost for misdemeanor or criminal traffic offense, pursuant to s.938.05(1)(b) o0 (c), F.S. 
El 1 50.00 . Crimu Compensation Trost Fund pursuant los. 938.03( I), F,S. . . 
O ; 50.0Q County trims Prevention Fund pursuant toe, 775,083(2). F.S. . ' 

M
S 3.00 Additional Court Costs Carlos Trust Fund pursuant to 1.938.01(1), F.S. . • 
$ 2.00  • Per month for mob month of supervision for Training Trust Fond Surcharge, pursuant to s. 998.09. P.S. 

MANDATORY COSTS IN SPECIFIC TYPES OF CASES
Rap. Crisis Program Trutt Fond -- , pursuant to t. 938.085, RS, for any violation, of ss. 784.01.4184:021, 784.03, ?NMI,.' . • 
784.045, 784.048, 784.07, 784.08,184.081, 784,082,184.083, 784.085, or 794.011, F.& . 
Domestic violate Trutt Fund, pursuant to a. 938.08, F.S. funny violetions of es. 784.011, 784.021, 784.03, 7114.0alr 784.046, 
784.048, 784.07, 784.08, 784.081, 7K082, 784.083, 784.085, 794.011, or any offense of Galindo ViNatco described in a. 

.. • • . •

... .. • . • • • . . . . 

O SIfiLail 

O IMO 

▪ FlOt.00.

❑ 311.5.00
O 3 3,00 

O
0 

 
1.-5. 

2 ,22 
S60Q

• ; 3.00

❑ $ LOP 

❑ 
0 $.5B4E 

(ES Sus 

0 Other 

O Other: 

. • • 

Certain Crimes Anton Minors, pursuant to.. 938.10(1), P.S. for any violations of a. 784.085, chapter 787, chapter 794. 
796.03, a. 800.04. chapter 827, s. 847.0145, or., 935.701. F.S. ' • 
DUI Court Cont, pursuant toe. 938.07, F.S. for any violations of en. 316.193 or 327.3$, P.S. • 
State Agency Law Enforcement Radio System Trost Fund, pursuant toe. 318.18(17), F.S, for say violations of offenserikted • 
Ina 318.17 including se. 316.1935, 316,027, 316.061, 8771'1, chapter 893, to. 316,193,316.192, 316.067, 316.072(3), 
3 I 6.545(I), or any Ober offense in chum 316 which is classified a, a orimtnal violation. 

MANDATORY COURT COSTS AUTHORIZED BY LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL MT/TIES 
Criminal Junk' Education by Munteipstitte, and Counties. pursuant to st. 938.13, P.S. 
Additional court elan for looal requircmenn and other onenty funded programs pursuant to a. 939.165(1)(a), F.S. 
Tnn Court wants to it. 938.19(2), F.S. 

PISCRETIONARV
Per month during the term of simertIsion to tho following nonprofit organisation erriblished for the solo purpose of 
Aupplospettlift Om rthablIIISINS Offorlis of the Deportment of CNTeettelle. pursuant to s. 94 8.039(2), F.S.: 

• Public, Defender Application Fee, If not proviously collected or waived, pursuant tor. 27.52 and a. 938.29, F.S. 
Public Defends!. Fen sad Costs, pursuant tot 938.29, F.S, ea determincd locally. 
ProseoutloofinvesdastIve Costs, mann to s. 938.27, PS. 

Sifbit County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund, pursuant to s. 938.21 and s. 938.23, F.S. tor violations of s. 316.193, 
s.856.01 1 s. 855,015, or choptu 362; Charier 567, or dupter 568, F.S. 

0 £100.00 Operating Mat Rood of the FOLIC, punusnt to a, 938.25, F.S. for violations oft 893.13 Wawa 

TOTµ 3 473.00

PAYMENT IS TO BE MADE THROUGH AND PAYABLE TO: 0 Deparirnent of Corrections or 0 Clerk or Coun 

(if collected by the Department of Carnation, a inkblots of 454 will be added to all Nyman ordored by the coun, pursuant to s. 945.31. P.S.) 

O Court Costs/Finoo Waived 
O Court Costs/Fines In the amount of convened to  certimisisity n-tv/OC hours 
❑ Court CODS/Finci In the amount of reduced to civil judgment. 

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS FOR PAYMENT: 

Page 8 of 8 Form Rcvised 03-18-08 

EFTA00183444



YiaJlia • 1.: .11167-71WW 

. .• 
-6F f*. V8.• ' %/ EMS' 

it .flas,arinfrzeim . 
• • • 

Y:314FYJTVP 

cirje-ttesig. 
urt f r.aar 

Denied •O With rithout Prejudicet O 

Warrant fa Ordered O ecalled O Bo 
dForf OOR:Diselia nbinstated 

13otid Fort Vacated Otrekious Pond Reinstated, if B 

. Deft Indigen't, O It A 
Esvaluation for: O Iftg Firth 

• .' O. PrekPlea • O 
Referred to: PTI I PAl

EPP ENTERED A>≤LBA O 
A14.. C*304;ts

?NT( er lest dv of Rts 

O 

O Erg only' Pa 
DOCNota-Sectze: Bed 

ordered by/wi bit days 
LI • Case pla4d on th absentee docket 

thdrawn O 

•• " 

isistsis • ?Act' 
. • 

• 

:-CruRep. • • 

1Reserves Ruling O Written Order to Follow, 

O See Bellew fiAlso Coven afili Cone 
OSOR:Dischaeyoked/Reinstated . • 

to le charges O' ,.eleased GR. / SD&  • 

:"'•  • O CdtrisApptk  •

NOT GUILTY ?unify O NO 
Cts  • 

Waived PSI • Lesser Cie.. 

JOUELTY.as Charged as-to 
GUILTY as.Charged as t 

NWBBLI) as to Cts  • • 
FOUND ANDADJUDIC.AlteD 
Pa& 01.N.210Ulirf 

fob kr:lath Control: O Ft!eyo 
St.i.p/Pound: (violent). • abitiral 0 

l23‘111ENC:E: PBCJ 
PBCJ: ' 

.W/Credit for 
—one / Comte /Co-Term ickesei 

d Reinsta 

771084 
Cts: 
Cts• 

3 Execution of Sentence Ste 
Youthful Off O Heidi 
0438MBAINTBNCETOB 

) DRIVERS LICBNSB 

Lessc 

vionput.frorkiDEVBtaffing 
' I Az 
O•BESNItti CriTOPBB,KS 
Tom.:

er Charge 

/BLED as to Cts • 

gz.NW.PP2Phogs
b Modified Q thej4. liceeselully OJnsu 

• 
Predator 

ire.erfatrS t De.12.eananded totem:am . onpam 

 • Cte 

Cr 

Sentence Suspe'ided 3 Mine sery as Mt Cts • %. 

O Min / Mend:   as trigs  
Byi. O Pabadon CJ•Dnig /Sex 0046 0 Comm Control O,1 •••• Seat*. 2 

USPENDHD/ RE-701031/ FOR . 
j 

{TSARS. AbA. 
i • 

a. 

C Deft sign 
q Def Co  . . O A A 4 
17 !Prob O. Jail O DJJ O. 0 T  ' Notified by ii by: .:.. 
O County Courthouse • . O Courtro ' Crim kill Justice B 

205 N. Dixie, West Palm Beach 38844 State.Road 80, Belle.Glade I: 3228. Gun Club at Palm-Beach 
00YOURRE A PENCE WITH A OSAMU!? WHO NEEDS ANY ACCOMUKOAlthel PI ORDER TO PAARCIPATE IN THIS PROC ECOEL.TOUIARE ENTITLED, it NO COST TOYCLIJOiTiETHETRECIIITE; 't
J.:ERTEN ASSISTANCE PLEASE CONTACT MARY JAFFE, ADA COORDINATOR P4 THE ADEPTSTRARTE OFFICE OF TIE tow PAYMBERCII county COURTHOUSE, smigtaarn eiviam Easm . 
TEST RUM MACK R. Wet; TELF.PHONE (361)E.S.4110, WITHIE 2 WORKINCIDAYSOF YOUR RECEFT OF THIS HOTICEIRYOU ;VIEW/ARM OEYOICE IMPAIRED, CALI. . • • 

• kr- -, ‘31 FIND lin Ilea. 
. , 

Set/tRernains S 

Set / Remains Se 

Reset • 

Reset  '

. • 
• ' Div • 

• Div Walk 

4. . 

-4 

O POWs:pan • 
' /••./  . . 

O Couritoonie Cr' vetice Complex.. 

EFTA00183445



„ • aakelfeerigraf031i1VdtVi3130410'041Ut4.431/WrkiV331.LONSINI.10,141301.14/110A$6SAVOONDOSS,MP,19ittisteti9)314q03ialili*iniMiiitheillafiC• i1.1 • 

..`d0IVISIAM143HLCU.110A101.1.593.0NOZOMWS31.1110pAit1103,001:itl.0411•Wyekg#909:0,5/N4tat 
1: :NOM INUIAS1136:4,14454-15110111.002 de.W171051pY38.illYatint4300.33•44A3/41/01.514Y101/414bilmUlfigit030 gAgWiriokaoymeasyTuolbsta*30:4 

.... willia°01 41!?$!!!flIAVOtt. n.920: 

1081: 14"&."914..!4 al till.11,41# :'•'7?"-::•fSM/P 4 i1Olg:4440 ,36VAINgliAlig3107.9 1"W illi a n  fr* 

•••%?•IA. a *9131:UP.5140P, bi n001) ..Z'IfttirAniftiliOgiUNW,Wetogin s':.•:.:S4inQr:Sh 4tIvejnii-Wtif 

fR3M0 1 1 1.111400f ” 

• •  : ••  u_t9P.uqcg b . .• 
" • .• : : .• .,• •-•;. • : • ;:e < c:14. le4 la,...) 9,

.':.--+LakAirrHAFADI:Vir.rikli •4 -.;; • c. • ),;46tkiiioirukt ;..4",:•;::: ?•-• 
• . • •c-r.{.=-5-44trectitemq.: 

. • A 

' C•. • :•.? • • ". . r 

Sit c.0061;' .. • 
• t e7

Ni#0140 .** :;Ud iV i ep t141 0 11"ialt004 1g00 1* 

1"- • 11,* (nalith,f1; 6 .0 36,11# 10W,bellagrA. A:: - 

%1W 9.41410 10r PPOUICIS40.04104t  lia3Ce lt#/#*** 10 41ei.). • 

'c', . .,40coelk9;alysiiiiiivautioitbil'ilk(olbatiet, cci tieran)nAitren 
1,14 MIRA,

 so: • . t:* MD 

. y • 1Wctelle ... AlktOlc i  .01,02/dQis " 

gr" G°%r : ~? e e jlllf3 lila' •a 16.1 cf.:It f lin 'reilltati h•::' ;16 (rat 

. _ . 
tr-••": 1: J'r' • •• . 

f:,.1. aNikitit;t: ,;•,?P-c=,-- simprol:4:eittittiii.resso 
14- 

....i€;%* ,1•4. .11.1:.".1-• J.:SO* 634W ltaffi::. - viiietpr • . Oliragethemerameerfitor l':15:W 
' -• 

Q iC9-) 4:14R14.4 "" 
tar' '•' 
•Z• 
/ •

' ' . 

4-.T.:k- +r- tobilLavn6;•••••••anWe'w;d ; 1.- " - f r .`,::. • • • 
.." - ' • S °-  • \ .a4- • • •  • 40,2 -  aW irgig45 1.0310Mr 

"4.1PP. 2 :$1 5362/1(0 63g 4.:; 

k 

: . 'i t1-2 7.=7Z . 1 ./: • :1,71170. -.#3*- 1': '" • '. Lii .Th V:Cnri e-' ; '• 

.. Citir0 
 i. tz 

: 
' • 

• $0:Ati • • , ,•••• e. • • " • . 
S' 

. 

Si,
'"•-; 

.... 
. 

' • ... ,s _ ... ../ _. , . .. .-, ..t. -
•.:':aiiic, ‘ 1 'I 0ll'alS44 plicat . 42ThArgia. Wtsl-a WO' stiteg!. 

f^r4.:: ::n<'• A -7;ir.:V7X4:.72:: ;:,..er ..:1-. ,:;(4:?.,,.:4 -2,;:',,V. 90ffilptila . Vpmb2o; ...  .y.iygi Foraiksicerqs v6:,. 
f t

'''  
''`: :' ':;':- •"4403•39•4ife.wfmeniiiik404 144C.#4'"1"aOrlijOiSq4191?..e'iStit*"494S4!"''4  : 1.. " 44 l'' _:t
: • • . ,.; !- ii•!. .. : : . .. •. L-.. •2:?•:-.76,0:r;ir. 1%; I  • : .1 :;040.iiidWithajetc!.. 0. 1%nftle.i, SiiiiR ''' '. 

- 
• • .ca „. (191-9111#01{AWige sitf-L40,04te,V2f t .. . . ... - .. .. . . , . , . . .. . .... •: ... 

. - 

• '" 

r• •4•tteits.1411: 

• ••• 

‘ , 
:•:. ..:1-ekaiPaiikidiesiiiim:. _ .  /Pr ,1721•:#03k*Mciagt."3.41.11/2 0°4f0,6•4* -' AlqinVIIP 
1. .1./4 - • st.orii!wifig*.mtior i ttea,k .,.glatemigt?g° s• Pw.vsuvr•omwti 

- : 

r : 
 ' 4g9:O-.13. 44?.?Mi*lic,a.Megii, ih:.:.;,.:A.4,;-,.ft:,. .r:7. •• 0,Pg,it •&00-  14' '- •  

ip...". 
• Rottalt %Ours , v • ' • • • ' t• zi: ist (#z 4no4 r  Rib Witt18 '' 

..1 iet: . , a 
i •• 
*IP 

- t.. 
:"4 

b ...?.:? 
'tit" :•••;••• •;.r.:'Pt -. • . '•• ' r r.t 'S A • . • 

4. ' • ' 1". ' et ' —Cll.- D . , 
' . • • . •

• . ai:: 'fi• r ' 41.: "• ••• r.". . ..ts .dapAti. -• „. 
' At.

.. • 
zi-• rextvir• ,,,,,,44.• 

L • :ra,  .4 • • ;:a 1  a ..:1* • :I a' X Vr • 
• • 

e• 

• • 
17. • • 

.• 

1 

• . • . • • • 

• : ing;ratiair44•C‘ . • vv•*.Y • • • • sJ 

• • : • • . • 

. : • . - - . : 1•!.•: -1•40, 

— . • . • • 
up

ieM.v4..1.. ; 
int t aaC"—';  AM.  • • • •'• • - • • • . 

00Z NO Q3SS 

EFTA00183446



• 1 is, . . . 
age" 2 • 

• • NA 
W, Proy.Sex•CM thug Oil of

P..•:.44apt.
C.C. II: ._=Ce_b9' Wcatif.41.-s: ••.-4-4-. 

. 

... 
a. 
• 

i,...::-1;) coneec. wt .. . . 
• • 

0 -Prabatiolitignefeiredfo:,. •-•• • ,.. • ' . .... 

- "SPECIAL CO.NDITIO10:, • • • . • • •,' ..• 
' 0 .gereplete,Originally Ordered OrderedCs)nditiena ••• - . • ..'N• . •   . ••• • . 
.0 Code*. • .p m with•the-fallowing exception: ..- • , .. . . 

• a- Deftlo lepOrtio Prob.. Dept. immealateily.uPOnfeleeee..  i ' . ..•• . : • , • • , . . 
:Q. Deft. n.ghip.have in care, custody; or control any.Unlawful -OrTflaieffneigrlal, subst., device, oriOIA091.
*A Deft. to immediately-n.opy ProbrOfficer If place of residence or changes. ..:.ti  • .. z. -_.• 
Q Restitution cao filed 1 '. _
0 •Sube A o iffil hnds cool' .iikiiii • , 

:. 

* 
. 
I • 
•-•••• 
i 

. •:. 

. • 

 1% 

. • 

•• 

.' 
• 

. 

• 

. ... 
' P Evo: I Plych9 I(311..Y.41./Pqcf19 xual"val. within /. by _•.. . .. • . ysilarnobr.use 
--,;e4. 290,04410As• - 00f6119-49roo . - 
-- grAaif , , SII8Orearti*.T.Nicartlitiiiiikdole:':::-Otroittsci4va 

0 No -goridumptien/Posseasion of Aic.ohator.Drugs 
. CLAttend • - . • . .AA andlorNA Meet 

itkitilaiiielitz.?:i.. 1-:::::.  -:.,.-,7t , ,V-ji:-..,:•:::;•.,1 

or intoxicants without a Prescription. • . • . t...,::. ' 
ngs per.Weeik: . ' . • • • • • • • •••,. - •:.•••••. 

• 'CI •Dengtlio frequent any. rPace of,business Whose primary purpose is the sale 9f, alco_hOl..‘•cr. -•.. -r -ii 
• Ca '"Cornplete .-'11_Hre! of Community Service to be done at the rate of -____...d.' Hrs..per WR1140.(101lo,fi 

:`ID AlQ.e....igkelitatiaMulttritgr__:::.......- ' -. I ...Mitg..i.M... • . • • • .- _ 
- 4 -04.fitliiiiiteuceep0411y-complete.all4ctidgIgleatialotatfActliii.lii.ipad fib:eitek& .1 . .7 •:,•-: :. ." 

-, .14 -NoPerntest /. No MotentContact 1 No.pireol or:Indirect contactwAtictim(syor•othersilatesi::A: . -.- ••••• : 
• %. . . • 

••!:PittO.Ponteit 
hp 

...- ...- . 
W/Mihoi•Childien w/oAcIti*Sup.eiry loriawde of thiicaselthci the dispititibrk • .. ' 

aSt.01. erylelcrut  • • 4ettliOr.: b C .Waived lay Court. . . . . 
1;0-,I.Enliii• . uceedsfully:OappletetibD-Nopie ureeed•Prograrn•andAny•Recomiciendedaftereark;t•" 

a FfolptiOisatocly, release onlylo DOC-Non-a ureted-prograni Officer. . . . . 
0 ..Enterlifi0 Successfully Corapiete•RBSOlong./ Shod-I/Sok :Drug Farm anti-Any Rec;Afterearet74,?t. „ . 
10 ForfeitWeapon /•Mbney"seized at the Arne• of aerest to: . - 
a Enter•andtomplete: 0 Anger Management:Program ' 0 Batterers Intententline.  grar9.-c. 
" iii*T•beftAbatemeni Program: • • : ".. •• 

• .0 Defendant may apply for.Early.Terrnination after ) , provided ail conds. are satisfied. . 
'0 Seive • ' •• • days / month in.? Withrgradlt for -• . • • • , -days 1.minths. • • 

• 
41/ 4:1 1°re fli S i

ci • 6e114 .5i* .' •k*Sq Mit< )(viz 0 
, 

I-) • • k-ociRS. p Q- .410)\.±-14 0 e7)1.Se . ..., . . 
. • . , . . 
0 • . ,. .; " " .. • . 

, . . 
• ... , : • . • 

0 .. 
. .. . . . • • ,,,Fyt-- 3- ••• • -- • 

• 
• 

0 • 
.• . . .. • . ' • ,. . • • . 

• . . . 
. • .. - - • • . .. ' • - • . . . • .• • 

. . . . 
. • .7 . . , 

• • .. • . . • ' • ' •• - . . . 
• - -. . . . 

. • . 0 . . ‘ • 
I^V••• •••••0111•01 

EFTA00183447



t 

CA

tiW 

to 
EFTA00183448



(USAFLS) 

To: 

Subject: 

)1111.1(USAFLS), (USAFLS); 
(U 

F Follow-up point 

Here is my proposed response. 

Dear Jay: 

Assistant U.S. Attome 

From: Jay Lefkowitz [mailto 
Sent: Thursda Au ust 14, 2008 2:39 PM 
To: USAFLS) 
Cc: 
Subject: Re: Follow-up point 

Marie - In reviewing your December proposal, there are a couple of things I don't understand. 

What limits are placed upon individuals who proceed under 2255 as if "Mr. Epstein had been tried federally and convicted 
of an enumerated offense." In other words, what individuals would have this right? And would these individual only 
have this right if they proceeded exclusively under 2255? Also, to what enumerated offenses do you think would Mr. 
Epstein have to make constructive admissions of conviction? and how many such offenses? And against whom? 
Remember that while you may have investigated various offenses, he only plead guilty to certain state crimes. 

Finally, would paragraphs 8-10 of the September Agreement still be operative? 

I am trying hard to understand what you have intended by the December letter. Alex has says he thinks it benefits Jeffrey, 
and I am open to understanding it that way. But I would like some clarity on these issues. 

Thanks -- Jay 

08/1412008 12:44 PM 

To  > 

cc . -1c >
Subiecl Follow-Lip point 

Hi Jay — I forgot to mention that I can no longer argue that the Court shouldn't force us to produce the 
agreement because we have already provided the victims with the relevant portion when I now understand from 
you that I have NOT provided them with the relevant portion. 

1 
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Assistant U.S. Attorney 

The information contained in this communication is 
confidential, may be attorney-client privileged, may 
constitute inside information, and is intended only for 
the use of the addressee. It is the property of 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP or Kirkland & Ellis International LLP. 
Unauthorized use, disclosure or copying of this 
communication or any part thereof is strictly prohibited 
and may be unlawful. If you have received this 
communication in error, please notify us immediately by 
return e-mail or by e-mail to postmasterekirkland.com, and 
destroy this communication and all copies thereof, 
including all attachments. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United Slates Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

DELIVERY BY FACSIMILE 
Jay P. Lefkowit; Esq. 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
Citigroup Center 
153 East 53rd Street 
New York, New York 10022-4675 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Jay: 

500 S. Australian Ave, Ste 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

August 13, 2008 

As per your request, I am attaching several documents related to Mr. Epstein's performance 
of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 

The first document attached hereto is the June 30, 2008 proposed Notification, which was 
hand-delivered to Jack Goldberger and Michael Tein shortly after Mr. Epstein entered his guilty plea. 

Following that, I have attached the July 9, 2008 response from Mr. Goldberger. I have 
highlighted two portions. The first is where Mr. Goldberger (presumably with the approval of Mr. 
Tein) approves of the portion of my proposed Notification that quotes directly from the U.S. 
Attorney's December letter to Lilly Ann Sanchez. The second portion is where Mr. Goldberger 
provides his interpretation of the Agreement, and nowhere mentions that he does not believe that the 
December letter is operative. I note that Mr. Goldberger's letter contains a notation showing that Mr. 
Epstein was provided with a copy. 

The third document I have attached is a copy of one of the notifications that was provided 
directly to a victim. Copies of all of the notifications have been provided to Mr. Goldberger, and 
neither he nor any other attorney for Mr. Epstein has ever stated that the letter misrepresents the 
Agreement between the parties or the benefit that the Agreement bestows upon the victims. 

The fourth document I have attached is a copy of a Declaration that I have filed in connection 
with the victims' lawsuit filed against the United States. This Declaration sets forth our 
understanding of the Agreement and again quotes from the U.S. Attorney's December letter. Messrs. 
Goldberger and Tein are aware of this Declaration and have filed copies of it in connection with their 
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JAY P. LEFKOWITZ, ESQ. 
AUGUST 13, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

efforts to stay all of the civil litigation. Again, neither of them ever expressed to me — or to the Court 
— that it inaccurately describes the Agreement between the United States and Mr. Epstein. 

Please contact me tomorrow morning so that we can resolve this issue. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 

By: 

cc: Chief, Northern Division 

Assistant United States Attorney 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 3340! 
(56!) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

June 30, 2008 

IDENTIFIEDS 

NOTICE: IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 18, UNITED 
STATES CODE, SECTION 3509(d) AND FLORIDA LAW, 
THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT IS TO BE TREATED AS 
CONFIDENTIAL AND SHALL NOT BE DISCLOSED 
EXCEPT IN CONNECTION WITH A LEGAL 
PROCEEDING. 

EFTA00183454



U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

June 30, 2008 

NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIMS 

On June 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea 
of guilty to violations of Florida Statutes Sections 796.07 (felony solicitation of prostitution) 
and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in prostitution), in the 15th Judicial Circuit in 
and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-009454AXXXMB and 2008-cf-
009381AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve months' imprisonment to be 
followed by an additional six months' imprisonment, followed by twelve months of 
Community Control 1, with conditions of community confinement imposed by the Court. 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to 
defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 
conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 
enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 
rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 
had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 
of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 
attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 
Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 
authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 
which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 
the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 
as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 
less." 

Initials of Jeffrey Epstein  Initials of Jack Goldberger 
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NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIMS 
Junc 30, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 3 

Through this letter, this Office hereby provides Notice that the individuals identified 
below are individuals whom the United States was prepared to name as a victim of an 
enumerated offense. 

Identified Individuals 

Dated: 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

By: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I have received this Notification from my attorney, Jack Goldberger, Esquire, have 

read it and discussed it with my attorney, and I hereby acknowledge that it accurately sets 

forth my understanding and agreement with the Office of the United States Attorney for the 

Southern District of Florida regarding the notification and rights of identified victims. I 

Initials of Jeffrey Epstein  Initials of Jack Goldberger 
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NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIMS 
JUNE 30, 2008 
PAGE 3 OF 3 

understand that an exact copy of this Notification will be provided to each identified 

individual, except that the names of all other identified individuals will be redacted, and I 

hereby waive any evidentiary challenges to the introduction of a copy of this document—even 

in redacted form—in any judicial proceeding between any identified individual and myself. 

Dated: 
Jeffrey Epstein 

Witnessed by: 
Jack Goldberger, Esquire 
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July 9, 2008 

MM. Esq. 
Assistant United States Attorney 
United States Attorney's Office 
500 South Australian Avenue 
4'b Floor, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

SENT VIA E-MAIL & FACSIMILE 

Re: Jeffrey E. Epstein 

Dear Ms. 

• JOSEPH R.A1TERBURY 

'r SOCA. GOLDBERGER 

JASON S.WEISS 

Board Certified CriminaillialAttomey 
f Member of New Jersey & Florida Ban 

Thank you for your letter to me dated July 8, 2008 and the draft document dated, e-mailed and faxed 
to me at my office on June 30, 2008, styled "Notification of Identified Victims." I would like to 
address a few related issues. 

First, please note that we have several requests concerning any such notification. Specifically, we 
request that: 

(a) Any notification be sent to any individual by mail (or served upon their attorney, 
to the extent known), and we respectfully object to any service by hand, a method of 
service which carries the concomitant risk of conversations regarding the notification 
that potentially would place the federal authorities in a position of being advocates 
for civil litigation; 

(b) Any notification be effectuated by a separate mailing to each individual without 
the inclusion of any language that appeared on the second page of your June 30, 2008 
memorandum; i.e. rather than including in each notification a large section listing 
"identified individuals" with redactions other than the name of the recipient (which 
we contend would be a clear and impermissible signal to any individual that the 
notification is a broad notification to numerous other alleged victims). at tlista 
simple one page notification directed only to the recipient, and limited to the 
information currently on the first page of your draft memorandum would-suiffee. 

One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 250 Australian Avenue South West Palm Beach, FL 33401 

p 561.659.8300 f 561.835.8691 www.agwpa.com 
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(c) You eliminate from any notification any language that is currently contained in 
the "acknowledgment" section of the June 30, 2008 memorandum; and 

(d) You supplement the notification with the Government's previously made 
representation that it is not vouching for the veracity of any claim by any identified 
individual. See Letter from J. Sloman to E. (10/25/07). 

Second, please note also that we do not understand your request that Mr. Epstein and his attorneys 
execute the rider / acknowledgment contained within your June 30 hand-delivered draft. 
Specifically, we do not believe that the Non-Prosecution Agreement requires Mr. Epstein's execution 
of any such additional stipulation. Because we want to ensure that Mr. Epstein continues to strictly 
comply with the letter of the parties' agreement, we respectfully ask that you explain why you 
believe that the Non-Prosecution Agreement requires execution of your stipulation. 

Our understanding of the Non-Prosecution Agreement is that it does not require Mr. Epstein to 
"acknowledge" anything not already contained within the four corners of the written agreement. The 
agreement certainly contains no written term obligating that he "waive any evidentiary challenge to 
the introduction of a copy" of any "Notification of Identified Victims" in "any judicial proceeding 
between any identified individual" and Mr. Epstein, as your memorandum currently requests. 
Further, please note that your June 30 stipulation, as drafted, is not limited to Section 2255 
proceedings. Rather, your June 30 draft requires Mr. Epstein to waive evidentiary challenges in "any) 
judicial proceeding" - - which clearly exceeds the bounds of the parties' written agreement. 

Third, I would respectfully request that you provide me with the names of the "pro bono lawyers" 
who, you indicated to me at our June 30 meeting at my office, were intending to represent certain 
persons identified on your June 30 draft notification, as well as any knowledge that the Government 
has as to how they were selected, and what communications the Government has had with them to 
date. 

Finally, please know that it is Mr. Epstein's firm intent to fulfill strictly each term and condition of 
his Non-Prosecution Agreement with the Government. Nothing in this letter should be construed, 
however, as waiving any defense that may be available to Mr. Epstein under the parties' written 
agreement. 

I look forward to your response. Until then, I remain, 

trul yours, 

A. Goldberger 

cc: Jeffrey Epstein 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 3340! 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile: 

July 21, 2008 

NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIM 

NOTICE: IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 18, UNITED 
STATES CODE, SECTION 3509(d) AND FLORIDA LAW, 
THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT IS TO BE TREATED AS 
CONFIDENTIAL AND SHALL NOT BE DISCLOSED 
EXCEPT IN CONNECTION WITH A LEGAL 
PROCEEDING. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile: 

July 21, 2008 

VIA UNITED STATES MAIL 

Missal* 

Re: Jeffrey Epsignagan NOTIFICATION OF 
IDENTIFIED VICTIM 

Dear Miss UMW 

By virtue of this letter, the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District 
of Florida provides you with the following notice. 

On June 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea 
of guilty to violations of Florida Statutes Sections 796.07 (felony solicitation of prostitution) 
and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in prostitution), in the 15th Judicial Circuit in 
and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-009454AXXXMB and 2008-cf-
009381AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve months' imprisonment to be 
followed by an additional six months' imprisonment, followed by twelve months of 
Community Control 1, with conditions of community confinement imposed by the Court. 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to 
defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 
conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 
enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 
rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 
had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 
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of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 
attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 
Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 
authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 
which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 
the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 
as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 
less." 

Through this letter, this Office hereby provides Notice that you,fl are an 
individual whom the United States was prepared to name as a victim of an enumerated 
offense. 

Should you decide to file a claim against Jeffrey Epstein, his attorney, Jack 
Goldberger, asks that you have your attorney contact Mr. Goldberger at Atterbury Goldberger 
and Weiss, 250 Australian Avenue South, Suite 1400, West Palm Beach, FL 33401, (561) 
659-8300. 

Please understand that neither the U.S. Attorney's Office nor the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation can take part in or otherwise assist in civil litigation; however, if you do file a 
claim under 18 U.S.C. § 2255 and Mr. Epstein denies that you are a victim of an enumerated 
offense, please provide written documentation of that denial to the undersigned. 

Thank you for all of your assistance during the course of this investigation and please 
accept the heartfelt regards of myself and Special Agents and Richards for your 
health and well-being. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

By: 

cc: Jack Goldberger, Esq. 

NIA 
ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 08-80736-Civ-Marra/Johnson 

IN RE: JANE DOE, 

Petitioner. 

FILED by D.C. 

JUL -9 2008 
STEVEN M. LARIMORE 
CLERK Y.S. DIST. CT. 
S.O. Or FLA . W. 

TION OF
IN SUPPORT OF UNITED STATES' RESPONSE 

TO VICTIM'S EMERGENCY PETITION FOR ENFORCEMENT 
OF CRIME VICTIM RIGHTS ACT, 18 U.S.C. § 3771 

1. I, do hereby declare that I am a member in good standing 

of the Bar of the State of Florida. I graduated from the University of California at Berkeley 

School of Law (Boalt .) in 1993. After serving as a judicial clerk to the Hon. David F. 

Levi in Sacramento, California, 1 was admitted to practice in California in 1995. I also am 

admitted to practice in all courts of the states of Minnesota and Florida, the Eighth, Eleventh, 

and Federal Circuit Courts of Appeals, and the U.S. District Courts for the Southern District 

of Florida, the District of Minnesota, and the Northern District of California. My bar 

admission status in California and Minnesota is currently inactive. I am currently employed 

as an Assistant United States Attorney in the Southern District of Florida and was so 

employed during all of the events described herein. 
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2. I am the Assistant United States Attorney assigned to the investigation of 

Jeffrey Epstein. The case was investigated by the Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI"). 

The federal investigation was initiated in 2006 at the request of the Palm Beach Police 

Department ("PBPD") into allegations that Jeffrey Epstein and his personal assistants had 

used facilities of interstate commerce to induce young girls between the ages of thirteen and 

seventeen to engage in prostitution, amongst other offenses. 

3. Throughout the investigation, when a victim was identified, victim notification 

letters were provided to her both from your Affiant and from the FBI's Victim-Witness 

Specialist. Attached hereto are copies of the letters provided to Bradley Edwards' three 

clients, M., M., and M.' Your Affiant's letter to M. was provided by the FBI. (Ex. 

1). Your Affiant's letter to M. was hand-delivered by myself to M. at the time that she 

was interviewed (Ex. 2).2 Both.. and M. also received letters from the FBI's Victim-

Witness Specialist, which were sent on January I0, 2008 (Exs. 3 & 4). was identified 

via the FBI's investigation in 2007, but she initially refused to speak with investigators. 

II's status as a victim of a federal offense was confirmed when she was interviewed by 

'Attorney Edwards filed his Motion on behalf of "Jane Doe," withouttifaigg whicf 
his clients is the purported victim. Accordingly, I will address facts related to M., M., and M. 
All three of those clients were victims of Jeffrey Epstein's while they were minors beginning when 
they were fifteen years old. 

'Please note that the dates on the U.S. Attorney's Office letters to.. and M. are not the 
dates that the letters were actually delivered. Letters to all known victims were prepared early in the 
investigation and delivered as each victim was contacted. 

-2-
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federal agents on May 28, 2008. The FBI's Victim-Witness Specialist sent a letter to ■. 

on May 30, 2008 (Ex. 5). 

4. Throughout the investigation, the FBI agents, the FBI's Victim-Witness 

Specialist, and your Affiant had contact with.. and M. Attorney Edwards' other client, 

M., was represented by counsel and, accordingly, all contact with M. was made through 

that attorney. That attorney was James Eisenberg, and his fees were paid by Jeffrey Epstein, 

the target of the investigation' 

5. In the summer of 2007, Mr. Epstein and the U.S. Attorney's Office for the 

Southern District of Florida ("the Office") entered into negotiations to resolve the 

investigation. At that time, Mr. Epstein had been charged by the State of Florida with 

solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Florida Statutes § 796.07. Mr. Epstein's attorneys 

sought a global resolution of the matter. The United States subsequently agreed to defer 

federal prosecution in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, so long as certain basic 

preconditions were met. One of the key objectives for the Government was to preserve a 

federal remedy for the young girls whom Epstein had sexually exploited. Thus, one 

condition of that agreement, notice of which was provided to the victims on July 9, 2008, is 

the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 
enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 
rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 

'The undersigned does not know when Mr. Edwards began representing ■. or whether 
M. ever formally terminated Mr. Eisenberg's representation. 

-3-
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had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 
of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 
attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 
Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 
authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 
which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 
the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 
as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 
less." 

6. An agreement was reached in September 2007. The Agreement contained an 

express confidentiality provision. 

7. Although individual victims were not consulted regarding the agreement, 

several had expressed concerns regarding the exposure of their identities at trial and they 

desired a prompt resolution of the matter. At the time the agreement was signed in 

September 2007, ■. was openly hostile to the prosecution of Epstein. The FBI attempted 

to interview ■. in October 2007, at which time she refused to provide any information 

regarding Jeffrey Epstein. None of Attorney Edwards' clients had expressed a desire to be 

consulted prior to the resolution of the federal investigation. 

8. As explained above, one of the terms of the agreement deferring prosecution 

to the State of Florida was securing a federal remedy for the victims. In October 2007, 

shortly after the agreement was signed, four victims were contacted and these provisions 

were discussed. One of those victims was ■. who at the time was not represented, and she 

was given notice of the agreement. Notice was also provided of an expected change of plea 

in October 2007. When Epstein's attorneys learned that some of the victims had been 

-4-
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notified, they complained that the victims were receiving an incentive to overstate their 

involvement with Mr. Epstein in order to increase their damages claims. While your Affiant 

knew that the victims' statements had been taken and corroborated with independent 

evidence well before they were informed of the potential for damages, the agents and I 

concluded that informing additional victims could compromise the witnesses' credibility at 

trial if Epstein reneged on the agreement. 

9. After ■. had been notified of the terms of the agreement, but before Epstein 

performed his obligations, contacted the FBI because Epstein's counsel was attempting 

to take her deposition and private investigators were harassing her. Your Affiant secured pro 

bono counsel to represent M. and several other identified victims. Pro bono counsel was 

able to assist in avoiding the improper deposition. That pro bono counsel did not 

express to your Affiant that M. was dissatisfied with the resolution of the matter. 

10. In mid-June 2008, Attorney Edwards contacted your Affiant to inform me that 

he represented and ■. and asked to meet to provide me with information regarding 

Epstein. I invited Attorney Edwards to send to me any information that he wanted me to 

consider. Nothing was provided. I also advised Attorney Edwards that he should consider 

contacting the State Attorney's Office, if he so wished. I understand that no contact with that 

office was made. Attorney Edwards had alluded to M., so I advised him that, to my 

knowledge, ■. was still represented by Attorney James Eisenberg. 

-5-
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II. On Friday, June 27, 2008, at approximate 4:15 p.m., your Affiant received a 

copy of the proposed state plea agreement and learned that the plea was scheduled for 8:30 

a.m., Monday, June 30, 2008. Your Affiant and the Palm Beach Police Department 

attempted to provide notification to victims in the short time that Epstein's counsel had given 

us. Although all known victims were not notified, your Affiant specifically called attorney 

Edwards to provide notice to his clients regarding the hearing. Your Affiant believes that 

it was during this conversation that Attorney Edwards notified me that he represented M., 

and I assumed that he would pass on the notice to her, as well. Attorney Edwards informed 

your Affiant that he could not attend but that someone would be present at the hearing. Your 

Affiant attended the hearing, but none of Attorney Edwards' clients was present. 

12. On today's date, your Affiant provided the attached victim notifications to 

■. and ■. via their attorney, Bradley Edwards (Exs. 6 & 7). A notification was not 

provided to ■. because the U.S. Attorney's modification limited Epstein's liability to 

victims whom the United States was prepared to name in an indictment. In light of M's 

prior statements to law enforcement, your Affiant could not in good faith include as a 

victim in an indictment and, accordingly, could not include her in the list provided to 

Epstein's counsel. 

13. Furthermore, with respect to the Certification of Emergency, Attorney Edwards 

did not ever contact me prior to the filing of that Certification to demand the relief that he 

requests in his Emergency Petition. On the afternoon of July 7, 2008, after your Affiant had 

-6-
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already received the Certification of Emergency and Emergency Petition, I received a letter 

from Attorney Edwards that had been sent, via Certified Mail, on July 3, 2008. While that 

letter urges the Attorney General and the United States Attorney to consider "vigorous 

enforcement" of federal laws with respect to Jeffrey Epstein, it contains no demand for the 

relief requested in the Emergency Petition. 

14. I declare under penalty of perjury, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746 that the 

foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Executed this day of July, 2008. 

-7-
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United States Attorney's Office 
Southern District of Florida 
500 S. Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-6235 

DATE: g b3/0 

TO:  LeFitA)ii-a
ORGANIZATION: Kii4 eius 
FAX #: 

SUBJECT: 

FROM: 

ritiall (Fax).

NUMBER OF PAGES, INCLUDING THIS PAGE: '9

COMMENTS: 

Original document:   To follow via regular mail 
 • To follow via Federal Express 

  To follow via hand delivery 
  Nothing to follow, FAX =- original 

EFTA00183470



P. 1 

* * * TRANSMISSION RESULT REPORT ( AUG.13.2008 6:16PM ) * * * 

DATE TIME ADDRESS 
TTI USA° WPB FL 

MODE TIME PAGE RESULT PERS. NAME FILE 
AUG.13. 6:13PM 12124464900 TES 3'03" P.19 OK 695 

@ : BATCH 
L : SEND LATER 
S : STANDARD 
A-: ASYNC MODE 

C : CONFIDENTIAL 
@ : FORWARDING 
D : DETAIL 
1-: MIL_STD MODE 

P : POLLING M : MEMORY 
E : ECM > : REDUCTION 
F : FINE 
G-: RICOH-MG3/COMPATIBLE MODE 

EFTA00183471



i:J(6[0% 
AW/e—mo;3 re coerehi 

r
j
 

EFTA00183472



(USAFLS) 

From: (USAFLS) 
Sent: gus 008 6:35 PM 
To: (USAFLS); Sloman, Jeff (USAFLS 

Subject: :Jeffrey Epstein Agreement 

1-li everyone — I still haven't heard from Roy, but in the meantime, I have been looking for correspondence that 
could be described as an assent to the modification in the December letter. 

First, as set forth below, prior to the change of plea, we informed Epstein's counsel that we took the position 
that we already have a binding agreement and that nothing further was required. (This was a June 24 e-mail) 

Dear Roy and Jack: 

I am just writing to re-state that it is the Government's position that we have a signed, binding agreement and 
that there is no need for further modification. 

Please keep us informed of the date and time of the change of plea and sentencing. 

Thank you. 

We took the same position in the e-mails that Jeff and I sent to Jay Lefkowitz notifying him of Epstein's need to 
promptly perform their obligations following the various DOJ decisions. This was the language we used: 

Dear Mr. Lefkowitz: 

I understand that the Deputy Attorney General has completed his review of the Epstein matter and has 
determined that federal prosecution of Mr. Epstein's case is appropriate. 

Accordingly, Mr. Epstein has until the close of business on Monday, June 30, 2008, to comply with the terms 
and conditions of the agreement between the United States and Mr. Epstein (as modified by the U.S. Attorney's 
December 19th letter to Ms. Sanchez), including entry of a guilty plea, sentencing, and surrendering to begin his 
sentence of imprisonment. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at the number shown below. 

(This was sent on June 23s  to Jay and June 24th to Roy.) Following this correspondence, Epstein entered his 
guilty plea. 

On June 30th, a couple of hours after the change of plea, the agents and I went to Jack Goldberger's office and 
met with Jack and Mike Thin. We provided them with the proposed Notification of Identified Victims. On the 
first page of that notice, we wrote the following: 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to defer federal 
prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 
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"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense enumerated in 
Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same rights to proceed under 
Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein had been tried federally and 
convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes of implementing this paragraph, the 
United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was 
prepared to name in an Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. 
My judicial authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 
which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is the intent 
of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position as they would have 
been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no less." 

On July 9, 2008, Jack Goldberger wrote me a letter with some objections to the Proposed Notification. 
Although he had several requests for changes, he stated: "Rather, a simple one page notification directed only 
to the recipient, and limited to the information currently on the first page of your draft memorandum would 
suffice." 

This, to me, is a written assent that the quoted language is, in fact, one of the conditions to which Epstein has 
agreed. So, I think that we do have a written, binding agreement comprised of the three documents that, as far 
as I know, were filed with the state court with Jack Goldberger's approval. (I am waiting to hear back from the 
ASA.) 

Here again is what I provided to the State Attorney's Office, for your records. 

Epstein 
Agrmt001.pdf 

I am concerned that we were adamant before Epstein's plea that we had a complete agreement and nothing 
more was neccssary and now taking the position that we do not have an operative document (or set of 
documents). 

Alex, does the Black and Goldberger correspondence described above allay your concerns? Or would you still 
like me to raise this issue with Roy whenever he gets back to me? 

'thank you, sorry for the lengthy e-mail. 

ssis n J.S Attorne 

From: (USAFLS) 
Sent: Tuesday, June 24, 2 8 4:05 PM 
To: 'Roy BLACK'; 'Jack Goldberger' 

2 
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Cc: C) 
Subject: Jeffrey Epstein Agreement 

Dear Roy and Jack: 

I am just writing to re-state that it is the Government's position that we have a signed, binding agreement and 
that there is no need for further modification. 

Please keep us informed of the date and time of the change of plea and sentencing. 

Thank you. 

Assistant U.S. Attorne 

Tracking: 
3 
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Recipient Read 

(USAFLS) 

Sloman, Jeff (USAFLS) Read: 81512008 6:39 PM 

Read: 8/5/2008 6:37 PM 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

VIA FACSIMILE 
Michael R. Tein, Esq. 
Lewis Tein, P.L. 
3059 Grand Avenue, Suite 340 
Coionut Grove, FL 33133 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Mr. Tein: 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

July 17, 2008 

The Office has reviewed your "Notice of Continued Pendency of Federal Criminal 
Action," and we feel that it misrepresents the posture of the federal investigation. For 
example, you cite to In re Grand Jury, No. FGJ 07-103 (WPB), as evidence that the federal 
criminal action remains pending. That is a citation to Mr. Epstein's Motion to Quash a 
subpoena for computer equipment removed from Mr. Epstein's home after he and his 
attorneys were aware of the existence of the state investigation. Pursuant to the Non-
Prosecution Agreement, that motion was supposed to have been withdrawn several months 
ago, and, therefore, is not "pending" in our estimation. 

The Non-Prosecution Agreement calls for deferment of federal prosecution "in favor 
of prosecution by the State of Florida, provided that Epstein abides by the [enumerated] 
conditions and the requirements of th[e] Agreement . ." (Non-Prosecution Agreement, p. 
2 (emphasis added).) One of those conditions is Epstein's agreement that the subject Jane 
Does, while minors, were victims of a violation of an offense enumerated in Title 18, United 
States Code Section 2255, and that they "will have the same rights to proceed under Section 
2255 as [they] would have had if Mr. Epstein had been tried and convicted of an enumerated 
offense." (United States Attorney's December 19, 2007 letter to Lilly Ann Sanchez.) 

If, in fact, your position is that the federal criminal action is still pending such that the 
Court must stay the civil proceedings, then the Office proposes that we seek the prompt 
resolution of the Motion to Quash, so that the computer equipment can be analyzed and the 
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MICHAEL MN, ESQ. 
JULY 17, 2008 
PAGE 2 

federal investigation can continue. If, instead, Mr. Epstein intends to fully abide by the Non-
Prosecution Agreement, then the "federal Grand Jury investigation will remain suspended, 
and all pending federal Grand Jury subpoenas will be held in abeyance unless and until 
[Epstein] violates any term of [the Non-Prosecution Agreement]." (Non-Prosecution 
Agreement, page 5.) 

Please advise whether you intend to correct the representations to the Court regarding 
the status of the federal investigation. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney 

cc: Jack Goldber er, Esq. 
Esq. 
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TO: 

FAX NO. 

U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 iS Australian Ave, 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

Michael R. Tein 

PHONE NO. 

TO: Jack Alan Goldberger 

FAX NO. a -- PHONE NO. 

DATE: July 17.2008  # OF PACES:  3

RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: Assistant U.S. Attorney 

PHONE NO. 

COMMENTS: 
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07/17/08 18:17 FAX 15010504520 USAO WEST PALM Q001 

TRANSMISSION OK 

********************* 

*** TX REPORT *** 
********************* 

TX/RX NO 3957 
CONNECTION TEL 8358691 
SUBADDRESS 
CONNECTION ID 
ST. TIME 07/17 18:16 

USAGE T 00'42 
PGS. SENT 3 
RESULT OK 

TO: 

FAX NO. 

U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S Australian Ave, 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

Michael R. 'rein 

PHONE NO. 

TO: Jack Alan Goldberger 

FAX NO. PHONE NO. 

DATE: July 17, 2008  # OF PAGES:  3

RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: —MINa 

PHONE NO. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 
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07/17/08 18:18 FAX 15616594526 USAO WEST PALM 

TRANSMISSION OK 

********************* 
*** TX REPORT *t* 
***25**************** 

TX/RX NO 3958 
CONNECTION TBL 13054426744 
SUBADDRESS 
CONNECTION ID 
ST. TIME 07/17 18:17 
USAGE T 01'04 
PGS. SENT 3 
RESULT OK 

U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S. Australian Ave, 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(560 820... 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

TO: Michael R. Tein 

FAX NO. I PHONE NO. 

TO: Jack Alan Goldbereer 

FAX NO. PHONE NO. 

DATE: July 17.2008  # OF PAGES:  3

RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: . Assistant U.S. Attorney 

PHONE NO. 
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From: FAXmaker To: 15618208777 Page: 2/2 Date: 7/21/2008 6:3817 PM 

LEitsrayTARI0NPL 
July 21, 2008 

Copy via facsimile 

Esq. 
Office of the United States Attorney 
500 S. Australian Avenue 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Ms. 

Thank you for your letter of July 17, 2008. In it, you ask whether Mr. Epstein "intends to fully 
abide by the Non-Prosecution Agreement." The answer is yes. 

We confirm as you state in your letter that the Agreement requires that "the federal Grand Jury 
investigation will remain suspended, and all pending federal Grand Jury subpoenas will be held 
in abeyance unless and until [Mr.' Epstein] violates any term of [the Non-Prosecution 
Agreement]." We also confirm that under the Agreement, "prosecution in this District for these 
offenses shall be deferred in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, provided that Epstein 
abides by the . . . conditions and the requirements of tit[e] Agreement." 

As you know, there is no provision in the Agreement referring in any way to Section 3509(k). 
By that statute, Congress imposed a mandatory obligation on federal district courts to stay 
certain civil cases. Its operation is not subject to the control or discretion of any party. Whether 
Title 18, United States Code, Section 3509(k) applies to this civil litigation is a question of law 
for resolution by Judge Marra, Accordingly, we are abiding by our ethical obligation to advise 
the Court of its statutory mandate under Section 3509(k). 

Finally, thank you for notifying me that our motion to quash technically remains outstanding. 
We had previously notified the Court that the parties did not wish to argue the issue. I agree that 
the Agreement requires its withdrawal and we will file a formal notice withdrawing it this week. 

Please do not hesitate to call me if you wish further clarification of our position or to discuss this 
matter in any way. Until then, I remain, 

Very truly yours, 

• 

Michael R. TeM 

• 

cc: Jack Goldberger, Esq. 
Roy Black, Esq. 
Alex Acosta, Es; 

3050 GRAND AVENUE • SUITE 340 • COCONUT GROVE, FLORIDA33133 

TELEPHONE (3O5) 442.1101. FACSIMILE (3O5) 442.6744 • WWW.LEWISTICIN,COM 

This fax was sent with GE FAXmaker fax server. For more information, visit: http://wwwiti.com 
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From: FAXmaker To: 15818208777 Page 1/2 Date: 7/21/2008 6:38:17 PM 

Lewis Tein PL 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION 

RECIPIENT: , Esq. 

RECIPIENT'S FAX NUMBER: 

SENDER: Michael R. Tein, Esq. 

DATE: July 21, 2008 

PAGES (including cover sheet): 2 

COMMENTS: 

IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, 
DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS FACSIMILE IN 
ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US BY TELEPHONE AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL BY MAIL AT THE BELOW ADDRESS. THANK YOU. 

LEWIS TEIN, P.L. • 3059 GRAND AVENUE • SUITE 340 • COCONUT GROVE, FLORIDA 33133 
TELEPHONE (305) 442-1101 • FACSIMILE (305)442.6744 • WWW.LIBM3TRIN.COM 

This fax was sent with GPI FAXmaker fax server. For more information, visit: http://www.gfi.com 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

July 10, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE 
Jack A. Goldberger, Esq. 
Atterbury, Goldberger & Weiss, P.A. 
One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 
250 Australian Ave S. 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-5015 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Mr. Goldberger: 

In response to your letter of today's date, copies of the victim notifications are being 
mailed to you on a rolling basis. For those victims who have counsel, the attorneys' contact 
information will be included. As you will see, the letter makes clear that neither the U.S. 
Attorney's Office nor the Federal Bureau of Investigation can take part in or otherwise assist 
in civil litigation. The Office feels that is a sufficient statement of its position and we will 
not include the language that you have requested. 

Also, a final list of victims has been sent to you today via Certified Mail. That list is 
identical to the draft provided to you on June 30th, except that it also includes the full name 
of the minor victim. 

By: 

cc: AUSA 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 

Assistant United States Attorney 
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zt. zie U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S. Australian Ave, 4111 Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 3340! 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

TO: 

DATE: July 10. 2008 

FAX NO. # OF PAGES:  2

Jack Alan Goldberger 

PHONE NO. RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: 

PHONE NO. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

COMMENTS: 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Fine 

ropose response to Goldberger's letter 

 Ori inal Messa 
From: (USAFLS) 
To: (USAFLS); Sloman, Jeff USAFLS); 
Cc: (FBI); FBI) 
Sent: Thu Jul 10 17:12:26 200 
Subject: Proposed response to Goldberger's letter 

Please let me know if this is alright to fax out today. I can see no reason for us to disclose any of the additional information that 
they have requested. 

The message is ready to be sent with the following file or link attachments: 

0807 10 Response to Goldberger lir re notification.wpd 

Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending or receiving certain types of file attachments. 
Check your e-mail security settings to determine how attachments are handled. 
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la? 

0.

'JOSEPH R.ATTERBURY 

`1 JACK A. GOLDBERGER 

JASON S.WEISS 
• Board Certified CriminalTrial Attorney 

1' Member of New Jersey & Florida Bars 

July 10, 2008 

WV,les Attorney 
Esq. 

500 S. Australian Avenue 
4 th Floor, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

~' -1V 41L & FACSIMILE 

Re: Jeffrey E. Epstein 

Dear Ms. 

Thank you for your letter of yesterday. Kindly allow me a few follow-up points. 

First, we respectfully request a reasonable opportunity to review and comment on a draft 

of the modified notification letter you intend to mail before you send it. 

Second, we respectfully ask that you provide us with the identity of the victims' rights 

organization described in your letter; the name and contact information of the person at 

that organization with whom the Government has been communicating; copies of any 

communications with that organization and the pro-bono lawyers/groups who were 

recommended by that organization; and a description of any non-written communications 

that the Government has had with that organization and the pro-bono lawyers/groups. 

Third, while we appreciate your offer to disclose the names of the lawyers currently 

representing the individuals when you have finished compiling all of that information, we 

would be very grateful if you would provide any contact information you do have, on a 

rolling basis. 

Fourth, would it be possible for you to advise us of the full name of the minor to whom you 

have referred by initials, as well as the identities of the three individuals whom the 

Government notified about the deferred-prosecution agreement shortly after its signing (as 

One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 250 Australian Avenue South West Palm Beach. FL 33401 

p 561.659.8300 f 561.835.8691 www.agwpa.com 
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indicated in your letter of December 13, 2007)? 

Fifth, please recall that Mr. Sloman wrote to Judge Mon October 25, 2007 that "The 
United States takes no position as to the validity of any such claim under this statute." To 
avoid any appearance that the United States is endorsing or encouraging litigation by the 
identified individuals, we believe that such a statement should be included in any 
notification letter. 

I look fo and to receiving your input on these issues. Until then, I remain, 

Jack A. Goldberger 

JAG/na 
cc: Jeffrey E. Epstein 
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ATTERBURY, GOLDBERGER & WEISS, P.A. 
250 Australian Avenue South 

Suite 1400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

(561) 659-8300 
Fax: (561) 835-8691 

EAKIRANAMLnAkfeDnRAFIEET 

DATE: July 10, 2008 

TO: Esquire 

FAX NO.: 

FROM: Jack A. Goldberger, Esquire 

REMARKS: Jeffrey Epstein 

TOTAL PAGES: 3  , including cover sheet 

*** PLEASE NOTE - CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING ' 

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS 

ADDRESSED AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED. CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT 

FROM DISCLOSURE  UNDER APPLICABLE LAW. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or 

the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified 

that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 

communication In error, please notify us Immediately by telephone, and return the original message to us at the 

above address via the U.S. Postal Mall Service. Thar* you for your cooperation. 
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July 10, 2008 

, Esq. 
Assistant United States Attorney 
500 S. Australian Avenue 
4'h Floor, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

& FACSIMILE 

Re: Jeffrey E. Epstein 

Dear Ms. 

FAX NO. 5618358691 P. 02 

I JOSEPH R.ATTERBURY 

f JACK A. GOLDBERGER 

JASON S.WEISS 

Board Certified CrfiniediTrid Attorney 
t Member or New Jersey & Florida Bars 

Thank you for your letter of yesterday. Kindly allow me a few follow-up points. 

First, we respectfully request a reasonable opportunity to review and comment on a draft 

of the modified notification letter you intend to mail before you send it. 

Second, we respectfully ask that you provide us with the identity of the victims' rights 

organization described in your letter; the name and contact information of the person at 

that organization with whom the Government has been communicating; copies of any 

communications with that organization and the pro-bono lawyers/groups who were 

recommended by that organization; and a description of any non-written communications 

that the Government has had with that organization and the pro-bono lawyers/groups. 

Third, while we appreciate your offer to disclose the names of the lawyers currently 

representing the individuals when you have finished compiling all of that information, we 

would be very grateful if you would provide any contact information you do have, on a 

rolling basis. 

Fourth, would it be possible for you to advise us of the full name of the minor to whom you 

have referred by initials, as well as the identities of the three individuals whom the 

Government notified about the deferred-prosecution agreement shortly after its signing (as 

One Clearlake Centre. Suite 1400 250 Australian Avenue South Wesc Palm Beach. FL 33401 

p 561.659.8300 f 561.835.8691 www.agwpa.com 
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indicated in your letter of December 13, 2007)? 

Fifth, please recall that Mr. Sloman wrote to Judge= on October 25, 2007 that "The 

United States takes no position as to the validity of any such claim under this statute." To 

avoid any appearance that the United States is endorsing or encouraging litigation by the 

identified individuals, we believe that such a statement should be included in any 

notification letter. 

I look fonyard to receiving your input on these issues. Until then, I remain, 

1Jack A. Goldberger 

JAG/na 
cc: Jeffrey E. Epstein 
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(USAFLS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

(USAFLS) 
u y , 008 1:04 PM 

man Jeff 

esponse o .•erger e er 

Here are my thoughts: 

I. Notification only by mail: For those girls who are currently not represented (or for whom we do not know of 
any representation), we intend to contact the victims by telephone to tell them of the resolution and to get mailing 
addresses to send the written notification or to determine if they have secured counsel to send it to them. For the 
girls who are represented, contact will be made by telephone followed by the mailing of the notification. I think a 
"live" thank you is the least that is required at this point and a "check in" to make sure that girls who need 
counseling arc getting it. (FBI has already arranged counseling for several girls.) In any written response to Mr. 
Goldberger, I would simply ignore this request. 

2. Separate mailings: I have no objection to this change. The notice was drafted the way it was so that Epstein 
would only have to sign one document rather than 33. Since he isn't going to sign any, that change is fine with 
me. 

3. Notification limited to the information on the first page of the draft notification: In light of Epstein's refusal 
to sign the acknowledgement, I think some additional explanation is required. I will prepare that revision and 
send to you shortly. 

4. Eliminate the Acknowledgement portion: I have no objection to this. 
5. Supplement the notification with our previous statement that we are not vouching for the veracity of any 

claim: I would reject this request and, in our response to Goldberger, state that we have limited our list to those 
whom we were prepared to name in an indictment and, accordingly, we believe that there is proof beyond a 
reasonable doubt that each was a victim of Epstein's. 

6. Explain why the acknowledgement is required: In our response to Goldberger, I think we should explain that 
the acknowledgement language was meant to create a means for proving the existence of the agreement without 
having to provide copies of the Non-Prosecution Agreement, which contains a confidentiality clause. While I 
have no objection to revising the language, I think that Epstein's position will lead to litigation regarding the need 
to disclose the MI agreement, which is contrary to the parties' interest in confidentiality. I agree that we cannot 
force him to sign the acknowledgement, but he must accept the consequences of that decision. 

7. Names of pro bono lawyers and information regarding their communications: I have already advised Mr. 
Goldberger that I will provide him with the names and contact information of attorneys who represent the victims, 
so I have no objection to that. I also have no objection to telling him that they were recommended by the Crime 
Victims Rights Advocacy Group based upon a referral from the Justice Department. Other than that, I have no 
intention of disclosing any "communications" that I had with them. 

I will take a crack at revising the victim notifications and drafting a response to Goldberger. Any other thoughts I should 
incorporate? 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

Tracking: 
1 
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Recipient 

(USAFLS) 

Sidman. Jeff (USAFLS) 

Road 

Read: 7/9/2008 126 PM 

Read. 7/9/2008 1:05 PM 

2 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern niorim ...frn...,, 

cLeit).) 5 

NOTIFICATION ( 

NOTICE: IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 18, UNITED 
STATES CODE, SECTION 3509(d) AND FLORIDA LAW, 
THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT IS TO BE TREATED AS 
CONFIDENTIAL AND SHALL NOT BE DISCLOSED 
EXCEPT IN CONNECTION WITH A LEGAL 
PROCEEDING. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 3340! 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile: 

June 30, 2008 

NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIMS 

On Rine 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea 
of guilty to violations of Florida Statutes Sections 796.07 (felony solicitation of prost itution) 
and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in prostitution), in the 15th Judicial C i rcuit in 
and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-009454AXXXMB and 2 008_cf_ 
009381AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve months' imprisonment to be 
followed by eighteen months' of Community Control 1, the first six months of which must 
be served imprisoned at the Palm Beach County Detention Facility. 

reed to In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has ag 
defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 
conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 
enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 
rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 
had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 
of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 
attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 
Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 
authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 
which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 
the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 
as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 
less." 

Initials of Jeffrey Epstein  Initials of Guy Lewis 
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NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIMS 
JUNE 30, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 3 

Through this letter, this Office hereby provides Notice that the individuals identified 
below are individuals whom the United States was prepared to name as a victim of an 
enumerated offense. 

Identified Individuals 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Dated:   By: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I have received this Notification from my attorney, Guy Lewis, Esquire, have read it 

and discussed it with my attorney, and I hereby acknowledge that it accurately sets forth my 

understanding and agreement with the Office of the United States Attorney for the Southern 

District of Florida regarding the notification and rights of identified victims. I understand 

Initials of Jeffrey Epstein  .  Initials of Guy Lewis 
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NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIMS 
JUNE 30, 2008 
PAGE 3 OF 3 

that an exact copy of this Notification will be provided to each identified individual, except 

that the names of all other identified individuals will be redacted, and I hereby waive any 

evidentiary challenges to the introduction of a copy of this document—even in redacted 

form—in any judicial proceeding between any identified individual and myself. 

Dated: 
. Jeffrey Epstein 

Witnessed by: 
Guy Lewis, Esquire 
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JUL-09-2008 WED 12:06 PM 

July 9, 2008 

BM Esq. 
Assistant United States Attorney 
United States Attorney's Office 
500 South Australian Avenue 
4th Floor, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

& FACSIMILE 

FAX NO. 5618358691 P. 02 

JOSEPH R. ATTERBURY 

I JACK A.GOLDBERGER 

JASON S.WEISS 

bom•d Certified Coolies! Attookry 

Member of Now Jersey & %nib Pan 

Re: Jeffrey E. Epstein 

Dear Ms. IIIIII 

Thank you for your letter to me dated July 8, 2008 and the draft document dated, e-mailed and faxed 

to me at my office on June 30, 2008, styled "Notification of Identified Victims." 1 would like to 

address a few related issues. 

First, please note that we have several requests concerning any such notification. Specifically, we 

request that: 

(a) Any notification be sent to any individual by mail (or served upon their attorney, 

to the extent known), and we respectfully object to any service by hand, a method of 

service which carries the concomitant risk of conversations regarding the notification 

that potentially would place the federal authorities in a position of being advocates 

for civil litigation; 

(b) Any notification be effectuated by a separate mailing to each individual without 

the inclusion of any language that appeared on the second page of your June 30, 2008 

memorandum; i.e. rather than including in each notification a large section listing 

"identified individuals" with redactions other than the name of the recipient (which 

we contend would be a clear and impermissible signal to any individual that the 

notification is a broad notification to numerous other alleged victims). Rather, a 

simple one page notification directed only to the recipient, and limited to the 

information currently on the first page of your draft memorandum would suffice. 

One Clearlako Centre, Sulce 1400 250Australian Avenue South West Palm Beach, FL 33401 

p 561.659.8300 1561.835.8691 wv.w.atepa.com 
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(c) You eliminate from any notification any language that is currently contained in 

the "acknowledgment" section of the June 30, 2008 memorandum; and 

(d) You supplement the notification with the Government's previously made 

representation that it is not vouching for the veracity of any claim by any identified 

individual. See Letter from J. Sloman to E. (10/25/07). 

Second, please note also that we do not understand your request that Mr. Epstein and his attorneys 

execute the rider / acknowledgment contained within your June 30 hand-delivered draft. 

Specifically, we do not believe that the Non-Prosecution Agreement requires Mr. Epstein's execution 

of any such additional stipulation. Because we want to ensure that Mr. Epstein continues to strictly 

comply with the letter of the parties' agreement, we respectfully ask that you explain why you 

believe that the Non-Prosecution Agreement requires execution of your stipulation. 

Our understanding of the Non-Prosecution Agreement is that it does not require Mr. Epstein to 

"acknowledge" anything not already contained within the four corners of the written agreement. The 

agreement certainly contains no written term obligating that he "waive any evidentiary challenge to 

the introduction of a copy" of any "Notification of Identified Victims" in "any judicial proceeding 

between any identified individual" and Mr. Epstein, as your memorandum currently requests. 

Further, please note that your June 30 stipulation, as drafted, is not limited to Section 2255 

proceedings. Rather, your June 30 draft requires Mr. Epstein to waive evidentiary challenges in "any 

judicial proceeding" - - which clearly exceeds the bounds of the parties' written agreement. 

Third, I would respectfully request that you provide me with the names of the "pro bono lawyers" 

who, you indicated to me at our June 30 meeting at my office, were intending to represent certain 

persons identi lied on your June 30 draft notification, as well as any knowledge that the Government 

has as to how they were selected, and what communications the Government has had with them to 

date. 

Finally, please know that it is Mr. Epstein's firm intent to fulfill strictly each term and condition of 

his Non-Prosecution Agreement with the Government. Nothing in this letter should be construed, 

however, as waiving any defense that may be available to Mr. Epstein under the parties' written 

agreement. 

I look forward to your response. Until then, I remain, 

CC: 

trul yours, 

• A. Goldberger 

Jeffrey Epstein 
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ATTERBURY, GOLDBERGER & WEISS, P.A. 
250 Australian Avenue South 

Suite 1400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

(561) 659-8300 
Fax: (561) 835-8691 

FAX TRANSMITTAL COVER SHEET 

DATE: July 9, 2008 

TO: EMI MN Esquire 

FAX NO.: 

FROM: Jack A. Goldberger, Esquire 

REMARKS: Jeffrey Epstein 

TOTAL PAGES: 3  including cover sheet 

'4* PLEASE NOTE - CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING *** 

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL. OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS 

ADDRESSED AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED. CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT 

FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or 

the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified 

that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 

communication in error, please notify us immediately by telephone, and return the original message to us at the 

above address via the U.S. Postal Mail Service. Thank you for your cooperation. 
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tlit 
Attqk 

July 9, 2008 

Esq. 
Assistant United States Attorney 
United States Attorney's Office 
500 South Australian Avenue 
4'h Floor, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

SENT VIA E-MAIL & FACSIMILE 

Re: Jeffrey E. Epstein 

Dear Ms. 
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• JOSEPH R.ATTERBURY 

• t JACK A. GOLDBERGER 

JASON S.WEISS 

"Board Certified Criminal Trial Attorney 
t Member of New Jersey & Horkla Bars 

Thank you for your letter to me dated July 8, 2008 and the draft document dated, e-mailed and faxed 
to me at my office on June 30, 2008, styled "Notification of Identified Victims." I would like to 
address a few related issues. 

First, please note that we have several requests concerning any such notification. Specifically, we 
request that: 

(a) Any notification be sent to any individual by mail (or served upon their attorney, 
to the extent known), and we respectfully object to any service by hand, a method of 
service which carries the concomitant risk of conversations regarding the notification 
that potentially would place the federal authorities in a position of being advocates 
for civil litigation; 

(b) Any notification be effectuated by a separate mailing to each individual without 
the inclusion of any language that appeared on the second page of your June 30, 2008 
memorandum; i.e. rather than including in each notification a large section listing 
"identified individuals" with redactions other than the name of the recipient (which 
we contend would be a clear and impermissible signal to any individual that the 
notification is a broad notification to numerous other alleged victims). Rather, a 
simple one page notification directed only to the recipient, and limited to the 
information currently on the first page of your draft memorandum would suffice. 

One Cloarlake Centre, Suite 1400 250 Australian Avenue South West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
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EFTA00183505



(c) You eliminate from any notification any language that is currently contained in 
the "acknowledgment" section of the June 30, 2008 memorandum; and 

(d) You supplement the notification with the Government's previously made 
representation that it is not vouching for the veracity of any claim by any identified 
individual. See Letter from J. Sloman to E. (10/25/07). 

Second, please note also that we do not understand your request that Mr. Epstein and his attorneys 
execute the rider / acknowledgment contained within your June 30 hand-delivered draft. 
Specifically, we do not believe that the Non-Prosecution Agreement requires Mr. Epstein's execution 
of any such additional stipulation. Because we want to ensure that Mr. Epstein continues to strictly 
comply with the letter of the parties' agreement, we respectfully ask that you explain why you 
believe that the Non-Prosecution Agreement requires execution of your stipulation. 

Our understanding of the Non-Prosecution Agreement is that it does not require Mr. Epstein to 
"acknowledge" anything not already contained within the four corners of the written agreement. The 
agreement certainly contains no written term obligating that he "waive any evidentiary challenge to 
the introduction of a copy" of any "Notification of Identified Victims" in "any judicial proceeding 
between any identified individual" and Mr. Epstein, as your memorandum currently requests. 
Further, please note that your June 30 stipulation, as drafted, is not limited to Section 2255 
proceedings. Rather, your June 30 draft requires Mr. Epstein to waive evidentiary challenges in "any 
judicial proceeding" - - which clearly exceeds the bounds of the parties' written agreement. 

Third, I would respectfully request that you provide me with the names of the "pro bono lawyers" 
who, you indicated to me at our June 30 meeting at my office, were intending to represent certain 
persons identified on your June 30 draft notification, as well as any knowledge that the Government 
has as to how they were selected, and what communications the Government has had with them to 
date. 

Finally, please know that it is Mr. Epstein's firm intent to fulfill strictly each term and condition of 
his Non-Prosecution Agreement with the Government. Nothing in this letter should be construed, 
however, as waiving any defense that may be available to Mr. Epstein under the parties' written 
agreement. 

I look forward to your response. Until then, I remain, 

A. Goldberger 

cc: Jeffrey Epstein 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

.500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 3340! 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

July 9, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE 
Jack A. Goldberger, Esq. 
Atterbury, Goldberger & Weiss, P.A. 
One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 
250 Australian Ave S. 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-5015 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Mr. Goldberger: 

Thank you for your letter of today's date regarding the proposed Victim Notification. 
Let me address some of the items in your letter. 

We have no objection to doing individual mailings. The Notification was drafted in 
that way in order to minimize the number of documents that Mr. Epstein would sign. Now 
that you have raised an objection to signing the Acknowledgment, each notification will list 
only the victim who is being notified. 

In light of Mr. Epstein's refusal to sign the Acknowledgment, the Acknowledgment 
portion has been deleted and the notification has been slightly modified in order to provide 
more complete information and it has been formatted as a letter rather than a more formal 
"Notification" document. 

We will not be including any statement that the U.S. Attorney's Office is not vouching 
for the veracity of any claim. As you know, the U.S. Attorney's modification of the 2255 
portion of the Agreement now limits our victim list to those persons whom the United States 
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JACK GOLDBERGER, ESQ. 

JULY 9, 2008 
PAGE 2 

was prepared to include in an indictment. This means that, pursuant to Justice Department 
policy, these are individuals for whom the United States believes it has proof beyond a 
reasonable doubt that each of them was a victim of an enumerated offense. There will be no 
statement one way or the other regarding the validity of any claim. 

You have asked for an explanation of why I believe the Acknowledgment portion is 
required by the terms of the Agreement. Under a strict reading of the Agreement, it is not 
required, other than to Acknowledge that the United States has performed its obligation of 
providing Mr. Epstein with a list of identified victims following his guilty plea and 
sentencing. The purpose of the Acknowledgment was to create one single document 
incorporating the parties' agreement on the single topic of the right to proceed under 18 
U.S.C. § 2255. This would avoid litigation regarding the victims' rights to have access to 
the original Non-Prosecution Agreement. Without such an express Acknowledgment by Mr. 
Epstein that the Notice contains the substance of that Agreement, I believe that the victims 
will have a justification to petition for the entire agreement, which is contrary to the 
confidentiality clause that the parties have signed. If you believe that particular words are 
objectionable, I am happy to consider a modification. 

As I mentioned to you last week, I will provide you with the names of the attorneys 
currently representing the victims when we have compiled all of that information. Some of 
the victims are represented by attorneys from the South Carolina Victim Assistance Network 
and the Maryland Crime Victims Resource Center, both of which were recommended by a 
victims' rights organization that receives grants from the Justice Department. 

If you have any suggestions for a modification of the Acknowledgment, please let me 
know. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

By: 

cc: AUSA 

Assistant United States Attorney 
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U.S. Department ofJustice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

Villafaha 
500 S. Australian Ave, 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

TO: Jack Alan Goldbereer 

DATE: July 9. 2008 

FAX NO. it OF PAGES:  3

PHONE NO. NO. RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: Assistant U.S. Attorney 

PHONE NO. 

COMMENTS: 
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P. 1 

* * * TRANSMISSION RESULT REPORT ( JUL. 9.2008 4:05PM ) * * * 

TTI USAO WPB FL 

DATE TIME ADDRESS MODE TIME PAGE RESULT PERS. NAME FILE 

JUL. 9. 4:04PM TES 0'36" P. 3 OK 412 

: BATCH 
L : SEND LATER 
S : STANDARD 
A-: ASYNC MODE 

C : CONFIDENTIAL 
@ : FORWARDING 
D : DETAIL 
1-: MIL_STD MODE 

P : POLLING 
E : ECM 
F : FINE 
G-: RICOH-MG3/COMPATIBLE MODE 

M : MEMORY 
> : REDUCTION 
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ATTERBURY, GOLDBERGER & WEISS, P.A. 
250 Australian Avenue South 

Suite 1400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

(561) 659-8300 
Fax: (561) 835-8691 

FAX TRANSMITTAL COVER SHEET 

DATE: July 8, 2008 

TO: ll, Assistant U.S. Attorney 

FAX NO.: 

FROM: Nayanira, Assistant to Jack A. Goldberger, Esquire 

REMARKS: Jeffrey Epstein 

TOTAL PAGES: 2  , Including cover sheet 

•" PLEASE NOTE - CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING •" 

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS 
ADDRESSED AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED. CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT 
FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW. If the reader of this message Is not the intended recipient or 
the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified 
that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication Is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please notify us immediately by telephone, and return the original message to us at the 
above address via the U.S. Postal Mail Service. Thank you for your cooperation. 
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July 8, 2008 

AUSA 
U.S. Department of Justice 
United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 
500 South Australian Avenue, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

FAX NO. 5618358691 P. 02 

JOSEPH R.ATTERBURY 

• I JACK A.GOLDBERGER 

JASON S.WEISS 

fkeml (Am iirled Criminal Trial AV 01 ffity 

Homlu,r of New jersey & florldn Rat 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Marie, 

1 am out of the office today. I will response to your fax of July 8, 2008 by return of fax tomorrow. 

Very truly yours, 

k-fr
Jack A. Goldberger 
Dictated but not mid 

JAG/na 

One Clearlake Centre. Suite 1400 250 Australian Avenue South West Palm Beach. FL 33401 

p 561.659.8300 (561.835.8691 www.agwpa.com 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 820-87/1 
Facsimile: 

July 8, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE AND ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Jack A. Goldberger, Esq. 
Atterbury, Goldberger & Weiss, P.A. 
One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 
25'0 Australian Ave S. 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-5015 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Mr. Goldberger: 

In accordance with the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement, on June 30, 2008, 
the United States Attorney's Office provided you with a list of thirty-one individuals "whom 
it was prepared to name in an Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. 
Epstein." Yesterday, I provided you with the identification of another victim whom I had 
erroneously left off of that list. At the time the list was provided, Special Agent-
and I impressed upon you the need to finalize this last piece of the agreement as quickly as 
possible so that we could fulfill our victim notification obligations. In deference to your 
vacation, we allowed you a week to provide us with any objections or requested 
modifications to the list and/or the Notification language. Yesterday, I contacted you via 
telephone and e-mail, but received no response. 

Accordingly, the United States hereby notifies you that it will distribute the victim 
notifications tomorrow, July 9, 2008, to each of the thirty-two identified victims, either 
directly or via their counsel. A carbon copy of each notification will be provided to you, and 
the notification will list you as the contact person for any civil litigation, if the victim decides 
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JACK QOLDBERGER, ESQ. 
JULY 8, 2008 
PAGE 2 

to pursue damages. If the United States learns that a civil suit has been filed against Mr. 
Epstein and he has denied that one of these victims is entitled to proceed under 18 U.S.C. 
§ 2255, that will be considered a breach of the Non-Prosecution Agreement and the United 
States will proceed accordingly. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

Assistant United States Attorney 

cc: AUSA 
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P. 1 

* * * TRANSMISSION RESULT REPORT ( JUL. 8.2008 2:11PM ) * * * 

III USAO WPB FL 

DATE TIME ADDRESS MODE TIME PAGE RESULT PERS. NAME FILE 

JUL. 8. 2:10PM =TES 0'34" P. 3 OK 398 

# : BATCH 
L : SEND LATER 
S : STANDARD 
A-: ASYNC MODE 

C : CONFIDENTIAL 
: FORWARDING 

D : DETAIL 
1-: MIL_STD MODE 

P : POLLING M : MEMORY 
E : ECM > : REDUCTION 
F : FINE 
G-: RICOH-MG3ICOMPATIBLE MODE 
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TO: 

U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S. Australian Ave 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561) 8204711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

Jack Alan Goldberger 

DATE: July 8. 2008 

FAX NO. 

PHONE NO. 

# OF PAGES: 3 

RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: 

PHONE NO. 

, Assistant U.S. Attorney 

COMMENTS: 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach. FL 33401 
(560 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

June 27, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE AND ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Jack A. Goldberger, Esq. 
Atterbury, Goldberger & Weiss, P.A. 
One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 
250 Australian Ave S. 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-5015 

Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Kornspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Messrs. Goldberger and Black: 

Thank you for providing me with the proposed plea agreement between Mr. Epstein and the 
State Attorney's Office. The U.S. Attorney's Office hereby provides Notice that the proposed 
sentencing provision does not comply with the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 

The second sentencing paragraph of the proposed plea agreement reads: 

On 08CF00938 I AMB, the Defendant is sentenced to 18 months Community Control 
(one). As a special condition of this Community Control, the Defendant must 

serve the first 6 months in the Palm Beach County Detention Facility ... 

The Non-Prosecution Agreement specifically provides: 

Epstein shall be sentenced to consecutive terms of twelve (12) months and six (6) 
months in county jail for all charges, . . . without probation or community control in 
lieu of imprisonment. 

Thus, the proposed plea agreement with the State Attorney's Office does not comply with the terms 
of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. To comply with the Agreement, Mr. Epstein must make a 
binding recommendation of eighteen months  imprisonment, which means confinement twenty-four 
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JACK GOLDBERGER, ESQ. 
ROY BLACK, ESQ. 
JUNE 27, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

hours a day at the County Jail, and the judge must accept that recommendation. Community control 
must follow that term of incarceration. 

Secondly, we have not been provided with a copy of the Information filed in case number 
08CF009381AMB. I want to confirm that Mr. Epstein is being charged with the substantive offense 
of procuring minors to engage in prostitution, not ettemeted procurement. Accordingly, please 
provide me with a copy of the Information at your earliest opportunity. I will be available via e-mail 
throughout the weekend or you may reach me on my cell phone at 561 601-2301. 

Thank you. 

By: 

cc: AUSA 

Sincerely, 

1k. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

ssis an ni e a es Attorney 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

5003 Australian Ave 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

TO: 

DATE: June 27. 2008 

FAX NO. # OF PAGES:  3

Roy Black, Esq. 

PHONE NO. RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: 

PHONE NO. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

COMMENTS: 
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ee ts. U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S. Australian Ave, 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561) 8204711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

TO: Jack Alan Goldberger 

DATE: June 27. 2008 

FAX NO. # OF PAGES:  3 

PHONE N RE: Jeffrey Epstein 

FROM: 

PHONE NO. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

COMMENTS: 
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* * * TRANSMISSION RESULT REPORT ( JUN.27.2008 5:55PM ) * * * 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561)8204711 
Facsimile: 

June 27, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE 
Jack A. Goldberger, Esq. 
Atterbury, Goldberger & Weiss, P.A. 
One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 
250 Australian Ave S. 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-5015 

Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Komspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Messrs. Goldberger and Black: 

I write to follow up on my e-mail correspondence of June 24 and June 26, and my message 
this morning. As of 3:15 p.m., Friday, June 27, 2008, the Office still has not received a copy of a 
proposed plea agreement between Mr. Epstein and the State Attorney's Office, nor has the Office 
received notice of a date and time for a change of plea. 

As you know, the Non-Prosecution Agreement between Mr. Epstein and the Office called 
for Mr. Epstein to plead, be sentenced, and begin serving his sentence not later than January 4, 
2008-almost six months ago. The Office has continued that deadline to allow Mr. Epstein to raise 
various issues with the Department of Justice, but repeatedly advised that, once those appeals were 
completed, Mr. Epstein would need to perform the terms of the agreement within a short window 
thereafter. Now that those appeals have been exhausted, we promptly informed counsel for Mr. 
Epstein that he must enter his plea, be sentenced, and begin serving his sentence by 5:00 on Monday, 
June 30, 2008. 

This week I have sent two e-mails and left a message with Mr. Black's receptionist asking 
for the date and time of the change of plea and for a copy of the proposed plea agreement between 
Mr. Epstein and the State Attorney's Office in accordance with the terms of the Non-Prosecution 
Agreement. I have received no response to any of those requests. 
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JACK GOLDBERGER, ESQ. 
ROY BLACK, ESQ. 
JUNE 27, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

I have received correspondence from counsel for a witness asking to cancel or continue the 
witness's appearance because he "understand[s] that there has been a recent development with 
respect to Mr. Epstein in that he intends to plead guilty in Florida state court on Monday pursuant 
to a deferred prosecution agreement with your office that has already been executed" and that he has 
"learned from Mr. Epstein's attorney that the plea is scheduled to take place on Monday morning." 
I also understand that there is an entry on Judge McSorley's docket that a hearing is scheduled for 
8:30 a.m. on Monday. 

Both parties have agreed that it is a material term of the Non-Prosecution Agreement that the 
United States shall have the right to review the terms of any agreements between Epstein and the 
State Attorney's Office prior to entering into those agreements. If, indeed, the change of plea is set 
for 8:30 Monday morning, the agreement with the State Attorney's Office must be provided to the 
Office by 4:30 today to allow adequate time to review and comment. Failure to provide this 
opportunity shall be deemed a breach of the Agreement. 

Accordingly, I again ask that you provide me with a copy of the Plea Agreement with the 
State Attorney's Office and notification of the date and time of the change of plea. 

Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 

By: 

cc: AUSA 

Assistant United States Attorney 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

TO: 

DATE: 

FAX NO. # OF PAGES:  3

500 S. Australian Ave, 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561) 8204711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

Roy Black. Esq. 

June 27. 2008 

PHONE NO. RE: 

FROM: 

PHONE NO. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

COMMENTS: 
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500S. Australian Ave, 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile 

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET 

Jack Alan Goldberger 

U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

TO: 

DATE: June 27, 2008 

FAX NO. # OF PAGES: 3 

PHONE NO. RE: EPSTEIN 

FROM: ME , Assistant U.S. Attorney 

PHONE NO. 

COMMENTS: 
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(USAFLS) 

From: , (USAFLS) 
Sent: ues ay, une , 8 3:08 PM 
To: Roy BLACK 
Subject: RE: FW: Jeffrey Epstein 

Hi Roy -- Is this the best number to call? (305) 371-6421 

 Original Message 
From: Roy BLACK [mailto: 
Sent: Tuesday, June 24, 2008 3:02 PM 
To: . (USAFLS) 
Cc: jack goldberger 
Subject: Re: FW: Jeffrey Epstein 

Marie that is a good time. I also want to conference Jack Goldberger into the 

call. This will be a wrap up call. Roy 

(USAFLS)" 
> 6/24/2008 12:23 PM >>> Dear Roy: 

Jeff Sloman contacted me and asked me to return your call regarding the Epstein 

matter. I am forwarding to you an e-mail that I sent to Jay Lefkowitz last 

night. 

Karen and I can call you at 3:30 to speak about your list of issues. 

If that time does not work, please let me know what times you are available. 

Thank you. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

From: . (USAFLS) 
Sent: Monda June 23, 2008 5:55 PM 

To: ; Jay Lefkowitz 
1 
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Cc: ) 
Subject: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Mr. Lefkowitz: 

I understand that the Deputy Attorney General has completed his review 
of the Epstein matter and has determined that federal prosecution of 
Mr. Epstein's case is appropriate. 

Accordingly, Mr. Epstein has until the close of business on Monday, 
June 30, 2008, to comply with the terms and conditions of the agreement 
between the United States and Mr. Epstein (as modified by the U.S. 
Attorney's December 19th letter to Ms. Sanchez), including entry of a 
guilty plea, sentencing, and surrendering to begin his sentence of 
imprisonment. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at the number 
shown below. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 
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(USAFLS) 

From: , NM (USAFLS) 
Sent: Itill, une , 8 4:05 PM 
To: ger 
Cc: 
Subject: Je rey pstein greement 

Dear Roy and Jack: 

I am just writing to re-state that it is the Government's position that we have a signed, binding agreement and 
that there is no need for further modification. 

Please keep us informed of the date and time of the change of plea and sentencing. 

Thank you. 

Assistant U.S. Attome 

Tracking: 
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(USAFLS) 

Sent: Ms ay,11-1.08 11:16 AM 
From: . . (USAFLS) 

To: Goldberger 
Cc: 
Subject: Jeffrey 

Dear Roy and Jack: 

I have been reviewing the deferred prosecution agreement and wanted to remind you that the agreement states: 
"Epstein shall provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all proposed agreements with the State Attorney's 
Office prior to entering into those agreements." Please provide me with any proposed agreements at your 
earliest opportunity, and also please provide me with the date and time of the change of plea. 

Thank you. 

Assistant U.S. Attorne 

Tracking: 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S. Australian Ave, Ste 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

August 15, 2008 

DELIVERY BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Jay P. Letkowitz, Esq. 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
Citigroup Center 
153 East 53rd Street 
New York, New York 10022-4675 

Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Kornspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Jay and Roy: 

Thank you for your response to my earlier e-mail. Our communications with Mr. 
Black and later with Mr. Letkowitz were solely to determine what Mr. Epstein considered 
to be the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. We appreciate your answering our 
question with finality. You have now made clear that Mr. Epstein did not accept the 
December modification, and accordingly, the offer to make that modification is a nullity. 

Pursuant to our Agreement, I will prepare an Amended Notification that contains the 
names of additional identified victims. As you know, Judge had selected the Podhurst 
firm to serve as the attorney representative for the victims. Assuming that Mr. Josefsberg is 
still amenable to the appointment, we will provide him with the victim list so that he may 
begin his service. 

Finally, as you are aware, the United States has been ordered to produce the 
Non-Prosecution Agreement. In accordance with that Order, we will produce the September 
Agreement with the October Addendum signed by your client. We understand that Mr. 
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JAY P. LEFKOWITZ, ESQ. 
ROY BLACK, ESQ. 
AUGUST 15, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

Goldberger did not provide the state court with a true copy of the complete Agreement, and 
he should take steps to correct that error. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney 

cc: , Chief, Northern Division 
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(USAFLS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Jay and Roy: 

Response to your e-ma 

Please see the attached. Thank you. 

t 
080815 
Ltr to Lefkow... 

Assistant U.S. Attorne 

Tracking: 

(USAFLS) 
2:12 PM 

oy BLACK 

I 
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Recipient Read 

Roy BLACK 

fl
(USAFLS) 

Sioman. Jeff (USAFLS) Read: 8/15/2008 2 13 PM 

(USAFLS) Read: 8/15/2006 2.24 PM 

2 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United Slates Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S. Australian Ave, Ste 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 3340! 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile: 

August 15, 2008 

DELIVERY BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Jay P. Lefkowitz, Esq. 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
Citigroup Center 
153 East 53rd Street 
New York, New York 10022-4675 

Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Kornspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Jay and Roy: 

Thank you for your response to my earlier e-mail. Our communications with Mr. 
Black and later with Mr. Lefkowitz were solely to determine what Mr. Epstein considered 
to be the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. We appreciate your answering our 
question with finality. You have now made clear that Mr. Epstein did not accept the 
December modification, and accordingly, we will now consider that modification to be a 
nullity. 

Pursuant to our Agreement, I will prepare an Amended Notification that contains the 
names of additional identified victims. In accordance with Paragraph 7B of the October 
Addendum, please provide me by Monday afternoon with a proposed written submission to 
the independent third-party who will select the attorney representative. 

Finally, as you are aware, the United States has been ordered to produce the 
Non-Prosecution Agreement. In accordance with that Order, we will produce the September 
Agreement with the October Addendum signed by your client. We understand that Mr. 
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JAY P. LEFKOWITL, ESQ. 
ROY BLACK, ESQ. 
AUGUST 15, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

Goldberger did not provide the state court with a true copy of the complete Agreement, and 
he should take steps to correct that error. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 

By 

Assistant United States Attorney 

cc: Chief, Northern Division 
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MillaM=.  (USAFLS) F LS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: Ili.sigt(„.„. 
; Sloman, Jeff (USAFLS); 

• (USAFLS) 
: o -up pon 

We either have to do the October Agreement or the December Agreement, I don't think we can let them get 
away with doing neither. Two-thirds of the victims do not have any representation. 

The language of the agreement gives us the right to select the Special Master, and we should choose someone 
quickly. We then have to create a written submission, and we should give them a very short time frame to do 
so. If we keep their feet to the fire, this can be completed within a week. 

Assistant U.S. Attorne 

From: (USAFLS) 
Sen 
To: 

008 11:12 AM 
(USAFLS); Sloman, Jeff (USAFLS); 

(USAFLS) 
Subject: RE: Follow-up point 

Are we really proposing the Special Master? Is he still on board? 

I thought we had said that compliance with that was an impossibility given the passage of time? 

From: S MIE
2
R(USAFLS) 

.ust11.1 1FIS :5 Sloman,To 
n:08 

Afri (USA Jeff (USAFLS); O; 
(USAFLS) 
Subject: FW: Follow-up point 

Just received a response from Jay. I'm not sure what he means about talking "this morning," since I haven't 
spoken to him today. 

I don't believe that we should wait two weeks for them to confer. They have the ability to confer over the 
telephone or to come and visit him (as reported in the Palm Beach Post). 

Here is my proposed response: 

Dear Jay: 

Thank you for your response. It is our position that Mr. Epstein accepted the December modification by his 
performance. If you prefer to return to the language of the October addendum, we have no objection, but, as 
you know, I have been ordered to produce the Non-Prosecution Agreement and I cannot wait two weeks to do 
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so. Please advise me by noon on Monday in writing, preferably signed by your client, whether Mr. Epstein 
intends to perform according to the terms of the December modification or whether he elects to return to the 
October addendum. 

If Mr. Epstein elects to perform according to the terms of the October addendum, then please prepare a 
proposed written submission to the Special Master, in accordance with Paragraph 7B, for my review by Monday 
afternoon. The extensive delays of the past will no longer be tolerated, and the Office will insist upon a 
showing of good faith performance in the selection of the attorney representative and all other terms of the 
Agreement. 

Sincerely, 
Marie 

Assistant U.S. Attorne 

From: Jay Lefkowitz [milt() 
Sent: Fria Au 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: Re: Follow-up point 

ust 15 2008 10:53 AM 
USAFLS) 
; Roy BLACK; Martin Weinberg 

Marie - thanks for responding to my email. You have narrowed down some of the implementation issues. 

As I told you this morning, we cannot accept your contention that Mr. Epstein is bound by an agreement he 
didn't sign as opposed to one he did sign, particularly in light of my written communications to your office 
dated December 21, 2007 and December 26, 2007. However, before we can make a determination whether to 

adopt the December language as you have now explained it, we need to confer with our client, which we will be 
able to do within the next two weeks. 

I look forward to speaking with you soon to resolve these issues. 

Jay 

From: (USAFLS)" 
Sent: 08/14/2008 03:27 PM AST 
To: J 
Cc: " 

Subject: RE: Follow-up point 

Dear Jay: 

; "Roy BLACK" 

2 
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The modification contained in the December letter is clear and simple, that is why we were not surprised by Mr. 
Epstein's and his attorneys' actions affirming acceptance of the modification. Mr. Epstein's acceptance of the 
modification by pleading guilty was equally clear and simple -- it followed written communications from Mr. 
Sloman and myself that read: "Mr. Epstein has until the close of business on Monday, June 30, 2008, to comply 
with the terms and conditions of the agreement between the United States and Mr. Epstein (as modified by the 
U.S. Attorney's December 19thletter to Ms. Sanchez), including entry of a guilty plea, sentencing, and 
surrendering to begin his sentence of imprisonment." 

As clearly stated in the December letter, only those "individuals whom [the United States] was prepared to 
name in an Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense" are the beneficiaries of the agreement. That is the 
list of names that I provided to Messrs. Goldberger and Tein following the change of plea. Under the 
September/October agreement, all "individuals whom [the United States] has identified as victims" are the 
beneficiaries, so I would prepare a supplement to the earlier list to include identified victims whom we were not 
yet prepared to name in an indictment. 

Again, as stated in the letter, the modification replaces paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Agreement, including 
paragraphs 7A through 7C that are included in the October Addendum. This means that Mr. Epstein's waiver 
of "his right to contest damages up to an amount as agreed to between the identified individual and Epstein" 
will no longer exist, nor will Mr. Epstein's obligation to pay for the victims' counsel. Paragraphs 9 and 10 are 
still in effect. This includes the statement that there is no admission of civil or criminal liability, and that, 
"[e]xcept as to those individuals who elect to proceed EXCLUSIVELY under 18 USC § 2255, Epstein's 
signature [cannot] be construed as admissions or evidence of civil or criminal liability." This addresses your 
question regarding exclusivity. 

I don't think that Mr. Epstein has to make any constructive admissions of conviction. He only needs to admit 
that the 32 girls whose names I have provided to Mr. Goldberger are "victims" of an offense listed in 18 U.S.C. 
2255. 

Please let me know if you have any additional questions. Thank you. 

Assistant U.S. Attorne 

From: Jay Lefkowitz [mailto 
Sent: Au 14 2008 2:39 PM 
To: USAFLS 
Cc: 
Subject: Re: Follow-up point 

Marie - in reviewing your December proposal, there are a couple of things I don't understand. 

What limits are placed upon individuals who proceed under 2255 as if "Mr. Epstein had been tried federally and convicted 
of an enumerated offense." In other words, what individuals would have this right? And would these individual only 
have this right if they proceeded exclusively under 2255? Also, to what enumerated offenses do you think would Mr. 
Epstein have to make constructive admissions of conviction? and how many such offenses? And against whom? 
Remember that while you may have investigated various offenses, he only plead guilty to certain state crimes. 

3 
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Finally, would paragraphs 8-10 of the September Agreement still be operative? 

08/14/2008 12.44 PM 

I am trying hard to understand what you have intended by the December letter. Alex has says he thinks it benefits Jeffrey, 
and I am open to understanding it that way. But I would like some clarity on these issues. 

Thanks -- Jay 

To > 

cc )" `a .
Subject Fotlow-up point 

Hi Jay — I forgot to mention that I can no longer argue that the Court shouldn't force us to produce the 
agreement because we have already provided the victims with the relevant portion when I now understand from 
you that I have NOT provided them with the relevant portion. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

The information contained in this communication is 
confidential, may be attorney-client privileged, may 
constitute inside information, and is intended only for 
the use of the addressee. It is the property of 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP or Kirkland & Ellis International LLP. 
Unauthorized use, disclosure or copying of this 
communication or any part thereof is strictly prohibited 
and may be unlawful. If you have received this 
communication in error, please notify us immediately by 
return e-mail or by e-mail to postmaster@kirkland.com, and 
destroy this communication and all copies thereof, 
including all attachments. 

The information contained in this communication is 
confidential, may be attorney-client privileged, may 
constitute inside information, and is intended only for 
the use of the addressee. It is the property of 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP or Kirkland & Ellis International LLP. 
Unauthorized use, disclosure or copying of this 
communication or any part thereof is strictly prohibited 
and may be unlawful. If you have received this 
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communication in error, please notify us immediately by 
return e-mail or by e-mail to postmaster@kirkland.com, and 
destroy this communication and all copies thereof, 
including all attachments. 

Tracking: 
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Recipient Read 

(USAFLS) 

Siornan, Jeff (USAFLS) 

(USAFLS) 

Read: 8/15/2008 11:17 AM 
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Jay P. lalkowat, P.C. 
To Cell Wnlor nlrodlr 

kakowdetekaklafkl.COnl 

VIA FACSIMILE 

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP 
AP41 AH1114110 IltRIKINVIIM 

Ciligrorra Cnntcr 
153 Eata Ord Stencil 

Now York, Now York 10022-4011 

(22) 44a-4i100 

wwwkalotarkt corn 

August I R, 2008 

United States Attorney's Office 
Southern District of Florida 
500 South Australian Avenue, Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Marie: 

Fauzintikt: 

I write in response to your letter dated August 15. 2008 regarding the civil restitution 
portion of the Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the "Agreement"). Thank you for confirming 
our position that the December modification proposal is not part of the Agreement. As expressed 
by U.S. Attorney Acosta in his December IV. 2007 letter, the unorthodox use of a civil restitution 
statute in a federal plea agreement, which resulted in state charges against Mr. Epstein. has 
caused several miscommunications with respect to the implementation of the terms of that 
Agreement. In order to avoid any further miscommunications and to ensure that the IS U.S.C. 
*2255 aspects of the Agreement are carried out in a proper manner, it would he useful to come 
to an agreement as to the implementation of the civil restitution portion of the Agreement. As 
we have previously stated. Mr. Epstein filly intends to abide by the terms of the Agreement, and 
we hope you appreciate that our ellbrts to resolve any misunderstandings between Mr. Epstein 
and the government about the tones or the Agreement arc intended only to ensure that it is 
carried out fully and fairly. 

In an effort to avoid having either party unintentionally breach the Agreement. we 
suggest that steps be taken to clarify the meaning of paragraphs 7-10. It would he extremely 
helpful to both sides to have an independent third party consider the Agreement and offer the 
final word on how certain c a uses should be interpreted and satisfied. Because the government 
has already enlisted Judge to select the attorney representative under the Agreement. we 
would be amenable to his serving in this role. 

In order to come to an agreement on the exact procedure by which the identified 
individuals will obtain restitution. I am providing you with our thoughts on three issues below. 

Chicano Hong Kong London Los Angolos Munich San rrancioco Washitigton.1).C. 
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KIRKLAND & ELLIS RP 

August I S. 2008 
Page 2 

Once we come to an agreement on the following and you provide a complete and final list of 
identified individuals. it will be appropriate to notify them. 

First. I am concerned by your suggestion that you might want to increase the number of 
individuals on the government's list. I had expected the number to have become smaller, 
because when we spoke prior to signing the agreement, you told me that the government already 
had a list, and we were informed thematicr that the September 24, 2007 list had been narrowed. 
Certainly. anyone who was not on the list prior to September 24. 2007 cannot permissibly be 
added to the list. 

Second. we will cooperate with the government to reach to an agreement as to substance 
of the notification to be sent to the government's list of individuals. Based on the Agreement. 
the information contained in the notification should he limited to (I) the language provided in the 
Agreement dealing with civil restitution (paragraphs 7-10) and (2) the contact intbrmation of the 
selected attorney representative. We object to the inclusion of additional information about the 
investigation of Mr. (Epstein, the terms of the Agreement other than paragraphs 7.10. and the 
identity of other identified 

Third. as you arc aware. the Addendum requires that "the panics will jointly prepare a 
short written submission to the independent third-party regarding the role of the attorney 
representative and regarding Epstein's Agreement to pay such attorney representative his or her 
customary hourly rote for representing such victims subject to the provisions of Paragraph C. 
infra.-  We will certainly cooperate with the government to drat) such a joint submission and 
would he pleased to submit draft language to you for such a joint submission. 

I look forward to working with you to resolve these matters. I believe we have a mutual 
interest in moving past all of these issues so that the civil restitution aspects of the Agreement 
can be fulfilled. 

Sincerely. 

441 
i.elkiawtt% 

cc: Northern Division 
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KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP 
AM. Alla WOO lACIF311‘111•1. 

Jay P. tolkow4i. P.C. 
To C-0lWolor Directly-

lolkowdzkauldand.cOm 

Cdigf0110 CA11101 
153 5:1111 5310 31.1101 

Now York. Now York 10022.4611 

(212) 446-4(M0 

wwW.lorklond Corn 

August I II, 2008 

% 1s...Wilkal 

United S • ey's Office 
Southern District of Florida 
500 South Australian Avenue. Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

Re: slept)! Epsicin 

Dear Marie: 

Factamile: 

I write in response to your letter dated August 15. 2008 regarding the civil restitution 
_Minion of the Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the "Ago.tilnenr). Thank you for confirming 
Aturpesit ion that the Deceitifier. Modification proposal is not part of the Agreement. As expressed 
by U.S. Attorney Acosta in his December 19.3007 letter. the unorthodox use of a civil restitution 
'statute in a federal plea agreeMent. which resulted in state charges. against 'Mr. Epstein. .has 
caused several miscommunications with respect to the implementation of the terms of that 
Agreement. In order to avoid any further miscommunications and to ensure that the IS U.S.C. 

2255 aspects of the Agreement are carried out in a proper manner. it would be useful to come 
to an agreement as to 09 implementation of At: civil restitution portion of:* Agreement, As 
we.have previously stared. Mr. Epstein fully intends TO abide by the terms of the Agreement, and 
we hope Yeti aPPreciale that our 0rIbilS.10. resolve any mistmdersumdings between Mr. Epstein 
and the government about the terms of the Agreement are intended only to ensure that it is 
carried out fully and fairly. 

In an effort to avoid having either party unintentionally breach the Agreement. we 
suggest that steps be taken to clarify the meaning of paragraphs 7-10. It would he extremely 
helpful to both sides to have an independent third party consider the Agn.tncnt and offer the 
final word on how certain clauses should be interpreted and satisfied. BeCause the government 
has already enlisted Judge to select the attorney representative under the Agreement. We 
would be amenable to his serving in this role. 

In order to come to an agreement on the exact procedure by whiclt the identilied 
individuals will obtain restitution: I am providing you with our thoughts on three issues below. 

GloCoon Hong Kong London Los Angolos Munkti Son Francisca Washingtim, 
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Page 2 

Once we come to an agreement on the following and you provide a complete and final list of 
identified individuals. it will be appropriate to notify them. 

First. I. am concerned by your suggestion that you might want to increase the number of 
individuals on the government's list. I had expected the:number to have become smaller, 
because when we spoke prior to signing the agreement you told me that the government already 
had a list. and we were informed thereafter that the September 24. 2007 list had been narrowed. 
Certainly. anyone who was not on the list prior to September 24. 2007 cannot permissibly he 
added to the list. 

Second. we will cooperate with the government to reach to an agreement as to substance 
of the notification to be sent to the government's list of individuals. Based on the Agreement. 
the information contained in the notification should be limited to (I) the language provided in the 
Agreement dealing with civil restitution (paragraphs 7-10) and (2) the contact hannation of the 
selected attorney representative. We object to the inclusion of additional information about the 
investigation of Mr. Epstein, the terms of the 'Agreement other than paragraphs 7-10. and the 
identity of other identified individuals. 

Third, as you are aware. the Addendum requires that "the parties will jointly prepare a 
short written submission to the independent third-party ft:flitting 'tile role of the 'attletie.Y.
representative and regarding Epstein's Agreement to pay such attorney representative his or her 
customary hourly rate for representing-such victims subject to the provisions of Paragraph C. 
infra?' We will certainly cooperate with the government to draft such a joint submission and 
would he pleased to subinit draft language to you for such a joint submission. 

I look forward to working with you to resolve these matters. 1 believe we have a mutual 
• .interest in moving past all of these issues so. that the civil restitution aspects of the Agreement 

cas:be • 

Sincerely. 

I.elkowttz 

. cc: Chia. Nonhern Division 
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Jay P. Lk!Koval& P.C. 
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VIA FACSIMILE 

CdrioWO Conon 
163 East 53rd StrOOr 

Now York. Now York 10022-4611 
FUGNIII/IIIE 

(217) 446-4AA0 M1214164900 

www.lorkland corn 

August 1R, 200R 

Villafano 
United States Attorney's Office 
Southern District of Florida 
500 South Australian Avenue. Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

.Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Marie: 

I write in response to your letter dated August 15. 2008 regarding the civil restitution 
portion of the Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the "Agreement"). 'Thank you for confirming 
our position that the December modification proposal is not part of the Agreement. As expressed 
by U.S. Attorney Acosta in his December 19. 2007 letter, the unorthodox use of a civil restitution 
'statute in a federal plea agreement. which resulted in state charges against Mr. Epstein. has 
caused several miscommunications with respect to the implementation of the terms of that 
Agreement. In order to avoid any further miscommunications and to ensure that the IS U.S.C. 
§ 2255 aspects of the Agreement are carried out in a proper manner. it would he useful to come 
to an agreement as to the implementation of the civil restitution portion of the Agreement. As 
we have previously stated. Mr. Epstein fully intends to abide by the terms of the Agreement, and 
we hope you appreciate that our efforts to resolve any misunderstandings between Mr. Epstein 
and the government about the terms of the Agreement arc intended only to ensure that it is 
carried out filly and fairly. 

In an effort to avoid having either party unintentionally breach the Agreement. we 
suggest that steps be taken to clarify the meaning of paragraphs 7-10. It would he extremely - 
helpful to both sides to have an independent third party consider the Agreement and offer the 
final word on how certain clauses should be interpreted and satisfied. Because the government 
has already enlisted Judge to select the attorney representative under the Agreement. we 
would be amenable to his serving in this role. 

In order to come to an agreement on the exact procedure by which the identified 
individuals will obtain restitution. I am providing you with our thoughts on three issues below. 

Chap Hong Kong London Los Angeles Munich San Francisco WO-40*M U.C. 
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KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP 

August 18. 2008 
Page 2 

Once we come to an agreement on the following and you provide a complete and final list of 
identified individuals. it will be appropriate to notify them. 

First. I am concerned by your suggestion that you might want to increase the number of 
individuals on the government's list. I had expected the number to have become smaller, 
because when we spoke prior to signing the agreement you told me that the government already 
had a list, and we were informed thereafter that the September 24. 2007 list had been narrowed. 
Certainly. anyone who was not on the list prior to September 24. 2007 cannot permissibly he 
added to the list. 

Second. we will cooperate with the government to reach to an agreement as to substance 
of the notification to be sent to the government's list of individuals. Bases) on the Agreement. 

- the information contained in the notification should he limited to (I) the language provided in the 
Agreement dealing with civil restitution (paragraphs 7-10) and (2) the contact information of the 
selected attorney representative. We object to the inclusion of additional information about the 
investigation of Mr. Epstein, the terms of the Agreement other than paragraphs 7-10. and the 
identity of other identified individuals. 

Third, as you are aware. the Addendum requires that "the parties will jointly prepare a 
short written submission to the independent third-party regarding the role of the attorney 
representative and regarding Epstein's Agreement to pay such attorney representative his or her 
customary hourly rate for representing such victims subject to the provisions of Paragraph C. 
infra." We will certainly cooperate with the government to draft such a joint submission and 
would he pleased to submit draft language to you for such a joint submission. 

I look forward to working with you to resolve these matters. I believe we have a mutual 
interest in moving past all ()I' these issues so that the civil restitution aspects of the Agreement 
can be fulfilled. 

Sincerely. 

cc: Chief; Northern Division 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S. Australian Ave, Ste 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561)8204711 
Facsimile: 

August 21, 2008 

DELIVERY BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Jay P. Letkowitz, Esq. 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
Citigroup Center 
153 East 53rd Street 
New York, New York 10022-4675 

Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Komspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Jay and Roy: 

Thank you for your response to my earlier letter. The U.S. Attorney's Office shares 
in your desire to implement all of the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. As you are 
aware, the jointly-approved Special Master, Judge , has already selected an attorney 
representative, Robert Josefsberg, who was accepted by both parties. The Office has 
conferred with Mr. Josefsberg, who has agreed to continue in that role. In October 2007, Mr. 
Josefsberg expended time, effort, and funds in preparing to serve as the attorney 
representative, and he will need a written confirmation from you that his future fees and 
expenses will be paid in accordance with the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 
Please provide me with a copy of that correspondence for my file. 

With that matter settled, I believe that the requirement for a joint written submission 
to the Special Master has been extinguished. Nonetheless, I have no objection to attempting 
to create a joint statement to assist Mr. Josefsberg in serving his duties. Regarding your 
suggestion that we ask Judge to "offer the final word on how certain clauses should 
be interpreted and satisfied," I believe that the Agreement speaks for itself. 
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ROY BLACK, ESQ. 
Aucus-r 21, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, following Mr. Epstein's sentencing, the U.S. 
Attorney's Office provided Mr. Epstein's counsel with a list of the individuals whom it was 
prepared to name in an indictment as victims of an offense enumerated in 18 U.S.C. § 2255, 
and none of those names will be deleted. By his agreement, Mr. Epstein sought to resolve 
liability for all criminal activity known to the United States as of the time of his plea and 
sentencing, and he is responsible for damages to all victims of that criminal activity. 

Copies of the victim notifications will continue to be provided to counsel for Mr. 
Epstein. Please let me know whether I should continue to list Mr. Goldberger as the point 
of contact for the civil litigation. Regarding your suggestion on the content of the 
notification letters, I intend to use the same format that was used in the letters previously 
approved by Messrs. Goldberger and Tein, except that I will include the language from the 
September and October agreements. I have enclosed a draft herewith. Because I previously 
provided the victims with incorrect information—albeit with the approval of Mr. Epstein's 
counsel—it is imperative that I correct the error promptly. Accordingly, if you have any 
substantive objections to the letter, please advise me by tomorrow afternoon. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

By 

Assistant United United States Attorney 

cc: Chief, Northern Division 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United Stales Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile: 

August 22, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE AND U.S. MAIL 
Michael E. Dutko, Esq. 
Bogenschutz & Dutko 
600 S. Andrews Ave, Suite 500 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301-2802 

DRAFT 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein,  AMENDED NOTIFICATION 
OF IDENTIFIED VICTIM 

Dear Mr. Dutko: 

By virtue of this letter, the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District 
of Florida asks that you provide the following amended notice to your client, 
Some of the information contained in the July 20, 2008 letter to Ms. was inaccurate, 
so please advise her of the following changes. 

As you were previously advised, on June 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter 
referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea of guilty to violations of Florida Statutes Sections 
796.07 (felony solicitation of prostitution) and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in 
prostitution), in the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-
009454A3OOCMB and 2008-cf-009381AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve 
months' imprisonment to be followed by an additional six months' imprisonment, followed 
by twelve months of Community Control 1, with conditions of community confinement 
imposed by the Court. 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to 
defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 
conditions, including the following: 

1. An independent Special Master was assigned the task of selecting an 
attorney representative to represent the victims in connection with civil 
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MICHAEL E. Duna), ESQ. 
AMENDED NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIM 
AUGUST 22, 2008 
PAGE 2 OF 3 

DR AElf 

litigation between the victims and Mr. Epstein. The Special Master 
selected Robert Josefsberg, Esq. of the firm Podhurst Orseck, P.A., a 
highly-respected and experienced attorney. Ms. is not 
obligated to use Mr. Josefsberg as her civil attorney, but, as explained 
in greater detail below, Mr. Joscfsberg's services will be provided at no 
cost to Ms. because Mr. Epstein is obligated to pay the costs 
and fees of the attorney-representative. Also, Mr. Epstein and his 
attorneys can only contact Ms. via Mr. Josefsberg, assuming 
that she would like Mr. Josefsberg to serve as her attorney. 

2. If Ms. elects to file suit against Mr. Epstein pursuant to Title 
18, United States Code, Section 2255, Mr. Epstein will not contest the 
jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Southern District 
of Florida over his person and/or the subject matter, and Mr. Epstein 
waives his right to contest liability and also waives his ri t to contest 
damages up to an amount as a ed to between Ms. and Mr. 
Epstein, so long as Ms. elects to proceed exclusively under 18 
U.S.C. § 2255, and she waives any other claim for damages, whether 
pursuant to state, federal, or common law. Notwithstanding this 
waiver, Epstein's agreement with the United States, his waivers and 
failure to contest liability and such damages in any suit are not to be 
construed as an admission of any criminal or civil liability. 

3. As stated above, Mr. Epstein has agreed to pay the fees of the attorney 
representative selected by the independent third party. This provision, 
however, shall not obligate Epstein to pay the fees and costs of 
contested litigation filed a ainst him. Thus, if after consideration of 
potential settlements, Ms. and Mr. Josefsberg elect to file a 
contested lawsuit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255 or she elects to pursue 
any other contested remedy, the obligation to pay the costs of the 
attorney representative, as opposed to any statutory or other obligations 
to pay reasonable attorneys fees and costs such as those contained in 
Section 2255 to bear the costs of the attorney representative, shall 
cease. 

Mr. Josefsberg will be contactins=vithin the next week to explain these terms and 
to determine if he may contact Ms. directly. If you would like to contact Mr. 
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MICHAEL E. DUTKO, ESQ. 
AMENDED NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIM 
AUGUST 22, 2008 
PAGE 3 OF 3 

Josefsberg directly, he can be reached at 305 358-2800. 

If Ms. has selected other counsel to represent her, or if she does so in the 
future, and she decides to pursue a claim against Jeffrey Epstein, his attorney, Jack 
Goldberger, asks that he be contacted at Atterbury Goldberger and Weiss, 250 Australian 
Avenue South, Suite 1400, West Palm Beach, FL 33401. 

In addition, a judge has ordered that the United States make available to any 
designated victim (and/or her attorney) a copy of the actual agreement between Mr. Epstein 
and the United States, so long as the victim (and/or her attorne reviews, signs, and agrees 
to be bound by a Protective Order entered by the Court. If Ms. would like to review 
the Agreement, please let me know, and I will forward a copy of the Protective Order for her 
signature. 

As I stated in my earlier notification, please understand that neither the U.S. 
Attorney's Office nor the Federal Bureau of Investigation can take part in or otherwise assist 
in civil litigation, but we again thank you and your client for all of her assistance during the 
course of this investigation. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

DRAFT 
By: 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

cc: Robert Josefsberg, Esq. 
Jack Goldberger, Esq. 
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VIA FACSIMILE 

United States Attorney's Office 
Southern District of Florida 
500 South Australian Avenue. Suite 400 
West Palm Beach. Florida 33401 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

I /car 

(M) 44G-4800 

wow k Aland con 

August 21, 200R 

Facsimile 

I vtrite this letter to correct certain misstatements made in your letter dated August 21. 
2008. and the accompanying draft notification. 

First. you state that "Mr. Josefsberg expended time. effort and funds in preparing to serve 
as attorney representative in October of 2007.-  Neither I. nor any other attorney on Mr. 
Epstein's defense team. was notified of this work by Mr. Joselsberg. 

• Second. in the victim notification letter, no judge "has ordered that the United States" 
make available a copy of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. Section (d) of the Order to Compel 
Production and Protective Order provides that if any of the alleged •"victims" and/or their 
attorneys - request the opportunity to review the Agreement.- the USA° shall comply with the 
request so long as those individuals agree not to disclose the Non-Prosecution Agreement. There 
is no court order requiring the government to provide the alleged "victims•" with notice Thal the 
Non-Prosecution Agreement is available to them upon request and doing so is in conflict with 
the confidentiality provisions of the Agreement. Given that the individuals on the list will have 
an attorney representative who is fully aware of the 1C1'1115 of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 
this conflicting paragraph of your notice is unma %miry in any event and should he excised. 

Third. misstatements in your prior notification were not made "with the approval of 
Mr. Epstein's counsel." 

Fourth. we are concerned with your open-ended description of Mr. lipstcin's 
responsibilities regarding civil restitution. 'the resolution of liability pursuant to IR U.S.C. 
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2235 is as stated in paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Agreement and the Addendum to the Agreement. 
no more, no less. 

Filth. while you state, in your letter. that the USA() (foes not intend to delete any of the 
names on the list provided to Mr. Epstein's counsel, you do not confirm that the prior list is final 
and complete. There can be no expansion of the list of individuals that you informed us had 
been memorialized as of September 24. 2007 and disclosed to Mr. I ipstein on June 30. 2008 (the 
date ()I' sentence pursuant to the Agreement's disclosure requirements). Please confirm the exact 
name and number of individuals the government plans on notifying as provided for under the 
Agreement. 

Sixth. based on express language in prior communications from your Office. we arc in 
agreement that paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Agreement are in need of clarification and 
implementation. We will work with the attorney representative in attempting to reach a fair 
resolution of the outstanding civil matters in a manner that is in accordance with the Agreement. 

Seventh, we have previously conimunieated our objections to the propriety of the 
attorney representative engaging in contested litigation. We again dispute the assertion that 
Mr. JoM'sberg's duties include filing contested litigation. In any case, that issue is not ripe thr 
resolution at this point, but again, given his agreement to be the attorney representative. we will 
address these match directly with Mr. Jnscfsbcrg. 

• Sin er ly. 

tiy P. I.elkowitz 

cc: Chief. Northern Division 
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PLEASE NOTIFY S IMMEDIATELY AT: 
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U 

CC: 

Company: 

United States Attorney's Office 

Company: 

United States Attorney's Office 

Fax #: 

Fax it: 

Direct #: 

Direct it: 

From: Date: Ipagsw/cover: Fax It: Direct #: 

Jay 1'. Lefisowitz Aueust 22.200R 3 

Message: 
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August 22,2008 

VIA FACSIMII.F. (561) R20-8777 

•'s Mice 
Southern District of Florida
500 South Australian Avenue. Suite 400 
West Palm Beach. Florida 33401 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dcar Marie: 

I write this letter to correct certain misstatements made in your letter dated August 21. 
2008. and the accompanying draft notification. 

First. you state that "Mr. Josefsberg expended time. effort and funds in preparing to serve 
as attorney representative in October of 2007." Neither I. nor any other attorney cm Mr. 
F.pstein's defense team. was notified of this work by Mr. Josef-shag. 

Second. in the victim notification letter, no judge "has ordered that the United States" 
make available a copy of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. Section (d) of the Order to Compel 
Production and Protective Order provides that if any of the alleged "victims" and/or their 
attorneys "request the opponunity to review the Agreement." the USAO shall comply with the 
request so long as those individuals agree not to disclose the Non-Proseeution Agreement. There 
is no court order requiring the government to provide the alleged "victims" with notice that the 
Non-Prosecution Agreement is available to them upon request and doing so is in conflict with 
the confidentiality provisions of the Agreement. Given that the individuals on the list will have 
an attorney representative who is fully aware of the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 
this conflicting paragraph of your notice is tmnt.t.t.m.ary in any event and should be excised. 

Third. misstatements in your prior notification were not made "with the approval of 
Mr. Epstein's counsel." 

Fourth, we are concerned with your open-ended description of Mr. Epstein's 
responsibilities regarding civil restitution. The resolution of liability pursuant to 13U.S.C. 
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* 2255 is as stated in paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Agreement and the Addendum to the Agreement. 
no more. uo less. 

Piffles while you state, in your letter, that the USAO does not intend to delete any of the 
names on the list provided to Mr. Epstein's counsel, you do not confirm that the prior list is final 
and complete. There can be no expansion of the list of individuals that you informed us had 
been memorialized as of September 24. 2007 and disclosed to Mr. Epstein on June 30. 2008 (the 
date of sentence pursuant to the Agreement's disclosure requirements). Please confirm the exact 
name and number of individuals the government plans on notifyinµ as provided for tinder the 
Agreement. 

Sixth. based on express language in prior communications from your Office. we are in 
agreement that paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Agreement are in need of clarification and 
implementation. We will work with the attorney representative in attempting to reach a 1:iir 
resolution of the outstanding civil matters itt a manner that is in accordance with the Agreement. 

Seventh, we have previously communicated our objections to the propriety of the 
attorney representative engaging in contested litigation. We again dispute the assertion that 
Mr. Josekherg's duties include filing contested litigation. In any ease, that issue is not ripe for 
resolution at this point. hut again, given his agreement to be the attorney representative. we will 
address these matters directly with Mr. Josefsberg. 

Sin 

104.
• P. Iselkowitz 

cc: Chief. Northern Division 
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DISCLOSURE OR COPYING IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED AND MAY BE UNLAWFUL. 

IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, 
PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY AT: 
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Company: 

linked States Attorney's  Office 

Company: 

llnited States Attorney's Office 

Fax II: Direct #: 

Fax #: Direct #: 

From: • Date: Pagostiotover: Fax #: Direct It: 

Jay P. Leficowity. August 22, 200R 3 

Message: 
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August 22, 20011 

VIA FACSIMILE (561) R20-8777 

d's Office 
Southern District of Florida • 
300 South Australian Avenue. Suite 400 
West Palm Beach. Florida 33401 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear 

I write this Icier to correct certain misstatements made in your lever dated August 71. 
2008. and the accompanying draft notification. . 

• 
First, you state that "Mr. Josefsberg expended time. effort and funds in preparing to serve 

as attorney representative in October of 2007." Neither 1. nor :my other attorney on Mr. 
Epstein's defense team. was notified of this work by Mr. Josefsberg. 

Second. in the victim notification letter, no judge "has ordered that the United States" 
make available a copy of the Non-Prosecution. Agreement. Section (d) of the Order to Compel 
Production and Protective Order provides that if any of the • alleged "victims" - and/or their 
attorneys "request the opportunity to review the Agreement." the DWI shall comply with the 
request soiling as those individuals agree not to disclose the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 'there 
is nit court order requiring the government to provide the alleged - victims" with notice that the 
Non-Prosecution Agreement is available to them upon request and doing so is in conflict with 
the confidentiality provisions of the Agreement. Given that the individuals on the list will have 
an attorney representative who is fully aware of the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 

- this conflicting paragraph ol'your notice. is unnecessary in any event and should be excised. 

Third. misstatements in your prior notification were not made "with the approval of 
Mr. Epstein's counsel." 

Fourth, we arc .concerned with your openrended description of Mr.  lipstein's 
responsibilities regarding civil restitution. resolution of liability pursuant to 18 
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§ 2233 is as stated in paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Agreement and the Addendum to the Agreement. 
no more. no less. 

Fifth. while 'you state, in your letter, that the USA() does not intend to delete any of the 
names on the list provided to Mi..Epstein's counsel, you do not confirm that the prior list is final 
and complete. There can he no expansion of the list of individuals that you informed us had 
been memorialized as of September14. 2007 and disclosed to Mr. Epstein on June 30. 2008 (the 
date of sentence pursuant to the Agreement's disclosure requirements). Please conlinn the exact 
name and number of individuals the government plans on notifying as provided kne under the 
Agreement. 

Sixth: based on express language in prior communications from your Ofilee, we are in 
agreement that paragraphs 7 and R of the Agreement are in need of clarification and 
implementation. We will work with the attorney representative in attempting to reach a fair 
resolution of the outstanding civil matters in a manner that is in accordance with the Agreement. 

Seventh, we (sive previously communicated our objections to the propriety of the 
attorney representative engaging in contested litigation. We again dispute the assertion that 
Mr. Niselkberg's duties include filing contested litigation. In any ease, that issue is not ripe for 
resolution at this point, but again, given his agreement to be the attorney representative. we will 
address these matters directly with Mr. Josefsberg. 

cc: Chief. Northern Division 

Sin • • 

P. Letkowitz. 
/ 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 S Australian Ave, Ste 400 
West Palm Beach, Ft 33401 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile: 

August 26, 2008 

DELIVERY BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Jay P. Lefkowitz, Esq. 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
Citigroup Center 
153 East 53rd Street 
New York, New York 10022-4675 

Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Kornspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Jay and Roy: 

Thank you for your letter of August 22nd. I write to follow up on some of the points 
that you raised. 

The list of thirty-two victims that was provided to Mr. Goldberger via certified mail 
on July 10, 2008 is the final list. As I mentioned, copies of the notification letters to each 
victim will be carbon-copied to an attorney for Mr. Epstein and Mr. Josefsberg. I asked you 
to advise me whether Mr. Goldberger should continue to be listed as the contact person for 
the civil litigation in the amended victim notification letters and whether he should receive 
the carbon copies of those letters as they are sent. 

I also asked you to provide me with written confirmation of your agreement to pay Mr. 
Josefsberg's fees. Please provide that confirmation to Mr. Josefsberg so that he can begin 
his representation, and provide me with a copy for my file. 

I have conferred with the lead AUSA in the case of Jane Doe 1 and 21 United States, 
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and he agrees that, based upon the discussion with Judge Marra during the hearing on the 
plaintiffs' motion, a notification of the judge's ruling is required. I will, however, change 
the language slightly to direct the victims to discuss the matter with Mr. Josefsberg. 

With regard to your concerns with my "open-ended description of Mr. Epstein's 
responsibilities regarding civil restitution," I agree that the resolution of civil damages claims 
is as stated in paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Agreement and Addendum. That is why the 
language in the notification is taken verbatim from paragraphs 7, 8, and 7C of the Agreement 
and Addendum, except that the victim's name is used in place of "identified individual." As 
I mentioned in my earlier letter, if you have any proposed substantive changes, please provide 
them to me. 

Mr. Goldberger and Mr. Tein explicitly approved the language in my earlier victim 
notification letter, even though they apparently were taking the position that the December 
19, 2007 letter was not part of the Agreement, so that misinformation was provided to the 
victims with the approval of Mr. Epstein's attorneys. 

With regard to your sixth and seventh points, I reiterate that it is the Office's position 
that the Agreement and Addendum speak for themselves. Let me also reiterate that, while 
the Office does not intend to involve itself in any civil negotiations or litigation, if it comes 
to our attention that Mr. Epstein has breached the terms of the Agreement, the Office intends 
to enforce its right pursuant to the Agreement. 

I would appreciate a prompt response to the question regarding which of Mr. Epstein's 
attorneys should be named in and receive copies of the notification letters, as well as 
documentation of your commitment to paying Mr. Josefsberg's fees so that I may begin 
distributing the revised victim notifications on Wednesday morning. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
Unftell States Attorney 

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney 
cc: , Chief, Northern Division 
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Jay F. Lolkowez. F.C. 
To Call Willer Ditec 

corn 

VIA FACSIMIIS 

CiligreeO Comnr 
153 Easi raw Street 

New York. Now York 10022.4611 

(a 440.41100 

www.lorhlood.com 

September 2. 2008 

linked Stares Attorney's Office 
. Southern District of Florida 

500 South AustellHan Avenue: Suite 400 
. West Palm Beach. Florida 35401 

Re: deity Epsrein 

Dear Marie: 

Facsimile: 
(212) 446.4600 

In response to your letter dated August 26. 200$. I ant confirming Thai Mr. Goldberger 
should continue to be listed as thecontact person in the amended tiietim notification letters and 
should receive the carbon copies of thOse letters as they are sent. 

Also. wo plan on speaking to Mr. Josefsberg This week to discuss a procedure Ibr paying 
his fees. We intend to comply fay with the agreement and Mr. Epstein hill pay Mr. Josfsberg's 
usual and customary hourly rates f r his work pursuant to the agreement Melia:Mug settlements 
under 2255. 

cc: Chid Noithcrn Division 
Jack Goldberger 
Roy Black 

• Sincerely, 1 
4 1. 
1:( tit 

Jae I.. lkocvi (xi

Owego Hong Kong London Los Angeles Munich San Francisco Warf.tanglon, D.C. 
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Roy Black 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

Facsimile: 

September 17, 2008 

DELIVERY BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Jay P. Lefkowitz, Esq. 
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
Citigroup Center 
153 East 53rd Street 
New York, New York 10022-4675 

Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Kornspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Jack A. Goldberger, Esq. 
Atterbury, Goldberger & Weiss, P.A. 
One Clearlake Centre, Suite 1400 
250 Australian Ave S. 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-5015 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Jay, Roy, and Jack: 

On today's date, our Office received an inquiry from State Attorney Barry Krischer 
related to the Non-Prosecution Agreement. In accordance with the terms of that Agreement, 
I am notifying you of this development. State Attorney Krischer has been contacted by 
counsel for the Palm Beach Daily News asking why the Non-Prosecution Agreement is under 
seal in order to determine whether to file suit asking that it be unsealed. I have informed 
State Attorney Krischer that the Agreement contains a confidentiality clause requiring us to 
provide Mr. Epstein's counsel with notice prior to making any disclosure (compulsory or 
otherwise). Since Mr. Epstein is a party to that criminal case, he has standing to contest any 
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unsealing, while we do not. Accordingly, I ask that you confer with Mr. Krischer regarding 
how you would like to proceed with the matter. 

I also want to reiterate the concern I raised in my letter of August 15, 2008, that the 
complete Non-Prosecution Agreement, which includes the October Addendum, has not been 
filed with the Court in accordance with the Judge's order. Please advise that this issue has 
been resolved. 

Thank you for your attention to these matters. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney 

cc: Ba Krischer State Attorney 
Chief, Northern Division 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

DELIVERY BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Roy Black, Esq. 
Black Srebnick Kornspan & Stumpf P.A. 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd, Suite 1300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein 

Dear Roy: 

500 S. Australian Ave, Ste 400 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561)820-8711 
Facsimile 

November 24, 2008 

On Thursday I learned that Mr. Epstein applied for and was admitted to the Palm 
Beach County Sheriff's Office's work release program and that he has been on work release 
for the past few weeks. For the following reasons, the Office believes that Mr. Epstein's 
application to and participation in the work release program is a material breach of the Non-
Prosecution Agreement. Accordingly, the United States demands that Mr. Epstein withdraw 
his application to participate in the program and complete his eighteen-month term of 
imprisonment in accordance with the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 

The Non-Prosecution Agreement provides that Epstein "shall be sentenced to 
consecutive terms of twelve (12) months and six (6) months in county jail for all charges, 
without any opportunity for withholding adjudication or sentencing, and probation or 
community control in lieu of imprisonment." I have more than a dozen e-mails between 
myself and Jay Lefkowitz discussing the U.S. Attorney's insistence on eighteen months of 
incarceration. You will recall that at one meeting you and Ms. Sanchez raised the idea of Mr. 
Epstein hiring Sheriff's Deputies to guard him as equivalent to imprisonment. Mr. Acosta 
specifically rejected that suggestion. It is our understanding from the Sheriffs Office that 
Mr. Epstein is paying off-duty Sheriffs Deputies to guard him while he "works" at Mr. 
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Goldberger's office building each day. 

As you remember, shortly before Mr. Epstein's change of plea, Mr. Goldberger sent 
me a copy of the proposed plea agreement with the state. On June 27, 2008, I sent a letter 
containing the following language to you and Mr. Goldberger: 

The U.S. Attorney's Office hereby provides Notice that the proposed sentencing 
provision does not comply with the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. 

The second sentencing paragraph of the proposed plea agreement reads: 

On 08CF009381AMB, the Defendant is sentenced to 18 months Community Control 
1 fonel. As a special condition of this Community Control the Defendant must serve 
the first 6 months in the Palm Beach County Detention Facility . 

The Non-Prosecution Agreement specifically provides: 

Epstein shall be sentenced to consecutive terms of twelve (12) months and six (6) 
months in county jail for all charges, ... without probation or community control in 
lieu of imprisonment. 

Thus, the proposed plea agreement with the State Attorney's Office does not comply 
with the terms of the Non-Prosecution Agreement. To comply with the Agreement, 
Mr. Epstein must make a binding recommendation ofeighteen months imprisonment,
which means confinement twenty-four hours a day at the County Jail, and the judge 
must accept that recommendation. Community control must follow that term of 
incarceration. 

(Emphasis in original.) 

As I specified in that letter, the Non-Prosecution Agreement calls for "confinement 
twenty-four hours a day." In response to that letter, Mr. Goldberger agreed that he would 
revise the state plea agreement to include the word "imprisonment" to make clear that Mr. 
Epstein would be incarcerated for the full eighteen months and would change the language 
of the state agreement to match the language of the federal agreement. Mr. Goldberger and 
I also discussed the situation and he made clear that Mr. Epstein would not be asking for or 
receiving work release and would remain in jail "around the clock." 

In early August, and I raised the same issue with you when we heard 
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that Mr. Epstein was considering applying for work release. On August 6, 2008, Ms. 
Atkinson and I had a conference call with you wherein you again stated that Mr.. Epstein 
would not apply for or receive work release and would spend his eighteen months 
incarcerated twenty-four hours a day at the Palm Beach County Stockade. 

In preparation for this letter, I obtained a certified copy of Mr. Epstein's state court 
file. On June 30, 2008, on the procurement of minors charge, Judge Pucillo entered the 
following sentence: 

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the Sheriff of Palm Beach 
County, Florida for a term of 6 mos. It is further ordered that the Defendant 
shall be allowed a total of 1 days [sic] as credit for time incarcerated prior to 
imposition of this sentence. It is further ordered that the composite term of all 
sentences imposed for the counts specified in the order shall run consecutive 
to the following: Specific sentences: 2006CF9454AXX. 

. the following provisions apply to the sentence imposed:. . . Followed by 
a period of 12 mos on community control 1 under the supervision of the 
Department of Corrections . . . . 

As I learned on Friday when I received the state court file, you neglected to inform 
our Office that, on July 21, 2008, Judge McSorley modified the judgment nunc pro tune to 
an "Order of Community Control I." This same language was the basis for the objection in 
my letter of June 26, 2008 and directly contradicts the language of the Non-Prosecution 
Agreement. I also note that, on the state plea agreement, Mr. Goldberger did not insert the 
word "imprisonment" as agreed prior to the change of plea, instead the words "jail sentence" 
are included. 

The Office's Agreement not to prosecute Mr. Epstein was based upon its 
determination that eighteen months' incarceration (i.e., confinement twenty-four hours a day) 
was sufficient to satisfy the federal interest in Mr. Epstein's crimes. Accordingly, the U.S. 
Attorney's Office hereby gives notice that Mr. Epstein has violated the Non-Prosecution 
Agreement by failing to remain incarcerated twenty-four hours a day for the eighteen-month 
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term of imprisonment. The United States will exercise any and all rights it has under the 
Non-Prosecution Agreement unless Mr. Epstein immediately ceases and desists from his 
breach of this Agreement. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney 

cc: Chief, Northern Division 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL 

FOURTH DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. 4D09-2554 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Petitioner, 

vs. 

STATE OF FLORIDA1LM BEACH NEWSPAPERS, INC., 

., AND B.B., 

Respondents. 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX TO 

PALM BEACH NEWSPAPERS, INC., d/b/a THE PALM BEACH POST'S 

RESPONSE TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI 

THOMAS, LOCICERO & BRALOW PL 

Deanna K. Shullman 
James B. Lake 
101 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Suite 1500 

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301 
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CASE NOE.: 1006-CF9454 A
XX and 2008-CF

9301 AXX 

STATE OF FLORI
DA, 

Plaintiff, 

VS. 

JEFFREY EPSTE
IN, 

Defendant. 

PROCEEDINGS HE
LD BEFORE 

THE HONORABLE
 JEFFREY J. CO

LBATH 

JUNE 10, 2009 

11:08 A.M. - 1
1:25 A.M. 

PALM BEACH COU
NTY COURTHOUSE

 

WEST PALM BEAC
H, FLORIDA • 

Reported by Lo
uanne Rawls 

Notary Public
, State of Flo

rida 

Went Palo Bea
ch Office (100

578 
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APPEARANCES: 

On behalf of 
the Defendant 

JACK ALAN GOLD
BERGER, ESQUIR

E 

Atterbury, Gol
dberger, et al

. 

250 Australian
 Ave. South, 

Suite 1400 

West Palm Beac
h, FL 33401 

On behalf of t
he Defendant 

ROBERT CRITTON
, JR., ESQUIRE 

Burman, Critto
n, et al. 

515 N. Flagler 
Drive, Ste. 40

0 

West Palm Beac
h, FL 33401-43

49 

On behalf of T
hird Party I'l

l. 

WILLIAM J. BER
GER, ESQUIRE 

BRADLEY J. EDWARD
S, ESQUIRE 

Rothstein Rose
nfeldt Adler 

401 E. Las Olas
 Blvd., Suite 

1650 

Fort Lauderdal
e, FL 33394 

On behalf of 
Third Party, T

he Post 

DEANNA SHULLMA
N, ESQUIRE 

Thomas, LoCier
o & Bralow, PL

 

101 N.E. 3rd A
venue 

Suite 1500 

Fort Lauderdal
e, FL 33301-11

81 
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PROCEEDINGS 

BE IT REMEM
BERED that the

 following Procee
ding* wer

e had 

and testimony 
adduced before

 the Honorab
le Jeffrey Col

bath, at 

the Pala Be
ach County Cou

rthouse, West
 Palm Beach, 

PlOrida 

beginning at 
the hour of 1

1:08 a.m. On J
une 10, 2009

, with 

appearances a
s herein noted

 to-wit: 

THE COURT: State vs. Eps
tein. Let me h

ave for the 

record, announ
ce everybody's

 appearance. 

William J. Ber
ger and 

HR. SEHOEfti 
Your Honor, 

Bradley Edward
s for non-part

y 

NV. SHULLNANI 
Your Honor, De

anna Ehullman 
of 

Thomas, LoCier
o 4 Bralow fo

r non-party Th
e Palm Beach 

Post. 

TNB COURT: Let me slow d
own a little 

bit. On behalf
 

of The Post i
s? 

MS. SHULLNAN:
 Deanna Shulln

an 

THE COURT: 
S-H-U-L --

KS. SHULLMAN: 
S-H-U-L-L-X-A

-N 

THE COURT: Me. Shullman, 
good morning. 

Hr. Berger, 

good morning. 
And Mr. Borger

, your client 
is E --

NR. BERGER: 
., yes. 

THE COURT: 
Anybody else h

ere? 

Nit. EDWARDS: 
Bred Edwards o

n behalf of
 as 

well, Judge. 
Thanks, 
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THE COURT: Last name is
 spelled? 

MR, EDWARDS: 
Edwards. E-D

-W-A-R-D-E. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. GOLDBERG
ER: For the othe

r side, Your 
Honor, 

Jack Goldberg
er along wit

h Robert Crit
ton on behal

f of 

Jeffrey Epst
ein. 

THE COURT: It is the PO
st's and fl

 Motion to 

Intervene fo
r the purpose

 of unseali
ng records? 

MR. BERGER: 
Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Here's what 
I think I k

now, and I to
ll 

you this so 
that you can

 till in the
 gape of wha

t you know 

that I don't
 know and su

ggest what yo
u think I oug

ht to 

do. It appear
s to me that

 there was 
some agreemen

t -- an 

agreement th
at was peele

d and then an
 addendum o

r 

amendment t
o the agreem

ent that was
 sealed as t

o documents 

in the court
's tiles unde

r seal and 
it appears as

 though 

the punitive
 interveners

 want to un
seal those an

d take a 

peak at them
. I don't se

e where any o
f the proper

 

procedures to
 seal the d

ocuments was
 ever follow

ed to 

begin with. I
 don't know 

but it's not
 jumping out 

at me 

when I revie
wed the file.

 so, I'm th
inking that 

it might 

be appropriate
 and the bu

rden might be 
on the moving 

party, being 
the state an

d Mr. Epste
in, to give 

them the 

opportunity 
to jump thro

ugh the bur -
- hoops to s

eal the 

documents it
 they are ent

itled to hav
e them seale

d, then 
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1,11 grant t
hat request.

 It they're
 not entitle

d to seal 

then I'll or
der it as do

cuments uns
ealed. But t

hat's kind 

of procedura
lly where I 

think the ca
se La. I wil

l allow 

Mr. Berger 
and Ms. Shull

man to argue
 if they wish t

o, 

otherwise I w
ill go over 

to Mr. Goldb
erger and H

r. Critton 

to perhaps t
alk about wh

at they think
 about my s

uggestion. 

Hr. Berger?
 

MR. BERGER: 
I like to hear

 what they s
ay. 

THE COURT: 
Ma. Shullman

? 

MS. SHULTMAN
: Agreed. 

THE COURT: 
Hr. Goldberge

r? 

MR. GOLDBERG
ER: Your Honor 

THE COURT: 
I mean, it l

ooks like th
ey just hande

d 

up an Agreed
 Order to s

ign. 

HR. GOLDBERG
ER, well, if the

 Court -- I 
know the 

Court is try
ing to short

 circuit he
re and the id

ea in 

theory is no
t horrible, 

it's not ter
rible, it's 

actually 

not so bad. 
But let so a

lert the Cou
rt to a coup

le of 

issues. Firs
t of all, th

is is not so
mething that

 came up 

ahead of tim
e where we w

ere moving 
to close a h

earing or 

file documen
ts under sea

l and the R
ules of Judi

cial 

Administrati
on makes' an 

important d
istinction 

between 

things that 
are done in 

advance and 
things that 

come up 

during a hea
ring and the

 tact that 
maybe it goe

s to the 

Rule -- talk
 about situ

ations that 
arise during

 the course 
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of a hearin
g. that t

he Rules wou
ld not appl

y to that. 

Secondly, NV. is Motion to Intervene is
 brought unde

r a 

Rule that do
es not apply

 because she 
brought it u

nder a 

Rule that ap
plies to non-

criminal cas
es. Having s

aid that 

I know the C
ourt's desir

e to get to 
the issues 

here end I 

just need to 
alert the Co

urt to one o
ther matter 

because Z 

think it's 
really impor

tant. The Plai
ntiff's. 

has 

this agreeme
nt already. T

hey have thi
s agreement.

 Counsel 

will tell yo
u they have 

this agreemen
t. There hav

e been 

two hearings
 in front of 

Judge Marrs 
who has the 

Federal 

cases here,
 They moved 

to unaeal th
e non-prosecu

tion 

agreement in
 front of Ju

dge Marra. H
e entered an 

initial 

Order, a very
, very wel

l reasoned Or
der which I 

have a 

copy for 
the Court. 

TRH COURT: 
Oh. thanks. 

MR. OOLOSHRO
RR, He entered a very, very

 well 

reasoned Ord
er weighing 

the interest
 of the Plai

ntiffs to 

have access t
o the non-pr

osecution ag
reement with

 the 

confidential
ity that the

 parties int
ended to be 

part of 

thin agreeme
nt. And what

 he did, he 
said they ca

n have 

this agreeme
nt. They can

 review it a
ll they want

. If they 

want to revi
ew it with s

omebody sloe
, they need 

to give 

them a copy 
of thls Order t

hat it is no
t to be disc

losed 

to anyone el
se. Subseque

nt to that --
 so that's 

the Rule 

that's in pl
ace right no

w. Subsequen
t to that t

he 
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Plaintiffs 
went back and

 said we wan
t to dissemi

nate this 

order. WO w
ent to dissem

inate this ag
reement to o

ther 

parties and 
Judge Marra e

ntered a Sec
ond Order den

ying 

that request
 and said, n

o. Hy Order i
s in place b

ut if you 

have soma co
mpelling reason 

why you 
want this agre

ement to 

be disseminat
ed to others

, file a moti
on and come b

ack to 

THE COURT: 
This is as a 

result of so
me civil 

litigation p
►nding in the 

Federal court
house? 

MR. GOLDBERGE
R: Yes. 

THE COURT+ 
As opposed to

 any crimina
l prosecutio

n 

going on? 

MR. GOLDBERG
ER, It is civil p

roceedings t
hat are 

going on in F
ederal Court

. But in the 
interest of c

omedy. 

Your Honor, 
the Court hes

 ruled on th
e confidentia

lity 

agreement an
d has pUt a 

we21 reasone
d procedure 

into 

place. If th
e parties wan

t that agree
ment unsealed

 where 

they need to 
go is go bac

k to Federal 
Court and Ju

dge 

Marra invite
d them to d

o so. 

THE covert 
That may bo a

s it pertain
s to ION, but 

what about T
he Poet? 

MR. GOLDBERG
ER; I think -- an

d I think I kn
ow where 

the Court is 
going on thi

s. It The tos
t's position

 is the 

public has 
right to act 

-- access to
 this then 

there is a 

procedure in
 place and ul

timately the
 Court has 

to conduct 
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a hearing an
d do the bala

ncing test w
here you loo

k at 

whether ther
e is some com

pelling gover
nment interes

t and 

that's going 
to require a

n evidentiary
 hearing. 80 

i have 

no great obje
ction to fil

ing the Reque
st for Closu

re and 

then have a 
hearing in fr

ont of the C
ourt. 

THE COURT, Well, let's 
do -- I'm thi

nking out lou
d. 

I'm not rulin
g. I will giv

e you all a c
hance to arg

ue 

further, but 
this is what

 I'm thinking
 I vIll do, g

rant 

the Motion to
 Intervene. I

t gives stand
ing to MI. 

It 

gives standi
ng to The Pos

t to contest
 the fact tha

t these 

were sealed.
 And then I w

ill shift the
 burden back

 on the 

State end De
fendant, Mr.

 Epstein, to 
petition the 

Court to 

seal these do
cuments. Unt

il such time
 that I rule 

on that 

I will leave 
them under s

eal because t
hey might ha

ve been 

correctly se
aled but the 

procedure wa
sn't followed

. 

There's got 
to be notice.

 You've got 
to comply wit

h the 

Administrati
ve order 2.10

3. You've got
 to comply wi

th the 

Rule of Judi
cial Administ

ration 2.4201
d). I think 

even 

though that's
 a civil -- 

it address.. 
a civil matt

er this 

le, you know
, in the natu

re of • civi
l procedure.

 So, 

do that. And
 thank you fo

r those Orde
rs. So, where

 do we 

go from here
? I'm thinkin

g out loud, 
not ruling. M

r. 

Berger? 

MR. DEADER; Judge, with
 all due resp

ect I 

completely d
isagree with 

counsel's ch
aracterisati

on of 
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those two Ord
ers. I don't

 know it he h
anded up bot

h to 

you? 

THE COURT: I do. 

MR. BERBER, 
They simply d

o not say wha
t he tells 

you they sa
y. 

THE COURT: 
read them 

MR. BERBER: 
All right. 

THE COURT: 
-- and 2.11 a

llow you to 
make that 

argument --

MR. BERBER:
 And -- and 

THE COURT, -- at the tim
e of the Ren

ewed Motion t
o 

Seal. 

MR. BRROER: 
All right. An

d, also, I do
n't think th

e 

Court -- I 
think the Cou

rt needs to 
deal with thi

s 

immediately,
 expeditiousl

y. This i■ a matter th
at the 

Supreme Cour
t has placed i

ncredible sc
rutiny over

. And the 

Rule that we 
are travelin

g under -- we
're not onl

y 

traveling un
der a Rule o

f Judicial Ad
ministration

 that 

applies to 
criminal and

 civil cases,
 we're apply

ing to an 

Administrati
ve Order of t

his Court tha
t was in pl

ace when 

the sealing 
was done and 

that superse
ded the seal

ing. 

THE COURT; I --

MR. DEBORA: 
just saYlng, I

 respectful
ly request

 

that the Cou
rt not delay

 chLs ono min
ute. 

THE COURT 
You've Got th

e agreements.
 

EFTA00183603
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MR. BEROER: 
Pardon net 

THE COURT, 
You've got th

e agreements a
nyway. You'v

e 

got what's un
der seal. 

MR. BEROER: 
Judge, we can

not do anyth
ing with the

m. 

THE COURT: Take that up
 with Judge 

Marra. 

MR. BERGER: 
No, sir. Tha

t is not wh
at the Order 

says. May I q
uote Judge M

om. *If a specifi
c tangible 

need arises i
n a C11/12 c

ase the relie
f should be s

ought in 

that case.' I
n other words

, the civil 
cases which a

re in 

front of Jud
ge Hefei* is 

one forum th
at Judge Marr

a said 

go to it. Jud
ge Kerr. did

 not say that
 this Court d

oes not 

have Jurisdi
ction to unse

al its own s
ealed record

, or to 

vacate its o
wn Order seal

ing. And any
 characterisa

tion is 

-- is false.
 

THE COURT; 
I'll take a l

ook at it an
d I'll drew 

from it what
 it says -- 

what I think 
it says. I a

ppreciate 

your zealous
 representat

ion of your c
lient. Pleas

e, it 

appears as t
hough you're

 yelling at 
me.

MB. SHULLMAM
: Your Honor? 

THE COURT' 
Na. shullmant

 

MR. BRACER, 
Judge, this 

happens to be
 a very 

serious matt
er and every

 day of delay
 delays our 

discovery. 

THE COURT: 
Me. Shellnan?

 

SHOLLMAN: Your Honor, 
if I may be h

eard on the 

EFTA00183604
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Issue as wel
l. As a rep

resentative 
of the publi

c's right 

of access 

THE COURT' 
Right. 

MS. SHULLMAN:
 -- here esse

ntially, I wo
uld agree 

with Mr. Berg
er that we n

eed an imme
diate hearin

g on this 

issue. That'
s what we're

 here to do
 today. I thi

nk I heard 

Your Honor s
ay that he's

 not clear t
hat the proc

edures 

were applied
. My review 

of the recor
d does not 

reveal that 

the procedur
es were comp

lied with. 
My review is

 similar to 

Your Honor's
. It looks l

ike sort of e
verybody app

roached 

the bench an
d Judge Puc

illo said let
's take it u

nder seal, 

If Mr. Epste
in's counsel

 le not pre
pared to go 

forward 

today end me
et his burden

, then I wo
uld ask that

 this 

Court sat a 
hearing as n

oon as pract
ical because

 the right 

solution her
o should be 

to unseal th
e records an

d then, 

YOU know 
--

THE COURT, 
I've gotcha.

 

MS. SRULLMAN
t -- and they 

have to make
 a motion. 

IRE COURT, 
Well, what h

ouse Is on fi
rst I mean, 

what is the 
-- I think w

hat they have
 to do is t

hey've got 

to give ten 
days notice 

pursuant to 
the Rule -- 

the 

Administrati
ve Order, Ru

les of Judic
ial Administ

ration, to 

go throu
gh that proce

ss. What -- 
what prejudi

ce is there
'? 

What house i
s burning do

wn if I say
 okay. State 

end 

defense, go 
ahead and ex

peditiously 
move through

 the 

EFTA00183605
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process and 
let's get th

is back on m
y docket as q

uickly as 

possible and
 give them u

ntil Friday t
o file their

 notice 

and ten days 
after that 

we have an e
videntiary he

aring. I 

go through t
he process t

hen. What bad
 thing is g

oing to 

happen by wai
ting these 

extra twelve 
to fifteen d

ays? 

MS. SHULLMAN:
 The bad thin

g that's goin
g to happen,

 

Your Honor, 
is that the 

status quo in
 Florida is 

that the 

constitution
al right of 

access is op
enness. 

THE COURT, 
Right. 

MS. SMULLMANI
 You know, ce

rtainly if 
Your Honor is

 

inclined to 
postpone thi

s hearing I w
ould ask tha

t it be 

done expedit
iously es yo

u suggest. 

THE COURT: 
Yeah. 

MS. SMULLMAN
: You know, Fr

iday and the
n ton days 

thereafter, 
it yust dela

y; access fo
r another two

 weeks 

and it infri
nges on our rig

hts. 

THE COURT, I agree. Mr. Ber
ger, I will 

let you 

answer that 
same questio

n. 

MR. SEROER: 
I don't think

 --

THE COURT, 
Anything spe

cific rather 
than --

KR. BERGMR:
 Yes. 

THE COURT, 
You know, an

ything close
d that the 

people aro a
llowed to lo

ok at is a tr
ansgression 

and any 

transgressio
n is bad, bu

t anything u
nique beyond 

that? 

MR. BERGER; 
Your Honor -

- Your Honor
, I do not 

EFTA00183606
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believe that t
his Court has

 the jurisdict
ion to revisi

t 

the propriety 
of the sealing

 of these reco
rds and give t

he 

Defendant or 
the State, for

 that natter
, a second bit

e at 

the apple. If
 the record■ 

are sealed im
properly, whic

h the 

Court has sai
d on its face 

that appears 
to have occurr

ed, 

I do not belie
ve that this 

Court ha■ juris
diction to al

low 

them a seco
nd bite at the

 apple to go t
hrough with 

the 

notice require
ments. They s

hould have don
e that in fron

t 

of Judge Pucil
lo a year ago 

and they did n
ot do it. The 

Rule of Judici
al Administra

tion 2.420 sim
ply does not 

give 

this Court the
 right to reac

tivate the pro
cedure that y

ou 

outlined. 

THE COURT% Okay. 

MR. BERGER: 
Thank you. 

THE COURT; Anything f
urther, Mr. 

Goldberger or 
Mr. 

critton7 

MR. GOLDBERGER
% Just note. 'f

our Honor, as 
far as 

the timing of
 this and we w

ant to do th
is expeditious

ly. 

of course, t
his sealing oc

curred not la
st week, not t

wo 

weeks ago, not
 tour months 

ago but eleven
 and one halt

 

months ago. T
he Post report

ed this last
 July. So, Z 

understand the
 right for t

he pubic to h
ave access and

 wo 

want to do t
his as quickly

 as possible
 but there ie 

no 

tire here. The
re is no hou

se burning. 

THE COURT: Then I'll go 
ahead and ente

r en Order ae
 

EFTA00183607
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I've indicated
, that is that 

I'll grant the 
Intervener ,* 

Notion to Inter
vene. You have

 standing. I wi
ll order that 

the State and/o
r the defense 

by noon Friday 
file a Notice 

of -- comply wi
th the Administ

rative Order 2.
)03 and the 

Judicial Rule -
- the Rule of J

udicial Adminis
tration 

2.420, paragra
ph d, that outl

ines the proced
ures to seal 

files in these
 types of cases

 and then we'll
 get a hearing 

scheduled for a
rgument on whe

ther or not the
y will be 

sealed. Until t
hat time they w

ill remain sea
led because 

Judge ➢ucillo signed oft on t
he Order end I'

m not inclined
 

to disturb tha
t until I find m

ore about the 
merits of the 

movent's posit
ion. 

NA. GOLDBERGER,
 Thank you. 

THE COURT, Anybody want to
 reduce any of 

that mess 

to a written Or
der? 

MR. EDWARDS, I'd like to You
r Honor. I'd li

ke to 

know if you're goi
ng to give 

us a hearing
 date today-

TH8 COURT, I'll deal with 
that. yeah. Let

 me give 

you some time.
 How much time 

do you think it
's going to 

take? I don't t
hink I'm going

 to have any su
rprises. How 

much time do yo
u think we need

? A halt hour?
 

MR. EDWARDS, Not more. I'd 
say an hour et 

the 

longest. 

THE COURT, I'm not taking
 evidence or an

ything like 

that. In the me
antime, do you

 agree it would
 be prudent 

EFTA00183608
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for me to take 
a look and see w

hat the content 
of these 

things are so I c
an be articulate

 on what -- choi
r know 

about/ I didn't 
do that for toda

y's hearing? 

MR. GOLDBERGER( 
The defense --

NE. EDWARDS: The non-prosecut
ion agreement? 

THE COURT, Right. Whatever i
s under seal, W

hatever 

it is that's un
der seal take a look et i

t so that I 

can at least hav
e a feel for aD

perently what you
 all know 

and I don't. 

HR. GOLDBERGER,
 The defence has n

o objection. 

THE COURT: Okay. I.11 go ah
ead and road thos

e two 

coaled documents 
end I'll see you 

back here, assumi
ng that.

Kr. Goldberger 
and Mr. Critton 

get that done b
etween now 

and Friday. Ten 
days from this Fr

iday is the 22nd
. How 

about we do this 
on the 25th at 1

:30? 

MR, GOLDBERGER: 
One moment, Your

 Honor. That's 
tine 

with me. 

MR. BERGER, Thank you 

THE COURT( All right. Great
. Thank you so 

much. 

MR. GOLDSRR0RR: 
Thank you. Judge

. 
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eginning 

at the hour of 
11,00 a.m. on Jun

e 10, 2009, with
 appearances as

 herein noted to
-wit: 

MIR MAT: State
 vs, Epstein. Le

t me have for t
he record, annou

nce everybody's 

appearance. 

MR. IHIRCHOt: Your Honor, Will
iam J. Berger a

nd Bradley Edwar
ds for non-

party lig 

MR. SHULMAN. You
r HOMO!, °tonna Shatt

nan OC Inman, to
 I. tweicw for non-pa

rty 

the Paln coach Post
. 

THE COURT: LOG 
MO slaw down a li

ttle bit. On beha
lf of the Poet is

? 

MS. SRUL1MAH: De
mme Shullmasr. T

HE COURT: S-H-U-

- 

MS. SHULLMAN: 

THE CXMART: Me. sh
ullean, good morn

ing. Mr. dloopoo,
 good morning. A

nd Mr. Borger. 

your client is 8 
- 

KR. IMAOCRI 

DX MUM anybody Give hor
n/ 

MR. VIMARDS: Bred Edwards on behalf of IS 
as well, Judge, Th

anks. 
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THE COURT: Last nom
 is spelled? ei. ELM

ARDS: Edwards. E-D-

M-A-R-D-S. THE COUR
T: Okay. 

HR. GOLDBERGER: For
 the other side, 

Your Honor, Jack Go
ldberger along with

 

Robert Critton en 
behalf of Jeffrey Ep

stein. 

THE COURT: It is th
e poet's andllik.'s

 Motion to Intervene
 for the purpose 

of 

unsealing records? 

we. mum, was, air. 

THE COURT: Here's wh
at f think I know, a

nd I tell you this 
so that you can fil

l in 

the gape of what yo
u know that I don't 

know and suggest wh
at you think I ought

 to do. It 

appears to se that 
there was sone agree

ment -- an agreement
 that was sealed and

 then an 

addendum or amendme
nt to the agreement 

that was sealed as 
to documents in the

 Court'o files 

under seal and it a
ppears as though the 

punitive interveners 
want to unseal theme

 and take a 

peak at them. I don
 ,t see where any of 

the proper procedur
es to seal the docum

ents was ever 

followed to begin w
ith. I don't know bu

t it's not }tiepins o
ut at se when I r

eviewed the 

file, So, I'm think
ing that it might be

 appropriate and the
 burden might be on

 the moving 

party, being the 
Stara and mt. Epetellu,

 to gin then the
 opportunity to jum

p through the her -

hoops to seal the d
ocuments it they ere

 entitled to have t
hem sealed, then 
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I'll grant that r
ennet. If they'r

e not entitled 
to seal then I'l

l order it as dcG
unanta 

unsealed. but th
at's kind of proc

edurally where 
I think the case

 So. I will allow
 Nz. 

Borger and 14. S
kuilmen to argu

e if they wish to
, otherwise I wil

l go over to Mx
. 

Goldberger and 
Mi. Critt911 to pe

rhaps talk about
 whet they think 

about my suggest
ion. Mx. 

Berger? 

MR. B01GER: I --
 like to hear whe

t they say. The C
OlMT, Ms. nullm

an 

W. AnUANANt Agree
d. 

In COURT: Mx. G
oldberger? MR. C

OLDEERGER: Your
 

honor - 

IRE comet I moa
n, It look, like t

hey /ust handed 
up an Agreed Order

 to sign. 

MR. GOLOSIRCEA:
 Mosll, if the Co

urt I know the Cour
t is trying to sh

ort circuit 

here and the ide
a in theory is no

t horrible, it's
 not terrible, it

's actually not
 so bad. 

But let me alert
 the Court to a c

ouple of issue..
 'fret of all, th

in is not swat
hing that 

one up ahead o
f time where we w

ere mowing to clo
se a hearing or f

ile documents un
der end 

and the Rules of
 Judionl Aninie

tration make, an
 Important diati

notion between 
things that 

are done in adva
nce and things th

at one up durin
g • hearing and

 the foot that ma
ybe it 

goes to the Rule
 -- talk about si

tuations that a
rise during the c

ourse 
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of a hearing, that
 the Rule. would

 not apply to tha
t. Secondly,IIII.'

s Motion to Interv
ene 

is brought under
 a Rule that does

 not apple because
 She brought it

 under a Rule that
 

applies to non-c
riminal cases. Hav

ing said that I kn
ow the Court's des

ire to get to th
e 

feasts hero and I 
just need to alert

 the Court to on
e other setter bec

ause I think its 

really important. 
The Plaintiff's, 

R.M., Me this agr
eement already. they h

ave this 

agreement. Counsel
 will toll you the

y have this agreem
ent. There have 

been two hearings
 in 

front of Judge M
arra who has the F

ederal caste here.
 They moved to uns

eal the non-

prosecution agre
ement in front of 

Judge Marra. He en
tered an initial

 Order, a very, v
ery 

well reasoned orde
r which I have a

 copy for the cou
rt. 

THR COURT, Oh, t
hanks. 

MR. oCRIMIERGER, N
e entered a very, 

very well reasoned
 order weighing th

e 

interest of the Pl
aintiffs to have

 accesa to the non
-prosecution agree

ment with the 

confidentiality 
that the parties

 intended to be p
art of this agreem

ent. And what he d
id, 

he Said they can h
ave this agreement

. They can review 
it all they want. 

It they want to 

review it with som
ebody else, they

 need. to give th
ee a copy of this 

Order that it is n
ot 

to be disclosed to
 anyone else. Subs

equent to that -- 
so that's the Rule 

that's in place 

right now. Subsequ
ent to that the 
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Plaintiffs went 
beck and said we w

ant to dissemina
te this Order. We 

went to dissemina
te 

this agreement to
 other parties an

d Judge Marra ente
red a second Order

 denying that requ
est 

and said, no. My O
rder is in place

 but if you have s
ome compelling r

eason why you went
 this 

agreement to be 
disseminated to 

others, file a mot
ion and come back 

to 

SHE Olterr: This 
is as a result of

 some civil litig
ation pending in

 the 

Federal Courthou
se? 

M. 00LolUERGER: Ye
a. 

THE COURT: as op
posed to any crimi

nal prosecution 
going on? 

sit. GOLDBERGER: 
It is civil procee

dings that are goi
ng on in Federal

 Court. But 

in the interest of
 comedy. Your Hono

r, the Court has
 ruled on the conf

identiality 

agreement and ha
s put a well reaso

ned procedure in
to place. If the p

arties want that 

agreement unseale
d where they nee

d to go is go back
 Co Federal Court 

and Judge Marra 

Invited them to 
do so. 

THE CCORT: That 
may be as it perta

ins ton.. but
 what about The Po

et? 

MR. COLCORRORRt I 
think -- and I t

hink I know where 
the Court is going

 on this. If 

The ftet.a positio
n is the public 

has right to sec -
- access to this t

hen there is a 

procedure in place
 and ultimately 

the Court has to c
onduct 
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a hearing and 
do the balancin

g test where y
ou look at whet

her there is s
oma compelling

 

government int
erest and that

's going to req
uire an eviden

tiary hearing.
 So I have no g

reat 

objection to fi
ling the Reque

st for Closure
 and then have 

a hearing in fr
ont of the Cou

rt. 

11(8 COURT: Well
, let's do -- 

I'm thinking ou
t loud. I'm no

t ruling. I wil
l give 

you all a chanc
e to argue fur

ther, but this 
is what I'm th

inking I will d
o. grant the 

Motion to Inter
vene. It gives

 standing to S.
 It gives standi

ng to The Post
 to contest the

 

fact that thes
e were sealed. 

And than I wil
l shift the bur

den back on the
 State and 

Defendant, Mr.
 Epstein, to pe

tition the COu
rt to seal thes

e documents. U
ntil such time 

that 

I rule on that
 I will leave t

hem under seal
 because they m

ight have been 
correctly seal

ed 

but the procedu
re wasn't follo

wed, There's g
ot to be notic

e. You've got t
o comply with 

the 

Administrative
 order 2.301. Y

ou've got to co
mply with the 

Rule of Judicia
l administrati

on 

2.420(d). I thi
nk even though

 that's a civil
 -- it address

es a civil matt
er this is. yo

u 

know, in the na
ture of a civi

l procedure. So
, I'll do that.

 And thank you
 for these Orde

rs. 

So, where do w
e go from here/

 I'm thinking 
out loud, not r

uling. Mr. Ber
ger? 

MR. SEROER, Jud
ge, with all d

ue respect I co
mpletely disag

ree with counse
l's 

characterisati
on of 
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those two Ord
ers. I don't k

now if he han
ded up both t

o 

yowl 

Tlit COURT: I 
do. 

MR. VILR0MR, T
hey 'imply do

 not say what
 he tells you

 they say. 

TIM COURT, I
'll read the

m -MR. StRGI
R: All 

right. 

Ile COURT: --
 and allow you to m

ake that anra
ment - 

KR- RIAMMR, A
nd -- sad - 

TIM COURT, --
 at the tine 

of the Renewe
d Motion to 

Seal. 

MR. BRRORR: All right. And, also, I don't think the Court -- I think the Court 

needs to deal with this immliately, expeditiously. VAS is a matter that the Suprema Court 

hes placed incredible scrutiny over. And the Rule that we are traveling under -- we're not 

only traveling under a Rule of Judicial administration that applies to criminal and civil 

oases, we're applying to en Administrative Order of this Court that was In place when the 

sealing was dome and that superseded the sealing. 

THE COURT: I - 

MR. BEIMMR: I'm just saying, I respectfully request that the Court not delay this 

ono minute. 

Itlit COURT: You've got the agreements. 
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1 

MR. BURGER, Pa
rdon me? 

THE COURT: roir
ve got the agr

eement* anyway
. You've got w

hat's under se
al. 

HR. SOW: Judge, we cann
ot do anything

 with them. T
HE COURT: Tak

e that up wit
h 

Judge Marra. 

MR. BERGER: No,
 sir. That is 

not what the O
rder says. May

 I quote Judge
 Marra. •It 

a specific tan
gible need ari

ses in a civil 
case the relie

f Should be so
ught in that c

ase.• 

In other words
, the civil cas

es Mach are i
n front of Jud

ge Karate is o
ne forum that 

Judge 

Marra said go 
to it. Judge M

arra did not s
ay that this C

ourt does not 
have jurisdict

icn to 

unseal its own
 sealed records

 or to vacate 
its own Order 

sealing. And a
ny characteriz

ation 

is -- is false
. 

THE COURT' I
'Il take a look

 at it and I.1
1 draw from it

 what it says 
-- what I 

think it says.
 I appreciate 

your zealous r
epresentation 

of your client.
 Please, it ap

pear. 

as though you'
re yelling at 

me. 

MS. SKULUOM: 
Your Honor? TH

E COURT' Ms. 

Shullsan? 

MR. EIMER' JU
dge, this happ

ens to be a ve
t,/ serious mat

ter and every 

day of delay d
elays our disc

overy. 

THE COURT: Ile.
 Shullmeni 

M9. SHULLMANt 
Your Honor, if

 1 may be hear
d on the 
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1 

Segue as well. As a rpreesntative of the public's right of access - 

TRW COORP: Right. 

MS. SNULOWN: -- here essentially, I would agree with Mr. Borger that we need an 

immediate hearing on this issue. That's: what we're here to do today. I think I heard Your 

Honor say that he's not clear that the procedure, were applied. by review of the record does 

not reveal that the procedures were a:applied with. My review le similar to Your Norror'e. It 

looks like sort of everybody approached the bench and Judge Puoillo said let's take it under 

seal. If Mr. Apsteinte counsel is not prepared to go forward today and mmet his burden, then 

I would ask that Chia Court mat a hearing as soon as practical because the right solution 

here should be to unseal the records and then, you know - 

THE COMM: I've gotcha. 

MH. MMI1194 -• and they have to makes/motion. MM COURT: Well, what house is on 

floe? I mean, what ie the I think what they have to do is they've got to give ten days 

notioe pursuant to the Rule -- the Administrative Order, Rules of Judicial Administration, 

to go through that process. What -- what pre)udicm is there? What house Is burning doom if 

I say okay. State end defense, go ahead and expeditiously move through the 
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1 

2 process and let's
 get this bo

ok on my doc
ket ae quickl

y as 

possible and
 give then u

ntil Friday 
to file thei

r notice and
 ten days aft

er that we h
ave 

an evidentia
ry hearing. I

 go through 
the process 

than. What b
ad thing is 

going to happ
en 

by waiting t
his extra tw

elve to fift
een day.? 

MS. SMAAMIN
: The bad thi

ng that's go
ing to happe

n, Your Hono
r, is that th

e status 

quo An Flori
da is that t

he constituti
onal right o

f access in 
openness. 

?NE COURT: R
ight, 

W. sWLuwI,
 You know, oor

tolnly if You
r manor Is Inol

lood to yostp
ono this hear

ing / 

amid see tha
t It be dorm 

orpodltiously
 ace yea eugun

ot. 

/WC Matt Ye
ah. 

I . BRULLMAN: Y
ou know, Fr

iday and th
en ton days t

hereafter, i
t Rust dola

ys 

access Coe a
nother two we

eks and it i
nfringes on 

our rights. 

TIM COURT: I
 agree. Mr. B

erger, I wil
l let you an

swer that a
s question. 

Mit. URGER: I
 don't think

 - 

THE COURT: An
ything speci

fic rather t
han -NA. HARG

RA: Yes. 

Tab COURT: T
OO know, anyt

hing closed 
that the peop

le are allow
ed to look at

 is 

• ttanssio
n and any tran

sgression is
 bad, bat an

ything uniqu
e beyond that

? 

10. IMPALA; Y
our nonce -- Yo

ur 'loner, I d
o not 
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1 

believe that t
his Court Ms 

the jurisdicti
on to revisit 

the propriety 
of the Reeling

 of 

these records 
and give the D

efendant or th
e State, for t

hat natter, a 
second bite at

 the 

apple. If the 
records are se

aled improperly
, which the Co

urt has said o
n its face tha

t 

appears to hav
e occurred, I 

do not believe
 that this Mere

 has jurisdict
ion to allow t

hem a 

second bite at
 the apple to 

go through wit
h the notice r

equirements. T
hey should have

 done 

that in front o
f Judge Pucill

o a year ago a
nd they did no

t do it. The R
ule of Judicia

l 

Administration
 2.420 simply 

does not give 
this Court tho

 right to reac
tivate the pro

cedure 

that you outl
ined. 

THR COURT: Okay
. 

mi. soon, tha
nk you. 

TIM COURT: Any
thing further.

 Mr. Goldberge
r or Mx. Critt

ant 

MR. GOTDOBROBR
, JUst note, Yo

ur donor, ma t
ar ae the timi

ng of this and
 we 

want to do thi
s expeditiou

sly, of course,
 this sealing 

occurred not l
ast week, not 

two 

seeks ago, not
 four months a

go but eleven 
and one half so

nths ago. The 
Post reported 

this last July.
 So, I 

understand the
 right for the

 pubic to have
 access and we 

want to do thi
s as quickly a

s 

possible but t
here is no fire

 here. There i
s no house bur

ning. 

/MR COURT: The
n I'll go ahea

d and enter an
 Order as 
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3. 

I've indicate
d, that le th

at I'll grant 
the Intervene

r's Notion to
 Interveme. Yo

u have 

standing, I wi
ll order that

 the State an
d/or the defen

se by noon Pr
Iday file a C

odes of --

comply with t
he Administrat

ive Order 2.3
03 and the Jud

icial Rule --
 the Rule of J

udicial 

Administratio
n 

2.420, paragr
aph d, that ou

tlines the pr
ocedures to s

eal files in th
ese types o

f oases end 

then we'll ge
t a hearing sc

heduled for c
agueent on whe

ther or not t
hey will be po

oled. 

Until that tim
e they wilt re

main sealed b
ecause Judge P

uoillo signed
 off on the or

der and 

I'm not inoli
ned 

to disturb tha
t until I fin

d wore about t
he merits of 

the movant's p
osition. 

If. 00UMMIUMM
, That you. 

THE COURT: Any
body want to 

reduce any of
 that mono to 

a written Ord
er? 

NR. EDWARDS: 
I'd like to Yo

ur Honor. I'd
 like to know 

if you're goin
g to give 

us a hearing 
date today. I

n COORS' 
deal with tha

t. Yeah. tot m
e give 

you acme time
. Sow much tim

e do you thin
k it's going t

o take? I don
't think I'm g

oing to 

have any surpr
ises. Now muc

h time do you
 think we need

? A half hour
? 

HR. ZOWARDS: N
ot wore. I'd 

'my an hour at
 the longest.

 

TNN COURT: I'm
 not taking e

vidence or any
thing like th

at. In the mea
ntime, do you

 

agree it woul
d DO prudent 
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1 

for se to tak
e a look and so

o what the cont
ent of them) 

things are so I
 can to 

articulate on w
hat -- their kno

w about? 2 didn
't do that fOr t

oday's hearing?
 

22. GOLDBERGER: 
The defense - 

MR. EDWARDS: The
 non-prosecutio

n agrammanti 

THE COURT: Righ
t. Whatever in u

nder seal. Whate
ver it ift that'

s undo: seal 

take a look at it
 so that I can 

at least have a f
eel for apparent

ly what you all
 know and 

I don't. 

MR. GOLDBERGER:
 The defense has

 no objection. 

Thlt COURT: Okay.
 2.11 go ahead an

d read those tw
o sealed documen

ts and I'll see
 

you back here. as
suming that Mr.

 Goldberger and 
Mr. Critter get

 that done betwe
en row and 

Friday. Ten day
s from this PriG

ay is the 22nd.
 How about we dO

 this on the 25
th at 1:30? 

NA GOLDBERGER: One
 novant. Your Hon

or. That's fine
 with ms. 

W. IMAGER. Than
k you. 

INS COURT, all r
ight. great. Than Y

OU do such. R. 00U,OtROSA, Tha
nk you. Judge. 

IrsoarsoltiCS cone
tasso) 
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1 

srtflrLCATC 

X, LoVANNE M
MES, certify

 that I was a
uthorised to 

and did digit
ally report t

he 

foregoing pro
ceedings and 

that the tran
script is a t

rue sod coopl
ete record of

 wy notes. 

Dated this 10
th day of Jun

e, 2009. 
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IN THE CIRCUIT OCURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER NO. 2.303-9/08 

IN RE: SEALING OF COURT HEARINGS 

AND RECORDS 

The Florida constitution mandates that the public shall have access to court records, subject 

only to certain enumerated limitations which are restricted by operation of state law, federal law, or 

court rule. jr re Amendments to Florida Rule of Judicial Admin. 2.420 — Sealing of Court Records, 

954 So.2d 16 (Fla. 2007). The Rules of the Supreme Court strongly disfavor court records that are 

hidden from public scrutiny. The Florida Supreme Court recently adopted Interim Rule 2.420 of the 

Florida Rules of Judicial Administration which addresses the procedures for sealing noncriminal 

court records. In order to ensure that both criminal and noncriminal court records are sealed properly 

it is 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority conferred by Florida Rule of Judicial 

Administration 2.215, it is ORDERED as follows: 

1. A request to make court records or a court hearing confidential in any type of case must be 

made by written motion. Parties cannot submit an agreed-upon order. The Motion must be 

captioned "Motion to Make Court Records Confidential" or"Motion to Make Court Hearing 

Confidential". The Motion must identify with particularity the records or hearing to be made 

confidential and the grounds upon which it is based. The Motion must include a signed 

certification by the party making the request that the motion is being made in good faith and 

is supported by a sound factual and legal basis. 

I 

2. The records that are the subject of a Motion to Make Court Records Confidential will be 

treated as confidential pending resolution of the motion. The case number, docket number, 

or other identifying number of a case will remain public. Pseudonyms may be used as 

permitted by the court. Court records made confidential under this rule must be treated as 

confidential during any appellate proceeding in this Circuit. 

3. A public hearing on any motion to seal a court record or court hearing will be held as soon as 

practicable but no less than ten (10) days prior to the notice being given to the public and the 

press and no later than 30 days after the filing of the motion. A party may seek to hold all or 
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a portion of the hearing on a Motion to Make Court Records Confidential in camera if 

necessary to protect any of the interests listed in Interim Rule of Judicial Administration 

2.420(cX9XA). The moving party will be responsible for ensuring that a complete record of 

any hearing be created either by use of a court reporter or by any recording device that is 

provided as a matter of right by the court. 

4. A sealing order issued by a court must state with specificity the grounds for sealing and the 

findings of the court that justify sealing. The order granting the sealing request must contain 

as much detail as possible including the parties' names or pseudonyms, whether the progress 

docket is to be confidential, the court records that are to be confidential and the names of 

persons who are permitted Recta% The order must contain specific findings that the degree, 

duration, and manner of confidentiality are no broader than necessary to protect the interests 

listed in Interim Rule of Judicial Administration 2.420(cX9XA). The order will not reveal 

the information that is to be made confidential. The order will direct whether the progress 

docket is to be sealed. 

5. If an order sealing a court file is silent as to whether the progress docket is to be sealed, the 

clerk shall seal the court file but maintain a public docket with no alternation of the parties' 

names. In accordance with Interim Rule of Judicial Administration 2.420(cX9) the Clerk 

shall NOT seal the case number, docket number, or any other identifying number of a case 

that is sealed by court order. 

6. The Court will direct the Clerk to post the order sealing the court file on the Clerk's website 

as well as on the bulletin board located at the Main Courthouse within ten (10) days 

following the entry of the order and must remain posted in both locations for at least 30 days. 

7. A nonparty may file a written motion to vacate a sealing order in accordance with Florida 

Rule of Judicial Administration 2.420 (2007); in re Amendments to Florida Rule of Judicial 

Admin. 2.420 — Sealing of Court Records, 954 So.2d 16 (Fla, 2007). 

I 
8. A public hearing must be held on any contested motion to vacate a sealing order. The court, 

in its discretion, may hold a hearing on an uncontested motion. While challenge hearings 

must be open to the public, a party may seek to hold a portion or all of the hearing In camera 

if necessary to protect the interests listed in Interim Rule of Judicial Administration 

2.420(cX9XA). The movant must ensure that a record of the hearing is made. The movant 

seeking to vacate an order bears the burden of showing that the order is unsound. 

9. If the identity of a party is to remain confidential, all applicable pleadings will be filed with 

the following designation on the front of the pleading: "Confidential Party — Court Service 

Requested". The judicial assistant for the division in which the pleading is filed is 

responsible for providing such notice to the applicable parties. The judicial assistant is to 

provide such notice so as not to inadvertently reveal the identity of the confidential party. 

2 
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10. This administrative rule does NOT address the confidentiality of records admitted into 

evidence and it does NOT pertain to the statutory process for sealing or expunging criminal 

history records. Motions to Seal pleadings or court records filed in a criminal case must, 

however, comply with this Administrative Order. This administrative order also does NOT 

pertain to court records that are confidential pursuant to statute, rule or other legal authority. 

11. 11 a motion to seal is not made in good faith and is not supported by a sound legal and factual 

basis, the court may impose sanctions upon the movant. 

12. The Clerk of Court, or a deputy clerk, is hereby authorized to open any court file sealed by 

operation of law or court order for the purpose of filing documents pertinent to the particular 

file, as well as for microfilming or imaging files, and for preparing a record on appeal. The 

Clerk, or deputy clerk, shall reseal the file immediately upon completion of the task, with the 

date and time of the unsealing clearly marked on the outside of the file thong with the initials 

of the deputy clerk. 

13. In all matters except adoption and surrogacy cases, the Clerk of Court will make the contents 

of a sealed file available to adult parties and their attorneys of record. The contents of 

adoption and surrogacy files shall not be made available to any person absent a court order. 

DONE AND SIGNED in Chambers in West Palm Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida 

day of September, 2008. 

supersedes admin. order 2.03210/06 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY FLORIDA 

ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER NO.2.032 - 10106* 

IN RE: SEALING COURT HEARINGS 

AND RECORDS 

WHEREAS all court proceedings are public events and a strong presumption of 

public access attaches to all proceedings end their records; and 

WHEREAS records made or received pursuant to court rule, law, or ordinance, or in 

connection with the transaction of official business are subject to public disclosure; and 

WHEREAS privacy rights of litigants may in certain circumstances require that court 

records or documents in the record should be sealed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is ORDERED that to balance the competing interests of 

litigants' privacy interests and the public's right to access to court records. the following 

procedures are established for scaling court records: 

I . When a Motion is received for the sealing of a hearing or all or part of a court record, 

the Court will direct a hearing be held on same. The Court will give notice of the hearing by 

posting same on the electmnic bulletin board established by the Clerk of Court expressly for this 

purpose. Unless otherwise ordered with a reason given by the Court, notice should include 

enough disclosure to identify the case, the movant, the respondent, and a brief, generic 

description of the matters sealed or sought to he sealed. 

2. The Court will not set a hearing less than ten (I0) days prior to the notice being given 

to the public and the press. 

3. Where prior notice to the public and press regarding the scaling of a record is not 

practicable, the Court will address such Motion, and if granted, provide notice of any decision to 

seal on the Clerk's electronic bulletin board. Unless otherwise ordered with a reason given by the 

Court, notice should include enough disclosure to identify the case, the movant, the respondent, 

and a brief, generic description of the matters scaled or sought to be sealed. 

4, Access to court proceedings and records may be restricted to protect the 

interests of litigants only after a showing that the following has been met: 

(i) the measure limiting or denying access, closure or sealing of records or 

both, Is necessary to prevent a serious and imminent threat to the 

administration of Justice; 
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(ii) no less restrictive alternative measures are available which would 

mitigate the danger; and 

(ill) the measure being considered will In fact achieve the courts protective 

purpose. 

5. The reasons supporting seating the file must be stated with specificity In the 

order sealing the court record or hearing. The Case number should remain accessible on 

banners' regardless of whether the case has been sealed. 

DONE and ORDERED, in Chambers. at West Palm Beach. Florida this 13th day of 

October. 2006. 

/S/ 
Judge Kathleen 1. Kroll. Chief Judge 

supersedes administrative order no. 2.032 •1104 

" The Court recognizes the present technology (as of October 10. 2006) used by the Clerk 

supports this, however it con not happen without a system modification which shall be completed 

by December 31.2006. 
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Westlaw, 
Not Reported in So.2d 

Not Reported in So.2d, 1994 WL 741009 (Fla.Cir.Ct.), 22 Media L. Rep. 2497 

(Cite as: 1994 WL 741009 (Fla.Cir.Ct.)) 

C 

Florida Circuit Court, Seventh Judicial Circuit, 

Volusia County. 

JOHN DOE-I THROUGH JOHN DOE-4 and Par-

ents of John Doe-1 through John Doc-4, Plaintiffs, 

MUSEUM OF SCIENCE AND HISTORY OF 

JACKSONVILLE, INC., Defendant. 

Nos. 92-32567-CI-CI, Div. 32. 

June 8, 1994. 

William H. Ogle, Ormond Beach, FL. 

W. Douglas Childs, Jacksonville, FL. 

Jonathan D. Kaney Jr., Daytona Beach, FL. 

OPINION AND ORDER ON MOTION TO 

CLOSE TRIAL 

RICHARD B. ORFINGER, Circuit Judge. 

*1 THIS MATTER is before the Court on the 

plaintiff? motion to exclude the public from the tri-

al of this case. Notice of hearing was given to rep-

resentatives of the media as required by law. News-

Journal Corporation, publisher of The News-

Journal, filed a response and appeared in opposi-

tion to the motion. Defendant took no position. 

According to the complaint, a man who worked at 

the local museum sexually abused the minor 

plaintiffs. He had first come into contact with three 

of the minors as they served as volunteers under his 

supervision. More than four years ago, the abuser 

was prosecuted and sentenced to prison. Since then 

the plaintiffs have settled suits for damages result-

ing from this abuse against the Daytona Beach Mu-

seum of Arts and Sciences, the Volusia County 

School Board, and the Florida Department of 

Health and Rehabilitative Services. As a previous 

employer of the abuser, plaintiffs allege this de-

Page I 

fendant failed to disclose information about the ab-

user's record of sexual abuse when it received an 

inquiry related to his employment in this com-

munity. 

Although so many persons have become familiar 

with the case that defendant has listed eighty-one 

potential fact witnesses, no victim has yet been 

identified in the media. 

Relying on a privacy interest in the facts relating to 

the sexual abuse, plaintiffs argue that closure is ne-

cessary to prevent the substantial harm that likely 

would result from revelation of these facts and 

identification as the victims.EN I Thus the motion 

calls upon the court to decide whether a privacy in-

terest in the facts relating to sexual abuse suffered 

by the minors provides a proper basis for closure of 

the trial of the minors' suit for damages arising out 

of this abuse. For the reasons that follow, the court 

concludes that this is not a proper basis for closure 

and denies the motion. 

FN1. Previously, plaintiffs moved for an 

order restraining anyone, including the me-

dia, from publishing information disclosed 

during the trial that would identify the 

minor victims. The court denied this mo-

tion. See: Nebraska Press Association I 

Stuart, 427 U.S. 539 (1976) and The Flor-

ida Star' B.J.F., 491 U.S. 524 (1989). 

Whenever other interests compete with the public 

interest in open judicial proceedings, "folur analys-

is must begin with the proposition that all civil and 

criminal court proceedings are public events, re-

cords of court proceedings are public records, and 

there is a strong presumption in favor of public ac-

cess to such matters." Sentinel Communications Co. 

I. Watson, 615 So.2d 768, 770 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993) 

(citing Barron'. Florida Freedom Newspapers, 

Mc., 531 So.2d 113 (Fla.1988)). This presumption 

rests on the most fundamental values of American 

government. 

(ID 2009 Thomson Reuters/West. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works. 
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Not Reported in So.2d, 1994 WL 741009 (Fla.Cir.Ct.), 22 Media L. Rep. 2497 

(Cite as: 1994 WL 741009 (Fla.Cir.Ct.)) 

"[T]he people have a right to know what is done in 

their courts.... [T]he greatest publicity to the acts of 

those holding positions of public trust, and the 

greatest freedom in the discussion of the proceed-

ings of public tribunals that is consistent with truth 

and decency, are regarded as essential to the public 

welfare." Barron, 531 So.2d at l 1 6-7 (citing In re 

Shortridge, 34 P. 227, 228.29 (Cal.1893) ). Open-

ness in courts has a salutary effect on the 

propensity of witnesses to tell the truth and of judi-

cial officers to perform their duties conscientiously. 

It informs persons affected by litigation of its effect 

upon them and fosters "respect for the law[,] intelli-

gent acquaintance ... with the methods of govern-

ment[, and] a strong confidence in judicial remedies 

... which could never be inspired by a system of 

secrecy...." Id., (citing 6 WIGMORE, EVIDENCE 

§ 1834 (Chadbourn rev.1976) ). These fundamental 

values come into play whenever the court is in ses-

sion; and the presumption of openness applies in 

hard cases as well as easy cases. "The reason for 

openness is basic to our form of government." Id. 

•2 This motion is opposed by various news organ-

izations, but the presumption of openness is of lar-

ger importance than the immediate interest of the 

press in the case of the moment. To be sure, the 

press has a cognizable interest in maintaining open 

courts "because its ability to gather news is directly 

impaired or curtailed" by restrictions on access. 

Moreover, the press is assigned a fiduciary role in 

enforcing public rights of access because the press 

"may be properly considered as a representative of 

the public [for] enforcement of public right of ac-

cess." Nevertheless, the values of openness in 

courts transcend the interests of the press because 

"[f]reedom of the press is not, and has never been a 

private property right granted to those who own the 

news media. It is a cherished and almost sacred 

right of each citizen to be informed about current 

events on a timely basis so each can exercise his 

discretion in determining the destiny and security 

of himself, other people, and the Nation." Stew ex 

rel. Miami Herald Pub. Co.l McIntosh, 340 So.2d 

904, 908 (Fla.1977). In serving the right of each cit-

Page 2 

izen to be informed, judicial openness, of which the 

press is an instrument, sustains public confidence in 

the judiciary and thus serves the ultimate value of 

popular sovereignty. 

This higher purpose of openness is not always ap-

parent in the public scrutiny of the daily business of 

the courts. Depending on the definition of news-

worthiness, it may be possible to dismiss as un-

worthy much that transpires in civil courts. Here, it 

is easy to ask what public interest is served by sub-

jecting these minor victims to the risk of public 

identification. However, Barron teaches that this is 

the wrong question because it overlooks the higher 

purpose of openness in the courts. 

In Barron, a case involving privacy concerns inher-

ent in a divorce case, the court strongly reaffirmed 

the presumption that Florida civil courts are open. 

In dissent, Justice McDonald saw the question in 

case-specific terms. He would have closed the pro-

ceeding because "the rights of the public to inform-

ation contained in a domestic relations lawsuit is 

minimal, if existent at all." 531 So.2d at 121. Impli-

citly, this approach would have required the pro-

ponent of openness to show a particular need to 

know facts of the specific case in order to gain ac-

cess. The majority rejected this approach because it 

saw the conflicting interests in broader terms. "The 

parties seeking a dissolution of their marriage are 

not entitled to a private court proceeding just be-

cause they are required to utilize the judicial sys-

tem." 531 So.2d at 119. 

A closure request implicates the integrity and cred-

ibility of the judicial system itself and not just the 

immediate concerns of the parties. The balance to 

be struck is not between the people's need to know 

the particular facts of the case versus the parties' 

need to keep these facts private but between the 

public interest in open courts versus the personal 

desire for a private forum. "Public trials are essen-

tial to the judicial system's credibility in a free soci-

ety." Barron at 116. 

•3 Although the Florida Supreme Court holds that 

O 2009 Thomson Reuters/West. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works. 
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"the public and the press have a fundamental right 

of access to all judicial proceedings," however, this 

right is not absolute. State ex ref. Miami Herald 

Pub. Co.l. McIntosh, 340 So.2d at 908-9. In Bar-

ron, the court took the occasion to establish the 

standards upon which the presumption of openness 

may be overcome when necessary "to protect com-

peting interests." The court wrote a "definitive 

statement ... to assist judicial officers in this sensit-

ive area." 531 So.2d at 117-8. 

Barron establishes a strong presumption of open-

ness for all court proceedings and records, places 

the burden on the proponent of closure, and grants 

standing to the public and media to challenge clos-

ure orders. Before a court may enter any order of 

closure it must determine there are no reasonable 

alternatives to closure and must order the least re-

strictive closure necessary to accomplish the pur-

pose of closure. 531 So.2d at 118-9. A closure or-

der should be "drawn with particularity and nar-

rowly applied." 531 So.2d at 117. 

Barron specifics an exclusive listing of those com-

peting interests that may under appropriate circum-

stances be sufficiently weighty to justify closure. 

Closure may be ordered "only when necessary" to 

serve one of six competing interests: 

(a) to comply with established public policy set 

forth in the constitution, statutes, rules, or case 

law; 

(b) to protect trade secrets; 

(c) to protect a compelling governmental interest 

[e.g., national security; confidential informants]; 

(d) to obtain evidence to properly determine legal 

issues in a case; 

(e) to avoid substantial injury to innocent third 

parties (e.g., to protect young witnesses from of-

fensive testimony; to protect children in a di-

vorce]; or 

(f) to avoid substantial injury to a party by disclos-
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urc of matters protected by a common law or pri-

vacy right not generally inherent in the specific 

type of civil proceeding sought to be closed.... 

At the outset, the proponent of closure must identi-

fy one or more of such interests that is implicated in 

the proposed closure. Here it is not necessary to go 

beyond this first level of analysis because plaintiffs 

have not connected their motion to a valid interest 

that would justify closure. 

This motion poses a direct confrontation between 

the individual interest in privacy and the public in-

terest in open courts. Because there is inherent in 

the case sensitive, intimate, and embarrassing 

private facts, plaintiffs seek to litigate their claim in 

a closed proceeding. They argue "[ghat revelation 

of [the identities of the minor plaintiffs] has the po-

tential to inflict substantial harm upon them (as] a 

matter of common sense." 

There is no question there are strong reasons to 

keep private the facts surrounding the abuse prac-

ticed on the minors by the now-imprisoned abuser. 

The question this court must decide, however, is 

whether these are reasons to secure the courtroom. 

The question is not whether to afford privacy to the 

plaintiffs but whether to afford plaintiffs a closed 

forum in which to disclose these facts. 

*4 Although there is no case directly on this point, 

the present question comes fully within the holding 

of Barron, which thoroughly considered the com-

petition between the people's interest in public 

courts and the personal interest in private facts. In 

effect, Barron raised the question of the role to be 

assigned to privacy in a system of public courts, 

and the majority resolved the issue by granting a 

narrow role to privacy based on considerations re-

lating to the legitimate expectations of privacy. 

In the Florida Supreme Court's well-developed pri-

vacy jurisprudence, the fundamental basis of the 

right of privacy is a legitimate expectation of pri-

vacy. Not every fact in every circumstance is 

private, and not every act of government violates 
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the right to be let alone. The concept by which the 

court separates the appropriate from the inappropri-

ate instance for invoking the privacy right is this 

expectation. Stall'. State, 570 So.2d 257, 261 

(Fla.1990). In order to establish a right of privacy, 

the individual must establish that "a reasonable ex-

pectation of privacy ... exist[s]." Winfield'. Divi-

sion of Parl-Mutuel Wagering, 477 So.2d 544, 547 

(Fla.1985). 

A right of privacy cannot attach when there is no 

expectation of privacy. Under our historic tradition 

of public courts, what reasonable expectation of 

privacy could a litigant possibly entertain? Concur-

ring in Barron, Justice Erhlich would have con-

ceded the litigant no reasonable expectation of pri-

vacy. He pointed out, "we have recognized that 

title potential for invasion of privacy is inherent 

in the litigation process.' Rasmussen, South Flor-

ida Blood Service, 500 So.2d 533, 535 (Fla.1987). 

While civil litigants may have a legitimate expecta-

tion of privacy in pretrial depositions and interrog-

atories which are not filed with the court (citations 

omitted), no such expectation exists in connection 

with civil proceedings and court files which histor-

ically have been open to the public. See Forsberg! 

Housing Authority, 455 So.2d 373, 375 (Fla.1984) 

(Overton, J., concurring) (there is traditionally no 

expectation of privacy in court files)." 531 So.2d at 

120. Justice Erhlich shows the conflict between pri-

vacy and publicness. If the privacy interest were al-

lowed unbounded scope, it would overcome the 

public nature of trials. Thus a system of public tri-

als must insist that litigants abandon qualms about 

disclosure of private facts when they place them in 

contest in the court. 

Without rejecting this view entirely, the majority 

nevertheless identified a limited scope of privacy 

within civil litigation. "\Ve find that, under appro-

priate circumstances, the constitutional right of pri-

vacy established in Florida by the adoption of art-

icle 1, section 23, could form a constitutional basis 

for closure under (e) or (f)." 531 So.2d at 118. The 

majority thus conceived of two instances in which a 
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reasonable expectation of privacy might be found. 

*5 First, there is the privacy expectation of persons 

who are not parties to the case. Involuntary parti-

cipants may have a reasonable claim of privacy. 

Thus under item (g), Barron recognizes that closure 

may be justified if the proponent carries the heavy 

burden of showing closure is necessary "to avoid 

substantial injury to innocent third parties [e.g., to 

protect young witnesses from offensive testimony; 

to protect children in a divorce]." 531 So.2d at 118. 

Second, there is the more limited privacy expecta-

tion of a party. Again, the doctrine of legitimate ex-

pectation is applicable. Although a litigant has no 

right to expect privacy in matters involved in the 

case litigated in a public court, there may be mat-

ters extrinsic to the case with respect to which a lit-

igant has a reasonable privacy claim. Under Bar-

ron's item (f), a proponent may be entitled to clos-

ure if he or she carries the burden of showing that 

closure is necessary "to avoid substantial injury to a 

party by disclosure of matters protected by a com-

mon law or privacy right not generally inherent in 

the specific type of civil proceeding sought to be 

closed." 531 So.2d at 118. 

Barron rules out closure based on privacy interests 

of parties in the subject matter of the case itself. In 

recognizing a peripheral role for the privacy claims 

of civil litigants, the majority held there can be no 

privacy interest in that which is inherent in the 

case. Because litigation in a public court system in-

volves an inherent tendency to invade privacy, a lit-

igant has no reasonable expectation of privacy in 

the subject matter of a case. This must be so if, as 

Barron soundly affirms, there is to be a system of 

open courts in Florida. 

Applying this standard in Barron, the court determ-

ined the medical history in question should not be 

sealed because it was inherent in the case. 

"Although generally protected by one's privacy 

right, medical reports and history are no longer pro-

tected when the medical condition becomes an in-

tegral part of the civil proceeding, particularly 
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when the condition is asserted as an issue by the 

party seeking closure.... [Mjedical information is an 

inherent part of these proceedings and cannot be 

utilized as a proper basis for closure." 531 So.2d at 

119. 

The same is true in this case. Those private facts 

which form the basis of the motion for closure arc 

the facts inherent in the plaintiffs' case. Neverthe-

less, plaintiffs argue their request implicates the 

competing interests Barron listed in item (a) deal-

ing with public policy, item (e), dealing with pri-

vacy of third party, and item (f), dealing with pri-

vacy of a party. 

Plaintiffs first argue that closure of the trial is ne-

cessary under item (a) "to comply with established 

public policy set forth in the constitution, statutes, 

rules, or case law." 531 So.2d at 118. Plaintiffs 

rightly contend "Wile State of Florida has long re-

cognized, as a matter of public policy, the need to 

protect minors who come into contact with the 

justice system," and cite statutory provisions ex-

empting records of sex crimes and child abuse from 

public records disclosure and providing for closure 

of adoption and dependency proceedings. See 

Fla.Stat §§ 119.07(h); 63.162; 39.408(c). 

*6 To be sure, it is public policy to protect minor 

victims of sex crimes from unnecessary public ex-

posure. The cited exceptions to public records laws 

illustrate this as does the practice of anonymous 

pleading. 

However, state policy neither requires nor permits 

closure of public trials on the basis of the privacy 

interests of minor victims of sex crimes. The trial of 

the perpetrator of a sex crime against a minor must 

be conducte4 in public as a matter of Florida com-

mon law.
FN2 Under Fla.Stat., § 918.16, the court 

has a certain ability to clear the courtroom during 

testimony of a person under the age of 16, 
N3 

but the 

press specifically may not be excluded. A re-

cent statute protecting minor witnesses does not 

purport to authorize closure of the trial to protect 

minor witnesses.F
N4 When the state prosecutes the 
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parent of a minor child for sexual abuses practiced 

on the child, the trial is not closed nor is there sup-

pression of the identity of the parent from which, as 

plaintiffs argue here, the identity of the child is 

readily inferred.F
N5 Indeed, from the reports of 

tort suits by minor victims of sexual crimes seeking 

damages from the perpetrator or those vicariously 

liable, it can be seen that the courts of this state 

conduct eases like the present as open public trials 

in the name of the party.
F N6 

FN2. Bundy State, 455 So.2d 330 

(Fla.1984), cert. denied, 476 U.S. 1109 

(1986). Miami Herald Publishing Co 

Lewis, 426 So.2d 1 (Fla.1982). See also 

Globe Newspaper Company I. Superior 

Court, 102 S.Ct. 2613 (1982) (Same under 

First Amendment). 

FN3. See Palm Beach Newspapers 

Nourse, 413 So.2d 467 (Fla. 4th DCA 

1982) (Error to summarily exclude press 

from arraignment of defendant charge with 

lewd and lascivious act on child under age 

14); News-Press Pub. Shearer, 5 

Med.L.Rptr. 1272 (Fla. 2d DCA 1979) 

(Error to exclude press from courtroom 

while juvenile witness in sex crime testi-

fies and error to seal record from press). 

Compare Miami Herald Pub. Co. I. 

Morphonios, 467 So.2d 1026 (Fla.1985) 

(Error to gag press from publishing testi-

mony of minor witness via prerecorded 

video) and Thornton'. State, 585 So.2d 

1189 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991) (Statute cannot 

override defendant's Sixth Amendment 

right to public trial without case-by-case 

balancing test). See also Doe I. Doe, 567 

So.2d 1002 (Fla. 4th DCA 1990) 

(Affirming denial of motion to close pro-

ceedings in which mother seeks authority 

for surgical sterilization of mentally handi-

capped daughter). 

FN4. Fla.Stat. § 92.55 (Authorizing the 

court to permit or prohibit "the attendance 
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of any person at the proceeding") 

(emphasis supplied). 

FNS. See, e.g., Schmidt'. State, 590 So.2d 

404 (Fla.1991) (Father prosecuted for 

crime of video recording of minor daughter 

in violation of statute concerning depiction 

of sex acts); Sanders.. State, 568 So.2d 

1014 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990) (Father prosec-

uted for lewd and lascivious acts against 

minor daughter). 

FN6. Sce, e.g., Zordan 1. Page, 500 So.2d 

608 (Fla. 2d DCA 1987) (Suit by minor 

and parents against carrier for damages in-

curred when insured fondled private parts 

of minor plaintiff); Hennagan F. Depart-

ment of Highway Safety and Motor 

Vehicles, 467 So.2d 748 (Fla. I st DCA 

1985) (suit by minor and parents against 

FHP for damages when minor driver was 

allegedly sexually abused by patrolmen 

after being stopped on pretext of suspi-

cion); Drake f. Island Community Church, 

Inc., 462 So.2d 1142 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985) 

(Suit by minor and parents for damages 

from sexual abuse by teacher on minor pu-

pil). Compare Freehold School Board of 

Seminole County, 623 So.2d 761 (Fla. 5th 

DCA)cause dismissed, 629 So.2d 132 

(Fla.1994) (Suit for abuse inflicted on son 

by stepmother; failure to report suspected 

abuse by school); Fischer , Metcalf 543 

So.2d 785 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989) (Suit by 

minors against psychologist for damages 

from abusive father when suspicion of ab-

use was not reported). 

The court concludes that it is not necessary to close 

this trial in order to comply with any public policy 

of the State of Florida. 

The plaintiffs next argue that closure is necessary to 

serve the interest of innocent third parties whose 

privacy warrants closure under item (e) of Barron. 

The plaintiffs assert that each minor in this consol-
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idated cause is a third party as to the other three ac-

tions and thus the trial should be closed to protect 

them as third parties in the consolidated cases. Hav-

ing voluntarily joined to bring the action, they can-

not claim to be third parties to the action nor assert 

a legitimate expectation of privacy in the disclos-

ures that necessarily follow from their decision to 

act in concert. 

Plaintiffs also assert the privacy interest of other 

minors who were victims of this same abuse but 

who have not joined in this suit. There is no evid-

ence that trial of this case would implicate these 

third parties. In any event, plaintiffs lack standing 

to assert the interest of these third parties, and the 

Court will not decide any issue affecting their rights 

unless a party with standing raises the issue. 

Finally, plaintiffs attempt to bring their motion un-

der item (f) relating to the privacy interest of a 

party. To be entitled to an order of closure under 

this item, however, plaintiffs must show that clos-

ure is necessary "to avoid substantial injury to a 

party by disclosure of matters protected by a com-

mon law or privacy right not generally Inherent in 

the specific type of civil proceeding sought to be 

closed." 531 So.2d at 119.(emphasis added). 

Plaintiffs argue their identities are not inherent facts 

in the case and thus the trial should be closed to 

prevent revelation of the identity. However, 

plaintiffs also contend it will be impossible to try 

the case without revelation of their names. Their ar-

gument refutes itself. The identity of a party is in-

herent in the case, and that concern alone could not 

justify total closure. This argument is a proxy for 

the ineffective argument that the sensitive nature of 

inherent private facts should justify a private forum. 

Facts regarding abuse form the core of their case, 

and thus it "is an inherent part of these proceedings 

and cannot be utilized as a proper basis for clos-

ure." 531 So.2d at 119. The decision to litigate this 

issue is tantamount to a decision to place the in-

formation before the public. 

'7 As sympathetic as their claim is, it fails to state 

a cognizable reason for closure under the law. The 
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request to close a civil trial because of a party's dis-

closural concerns with facts inherent in the cause 

cannot be reconciled with Barron. Facts generally 

protected by a party's privacy right are no longer 

protected from disclosure when they become an in-

tegral part of a civil proceeding. Indeed, plaintiffs' 

argument for a private forum could be asserted as 

the basis for a wide array of exceptions that would 

swallow up the presumption of openness. "The ... 

argument based on this interest therefore proves too 

much. [T]hat sante interest could be relied upon to 

support an array of mandatory closure rules ... 

proves too much, and runs contrary to the very 

foundation of the right of access...." Globe Newspa-

per Company" Superior Court, 102 S.Ct. 2613, 

2622 (1982). 

Accordingly, having considered the briefs and argu-

ments of counsel for the reasons set forth in this 

opinion, it is ORDERED that the Motion to Close 

Trial be denied. 

DONE AND ORDERED. 

Fla.Cir.Ct.,1994. 

John Doc-1 Through John Doe-41. Museum of Sci-

ence and History of Jacksonville, Inc. 

Not Reported in So.2d, 1994 WC. 741009 

(Fla.Cir.Ct.), 22 Media L. Rcp. 2497 
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1 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. 08-80736-CIV-MARRA/JOHNSON 

IN RE: JANE DOE, 

Petitioner. 

FILED by I G D.C. 

JUL 0 9 2008 
STEVEN M LANIMORE 
CURS U.S. DISE c 
s.o.or FLA • W.P.B.

GOVERNMENT'S RESPONSE TO VICTIM'S EMERGENCY PETITION 

FOR ENFORCEMENT OF CRIME VICTIM RIGHTS ACT, 18 U.S.C. d 3771 

The United States of America, by and through its undersigned counsel, files its Response 

to Victim's Emergency Petition for Enforcement of Victim Rights Act, 18 U.S.C. § 3771, and 

states: 

I. THERE IS NO "COURT PROCEEDING" UNDER 18 U.S.C. & 3771(b) 

Petitioner complains that she has been denied her rights under the Crime Victims Rights 

Act, I8 U.S.C. § 3771. In the emergency petition filed by the victim, she alleges the Government 

has denied her rights since she has received no consultation with the attorney for the government 

regarding possible disposition of the charges (18 U.S.C. § 3771(a)(5)); no notice of any public 

court proceedings (18 U.S.C. § 3771(a)(2)); no information regarding her right to restitution (18 

U.S.C. § 3771(a)(6)); and no notice of rights under the Crime Victim Rights Act (CVRA). 

Emergency Petition,' 5. 

The instant case is unique in several respects. First, in 2006, Jeffrey Epstein was charged 

with felony solicitation of prostitution in the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm 

Beach County, Florida. This charge was based upon the offenses alleged in paragraph 1 of the 

petition. Second, while Epstein has been under federal investigation, he has not been charged in 
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*el 

the Southern District of Florida. 

Title 18, U.S.C., Section 3771(b)(1) provides in pertinent part that, "[i]n any court 

proceeding involving an offense against a crime victim, the court shall ensure that the crime 

victim is afforded the rights described in subsection (a)." There is no "court proceeding" in the 

instant case since Epstein has not been charged with violation of any federal statute. No federal 

grand jury indictment has been returned, nor has any criminal information been filed. There can 

thus be no failure of a right to notice of a public court proceeding or the right to restitution. 

In her memorandum, petitioner relies upon In Re Dean, 527 F.3d 391 (5th Or. 2008), 

where the Fifth Circuit held that the CVRA required the government to "confer in some 

reasonable way with the victims before ultimately exercising its broad discretion." a at 395. In 

pear, the government sought and obtained an eK pane order permitting it to negotiate a plea 

agreement with BP Products North America, without first consulting with the victims, 

individuals injured and survivors of those killed in a refinery explosion. A plea agreement was 

ultimately negotiated and the victims objected. The appellate court found that the CVRA granted 

a right to confer. I lowever, the court declined to grant mandamus relief for prudential reasons, 

finding that the district court had the benefit of the views of the victims who chose to participate 

at the hearing held on whether the plea agreement should be accepted. 14. at 396. 

Dm is legally distinguishable in several respects. For one thing, the court's discussion 

of the scope of the right to confer was unnecessary because the court ultimately declined to issue 

mandamus relief. Dean, 527 F.3d at 395. Also, in offering its view that this right applies pre-

charge, it is noteworthy that the court, in purporting to quote the statute, omitted the last three 

words of section 3171(a)(5)("in the case"), words that arguably point in the opposite direction by 

- 2 - 
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suggesting that the right applies post-charge. Further, the court went to great lengths to 

emphasize that its holding was limited to the particular circumstances presented in that case (i.e., 

the simultaneous filing of a plea agreement and formal charges), which of course, is not the case 

here. No federal charges have been filed in the instant case, and this case, unlike Dean involves 

an agreement to defer federal prosecution in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida and not a 

guilty plea. IL at 394. Finally, the Dean court expressly declined to "speculate on the [right to 

confer's] applicability to other situations." Id. Nothing in §3771(a)(5) supports the petitioner's 

claim that she had a right to be consulted before the Government could enter into a non-

prosecution agreement which defers federal prosecution in exchange for state court resolution of 

criminal liability, and a significant concession on an element of a claim for compensation under 

18 U.S.C. § 2255. 

11. THE GOVERNMENT HAS USED ITS BEST EFFORTS TO COMPLY WITH 

18  4 3771(a) 

The Epstein case was investigated initially by the Palm Beach Police Department in 2006. 

Exhibit A, Declaration of Assistant United States Attorney Inn 1 2

Subsequently, the Palm Beach Police Department sought the assistance of the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation (FBI). a Throughout the investigation, when a victim was identified, victim 

notification letters were provided to the victim by both the FBI Victim-Witness Specialist and 

AUSA al 3. Petitioner's counsel, Brad Edwards, Esq., currently represents., 

III., and II. The U.S. Attorney's Office victim notification letter to.. was provided by the 

FBI, and the letter to was hand-delivered by AUSA to her when she was 

interviewed in April 2007. FBI victim notification letters were mailed to.. and M. on 

- 3 - 
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January 10, 2008, and toll. on May 30, 2008. "Ill" Decl., ¶ 3. 

Throughout the investigation, AUSAIIIIII and the FBI's Victim-Witness Specialist 

had contact with. mai Decl., ¶ 4. Earlier in the investigation. was represented by 

James Eisenberg, E:sq. Consequently, all contact with. was made through Mr. Eisenberg. 

In mid-2007, Epstein's attorneys approached the U.S. Attorney's Office in an effort to 

resolve the federal investigation. al 5. At that time, Mr. Epstein had been charged by the 

State of Florida with solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Florida Statutes § 796.07. Mr. 

Epstein's attorneys sought a global resolution of this matter. The United States subsequently 

agreed to defer federal prosecution in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, so long as 

certain basic preconditions were met. One of the key objectives for the Government was to 

preserve a federal remedy for the young girls whom Epstein had sexually exploited. Thus, one 

condition of that agreement, notice of which was provided to the victims on July 9, 2008, is the 

following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an 

offense enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, 

will have the same rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she 

would have had, if Mr. Epstein had been tried federally and 

convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes of 

implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. 

Epstein's attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared 

to name in an Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by 

Mr. Epstein. Any judicial authority interpreting this provision, 

including any authority determining which evidentiary burdens if 

any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is the intent of the 

parties to place these identified victims in the same position as they 

would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No 

more; no less." 

The Attorney General Guidelines for Victim and Witness Assistance (May 2005), Article 

- 4 - 
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IV, Services to Victims and Witnesses, provides the following guidance for proposed plea 

agreements: 

(3) Proposed Plea Agreements. Responsible officials should make reasonable 

efforts to notify identified victims of, and consider victims' views about, 

prospective plea negotiations. In determining what is reasonable, the responsible 

official should consider factors relevant to the wisdom and practicality of giving 

notice and considering views in the context of the particular case, including, but 

not limited to, the following factors: 

(a) The impact on public safety and risks to personal safety. 

(b) The number of victims. 

(c) Whether time is of the essence in negotiating or entering a proposed plea. 

(d) Whether the proposed plea involves confidential information or conditions. 

(e) Whether there is another need for confidentiality. 

(f) Whether the victim is a possible witness in the case and the effect that relaying any 

information may have on the defendant's right to a fair trial. 

Throughout negotiations, Epstein's attorneys claimed that one reason victims came 

forward and pressed their claims was their desire for money. They argued that victims might 

have an inducement to fabricate or enhance their testimony, in order to maximize their 

opportunities to obtain financial recompense. Decl.,1, 8. The Government was 

extremely concerned that disclosure of the proposed terms would compromise the investigation 

by providing Epstein the means of impeaching the victim witnesses, should the parties fail to 

reach an agreement. In light of the fact (i) that the United States agreed to defer prosecution to a 

previously filed state criminal case; (ii) that as a result sentencing would take place in state court 

before a state judge; (iii) that if the state resolution failed to meet minimum standards such that a 

federal prosecution was warranted, the victims would be witnesses and thus potential 

- 5 - 
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impeachment issues were of concern; and (iv) the United States was already making efforts to 

secure for victims the right to proceed federally under 18 U.S.C. § 2255 even if prosecution took 

place in state court, the Government determined that its actions in proceeding with this 

agreement best balanced the dual position of the Jane Does as both victims and potential 

witnesses in a criminal proceeding. 

On Friday, June 27, 2008, at approximately 4:15 p.m., AUSA received a copy 

of the proposed state plea agreement, and learned that Epstein's state plea hearing was scheduled 

for Monday, June 30, 2008, at 8:30 a.m. Decl., I 10. AUSA _and the Palm 

Beach Police Department attempted to provide notification to victims in the short time that they 

had. jj Although all known victims were not notified, AUSA Ilindid call attorney 

Edwards to provide notice to his clients regarding the hearing. AUSA did this, even 

though she had no obligation to provide notice of a state court hearing. Mr. Edwards advised that 

he could not attend but that someone would be present at the hearing. Isk 

The Government has complied with 18 U.S.C. § 3771(c)(1) by using its best efforts to 

"see that crime victims are notified of, and accorded, the rights described in subsection (a)." 

Specifically, petitioner was afforded the reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the 

Government under 18 U.S.C. § 3771(a)(5). Disclosure of the specific terms of the negotiation 

were not disclosed prior to a final agreement being reached because the Government believed 

doing so would jeopardize and prejudice the prosecution in the event an agreement could not be 

made. Further, although 18 U.S.C. § 3771(a)(2) does not apply to state court proceedings, the 

government nonetheless notified petitioner's counsel on June 27, 2008, of the plea hearing in 

state court on June 30, 2008. 

- 6 - 
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Section 3771(d)(6) provides, in relevant part, that "[n]othing in this chapter shall be 

construed to impair the prosecutorial discretion of the Attorney General or any officer under his 

direction." The Government exercised its judgment and discretion in determining that there was 

a need for confidentiality in the negotiations with Epstein. The significant benefit of obtaining 

Epstein's concession that victims suing him under I8 U.S.C. § 2255(a) were "victims" of the 

enumerated offenses, despite the fact he has not been convicted in federal court, was of sufficient 

importance to justify confidentiality of the negotiations. 

III. THE GOVERNMENT'S DISCUSSIONS WITH., IS, AND 

Attorney Brad Edwards has advised the Government that he represents III, IN, and 

M. Victim letters were provided to all three individuals. The letters to mg and s  were 

forwarded on January 10, 2008. Villafafia Decl., 1 3. On May 28, 2008, Its status as a victim 

was confirmed when she was interviewed by federal agents. W., The FBI Victim Witness 

specialist sent her a letter on May 30, 2008. W., 

When the agreement was signed in September 2007, S was openly hostile to a 

prosecution of Epstein, and S had refused to speak with federal investigators. Id., 1 7. While 

individual victims were not consulted regarding the agreement, none of Mr. Edwards' clients 

had expressed a desire to be consulted prior to the resolution of the federal investigation. 1.4., 

In October 2007,11. was not represented by counsel. dI  . 1 8. She was given 

telephonic notice of the agreement, as were three other victims. These four individuals were 

also given notice of an expected change of plea, in state court, in October 2007. 

In mid-June 2008, Mr. Edwards contacted AUSA S to advise that he represented 

and II., and requested a meeting. L, 9 9. AUSA S asked Mr. Edwards to send 

- 7 - 
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%se ••••••• 

to her any information that he wished her to consider. Nothing was provided. a AUSA 

also told Mr. Edwards he could contact the State Attorney's Office, if he wished. To 

her knowledge, Mr. Edwards did not make the contact. 

The Government has acted reasonably in keeping s s,ands informed. 

Petitioner's rights under the CVRA have not been violated. Therefore, her emergency petition 

should be denied. 

Respectfully submitted, 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

By: 

It
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

Attorney for Respondent 

ERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was sent via facsimile 

transmission and U.S. Mail, this( day of July, 2008, to: Brad Edwards, Esq., The Law 

Offices of Brad Edwards & Associates, LLC, (954) 924-1530, 2028 Street, Suite 202, 

Hollywood, Florida 33020. 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

- 8 - 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 08-80736-Civ-Marra/Johnson 

IN RE: JANE DOE, 

Petitioner. 

FILED by D.C. 

JUL 0 91008 
STEVEN M. LKRIMORE 
CLERK U.S. Din CT. 
S.D. OF FLA. • WA B. 

DECLARATION a 
IN SUPPORT OF UNITED STATES' RESPONSE 

TO VICTIM'S EMERGENCY PETITION FOR ENFORCEMENT 

cw CRIME VICTIM RIGHTS ACT, 18 U.S.C. § 3771 

I. I, do hereby declare that 1 am a member in good standing 

of the Bar of the State of Florida. I graduated from the University of California at Berkeley 

School of Law (Boalt ■) in 1993. After serving as a judicial clerk to the Hon. David F. 

Levi in Sacramento, California, 1 was admitted to practice in California in 1995. 1 also am 

admitted to practice in all courts of the states of Minnesota and Florida, the Eighth, Eleventh, 

and Federal Circuit Courts of Appeals, and the U.S. District Courts for the Southern District 

of Florida, the District of Minnesota, and the Northern District of California. My bar 

admission status in California and Minnesota is currently inactive. I am currently employed 

as an Assistant United States Attorney in the Southern District of Florida and was so 

employed during all of the events described herein. 
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2 1 am the Assistant United States Attorney assigned to the investigation of 

Jeffrey Epstein. The case was investigated by the Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI"). 

The federal investigation was initiated in 2006 at the request of the Palm Beach Police 

Department ("PBPD") into allegations that Jeffrey Epstein and his personal assistants had 

used facilities of interstate commerce to induce young girls between the ages of thirteen and 

seventeen to engage in prostitution, amongst other offenses. 

3. Throughout the investigation, when a victim was identified, victim notification 

letters were provided to her both from your Affiant and from the FBI's Victim-Witness 

Specialist. Attached hereto are copies of the letters provided to Bradley Edwards' three 

clients, and Your Affiant's letter to was provided by the FBI. (Ex. 

I ). Your A Mantis letter to III was hand-delivered by myself to at the time that she 

was interviewed (Ex. 2).2 Both and also received letters from the FBI's Victim-

Witness Specialist, which were sent on January 10, 2008 (Exs. 3 & 4). was identified 

via the FBI's investigation in 2007, but she initially refused to speak with investigators. 

status as a victim of a federal offense was confirmed when she was interviewed by 

'Attorney Edwards filed his Motion on behalf of "Jane Doe," withoutififiaig which of 

his clients is the purported victim. Accordingly,) will address facts related to , S. and S.R. 

All three of those clients were victims of Jeffrey Epstein's while they were minors beginning when 

they were fifteen years old. 

'Please note that the dates on the U.S. Attorney's Office letters to III and In are not the 

dates that the letters were actually delivered. Letters to all known victims were prepared early in the 

investigation and delivered as each victim was contacted. 

-2-
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federal agents on May 28, 2008. The FBI's Victim-Witness Specialist sent a letter to II 

on May 30, 2008 (Ex. 5). 

4. Throughout the investigation, the FBI agents, the FBI's Victim-Witness 

Specialist, and your A ffiant had contact with • and Attorney Edwards' other client, 

was represented by counsel and, accordingly, all contact with IN was made through 

that attorney. That attorney was James Eisenberg, and his fees were paid by Jeffrey Epstein, 

the target of the investigation.)

5. In the summer of 2007, Mr. Epstein and the U.S. Attorney's Office for the 

Southern District of Florida ("the Office") entered into negotiations to resolve the 

investigation. At that time, Mr. Epstein had been charged by the State of Florida with 

solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Florida Statutes § 796.07. Mr. Epstein's attorneys 

sought a global resolution of the matter. The United States subsequently agreed to defer 

federal prosecution in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, so long as certain basic 

preconditions were met. One of the key objectives for the Government was to preserve a 

federal remedy for the young girls whom Epstein had sexually exploited. Thus, one 

condition of that agreement, notice of which was provided to the victims on July 9, 2008, is 

the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 

enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 

rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 

3The undersigned does not know when Mr. Edwards began representing II. or whether 

■. ever formally terminated Mr. Eisenberg's representation. 

-3-
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had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 

of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 

attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 

Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 

authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 

which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 

the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 

as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 

less." 

6. An agreement was reached in September 2007. The Agreement contained an 

express confidentiality provision. 

7. Although individual victims were not consulted regarding the agreement, 

several had expressed concerns regarding the exposure of their identities at trial and they 

desired a prompt resolution of the matter. At the time the agreement was signed in 

September 2007, la was openly hostile to the prosecution of Epstein. The FBI attempted 

to interview ■. in October 2007, at which time she refused to provide any information 

regarding Jeffrey Epstein. None of Attorney Edwards' clients had expressed a desire to be 

consulted prior to the resolution of the federal investigation. 

8. As explained above, one of the terms of the agreement deferring prosecution 

to the State of Florida was securing a federal remedy for the victims. In October 2007, 

shortly after the agreement was signed, four victims were contacted and these provisions 

were discussed. One of those victims was... who at the time was not represented, and she 

was given notice of the agreement. Notice was also provided of an expected change of plea 

in October 2007. When Epstein's attorneys learned that some of the victims had been 

-4-
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notified, they complained that the victims were receiving an incentive to overstate their 

involvement with Mr. Epstein in order to increase their damages claims. While your Affiant 

knew that the victims' statements had been taken and corroborated with independent 

evidence well before they were informed of the potential for damages, the agents and I 

concluded that informing additional victims could compromise the witnesses' credibility at 

trial if Epstein reneged on the agreement. 

9. After.. had been notified of the terms of the agreement, but before Epstein 

performed his obligations,III. contacted the FBI because Epstein's counsel was attempting 

to take her deposition and private investigators were harassing her. Your Affiant secured pro 

bono counsel to represent-. and several other identified victims. Pro bono counsel was 

able to assist.. in avoiding the improper deposition. That pro bono counsel did not 

express to your Affiant that.. was dissatisfied with the resolution of the matter. 

10. In mid-June 2008, Attorney Edwards contacted your Affiant to inform me that 

he represented.. and ■. and asked to meet to provide me with information regarding 

Epstein. I invited Attorney Edwards to send to me any information that he wanted me to 

consider. Nothing was provided. I also advised Attorney Edwards that he should consider 

contacting the State Attorney's Office, if he so wished. I understand that no contact with that 

office was made. Attorney Edwards had alluded to so I advised him that, to my 

knowledge, was still represented by Attorney James Eisenberg. 

-5-
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11. On Friday, June 27, 2008, at approximate 4:15 p.m., your Affiant received a 

copy of the proposed state plea agreement and learned that the plea was scheduled for 8:30 

a.m., Monday, June 30, 2008. Your Affiant and the Palm Beach Police Department 

attempted to provide notification to victims in the short time that Epstein's counsel had given 

us. Although all known victims were not notified, your Affiant specifically called attorney 

Edwards to provide notice to his clients regarding the hearing. Your Affiant believes that 

it was during this conversation that Attorney Edwards notified me that he represented ., 

and I assumed that he would pass on the notice to her, as well. Attorney Edwards informed 

your Affiant that he could not attend but that someone would be present at the hearing. Your 

Affiant attended the hearing, but none of Attorney Edwards' clients was present. 

12. On today's date, your Affiant provided the attached victim notifications to 

and.. via their attorney, Bradley Edwards (Exs. 6 & 7). A notification was not 

provided to.. because the U.S. Attorney's modification limited Epstein's liability to 

victims whom the United States was prepared to name in an indictment. In light of "I's 

prior statements to law enforcement, your Affiant could not in good faith include'''. as a 

victim in an indictment and, accordingly, could not include her in the list provided to 

Epstein's counsel. 

13. Furthermore, with respect to the Certification of Emergency, Attorney Edwards 

did not ever contact me prior to the filing of that Certification to demand the relief that he 

requests in his Emergency Petition. On the afternoon of July 7, 2008, after your Affiant had 

-6-
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already received the Certification of Emergency and Emergency Petition, I received a letter 

from Attorney Edwards that had been sent, via Certified Mail, on July 3, 2008. While that 

letter urges the Attorney General and the United States Attorney to consider "vigorous 

enforcement" of federal laws with respect to Jeffrey Epstein, it contains no demand for the 

relief requested in the Emergency Petition. 

14. 1 declare under penalty of perjury, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746 that the 

tbrcgoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Executed this Rior  day of July, 2008. 

-7-
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Ave, Suite 400 

'Vest Palm Bench, PL 33401 

(561)820.8 Fa 711 
imile 

June 7,2007 

DELIVERY BY HAND 
Miss G_—

Re: Crime Victims' and Witnesses' Rights 

Dear Miss WS 

Pursuant to the Justice for All Act of 2004, as a victim and/or witness of a federal offense, 

you have a number of rights. Those rights are: 

(1) The right to be reasonably protected from the accused. 

(2) The tight to reasonable, accurate, and timely notice of any public court proceeding 

involving the crime or of any release or escape of the accused. 

(3) The right not to be excluded from any public court proceeding, unless the court 

determines that your testimony may be materially altered if you are present for other 

portions of a proceeding. 

(4) The right to be reasonably heard at any public proceeding in the district court 

involving release, plea, or sentencing. 

(5) The reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the United States in the case. 

(6) The right to full and timely restitution as provided in law. 

(7) The right to proceedings free from unreasonable delay. 

(8) The right to be treated with fairness and with respect for the victim's dignity and 

privacy. 

Members of be U.S. Department of Justice and other federal investigative agencies, 

including the Federal Bureau of Investigation, must use their best efforts to make sure that these 

n hisaiprotected. If you have any concerns in this regard, please feel free to contact me at II 

, or Special Agent from•the Federal Bureau of Investigation at 561 

822-5946. You also can contact the Justice Department's Office for Victims of Crime in 

Washington, D.C. at 202.307-5983. That Office has a website at www.ove.gov. 

You can seek the advice of an attorney with respect to the righik listed above and, if you 

believe that the rights set forth above are being violated, you have the right to petition the Court for 

relief. 
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Nes 

Miss cad., 
It1NE 7,20O 

PNGE 2 

In addition to these rights, you are entitled to counseling and medical services, and protection 

from intimidation and harassment. If the Court determines that you arc a victim, you also may be 

entitled to restitution from the perpetrator. A list of counseling and medical service providers can 

be provided to you, if you so desire. If you or your family is subjected to any intimidation or 

harassment, please contact Special Agent or myself immediately. It is possible that 

someone working on behalf of the targets o t e investigation may contact you. Such contact does 

not violaledhe law.- However, if you are contacted, you have the choice of speaking to that person 

or refusing Redo eo: iif ou refuse and feel that you are being threatened or harassed, then please 

Contact Special Agent or myself. 

You also are entitled to notification of upcoming case events. At this time, your case is under 

investigation) If anyone is charged in connection with the investigation, you will be notified. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 
United States Attorney 

By 

Assistant United States Attorney 

cc: Special Agent IN= F.B.I.

f f 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

SO0 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Death. FL 33401 
(5613 870-
Facsimile, 

August 11, 2006 

DELIVERY BY HANQ 
Miss Teall 

Re: Crime Victims' and Witnesses' Rights 

Dear Miss MIla 

Pursuant to the Justice for All Act of 2004, as a victim and/or witness of a federal offense, 

you have a number of rights. Those rights are: 

(I) The right to be reasonably protected from the accused. 

(2) The right to reasonable, accurate, and timely notice of any public court proceeding 

involving the crime or of any release or escape of the accused. 

(3) The right not to be excluded from any public court proceeding, unless the court 

determines that your testimony may be materially altered i f you are present for other 

portions of a proceeding. 

(4) The tight to be reasonably heard at any public proceeding in the district court 

involving release, plea, or sentencing. 

(5) The reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the United States in the case. 

(6) The right to full and timely restitution as provided in law. 

(7) The right to proceedings free from unreasonable delay. 

(8) The right to be treated with fairness and with respect for the victim's dignity and 

privacy. f 

Members of the U.S. Departnient of Justice and other Wend investigative agencies, 

including the Federal Bureau of Investigation, must use their best efforts to make sure that Oaf 

rights arc protected. If you have an concerns in this regard, please feel free to contact me 

, or Special Agent from the Federal Bureau of Investigation at 561 

822-5946. You also can contact the Justice Department's Office for Victims of Crime in 

Washington, D.C. at 202-307.5983. That Office has a website at vAvw.ovc.gov. 

You can seek the advice of an attorney with respect to the rights. listed above and, if you 

believe that the rights ;et forth above are being violated, you have the right to petition the Court for 

relief. 
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M Iss TeISMINIS 
AUGUST 11,2006 

PAGE 2 

In addition to these rights, you are entitled to counseling and medical services, and hi 

from intimidation and harassment. If the Court determines that you are a victim, you • 

entitled to restitution from the perpetrator. A list of counseling and medical service ply. .. 

be provided to• you, if you so desire. If y o amity is subjected to any Mtn' • 

harassment, please cor.tact Special Agent or myself immediately. It is p, 

someone working on behalf of the targets of the investigation may contact you. Such t.;,,,• • 

not violate the law. However, if you are contacted, you have the choice of speaking to h . 

or refusing to do so. If ou nd feel that you are being threatened or harassed, du • 

Contact Special Agent I or myself. 

You also are entitled to notification o f upcomingcase events. At this lime, youi t. . 

investigation. II-anyone is charged in connection with the investigation, you will he not 

Sincerely, 

It Alexander Acosta 

cc: Special Agent 

By 

Assistant United States Attorney 

F.B.I. 

aces Moine 

if 
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U.S. Department of Justice 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
FBI -Weal Palm Beach 
Suite 500 
505 South Flagler Drive 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Phone: (681)833-7517 
Fax: (561) 833-7910 

Re: Case Number:S 

Dear canstage 

Ibis case is currently under Investigation. This can be a lengthy process and we request your 

continued patience while we conduct a thorough Investigation. 

As a crime victim, you have the following rights under 18 United States Code § 3771: (1) The right to 

be reasonably protected from the accused; (2) The right to reasonable, accurate, and timely notice of any 

public court proceeding, or any parole proceeding, involving the crime or of any release or escape of the 

accused; (3) The right not to be excluded from any such public court proceeding, unless the court, after 

receiving clear and convincing evidence, determines that testimony by the victim would be metedelly catered If 

the victim heard other testimony et that proceeding; (4) The right to be reasonably heard at any public 

proceeding in the district court Involving release, plea, sentencing, or any parole proceeding; (5) The 

reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the Government In the case; (0) The right to tull and timely 

restitution es provided in law; (7) The right to proceedings free from unreasonable delay; (8) The right to be 

heated with fairness and with respect for the victim's dignity and privacy. 

We will make ow best efforts to ensure you aro accorded the rights described. Moat of these rights 

pertain to events occurring after the arrest or indictment of an Individual for the crime, and It will become the 

responsibility of the prosecuting United states Attorney's Office to ensure you are accorded those rights. You 

may also seek the advice of a private attorney with respect to these rights. 

The Victim Notification System (VNS) is designed to provide you with direct information regarding the 

case as it proceeds through the criminal Justice system. You may obtain e formation about this metier

19fil,111111111/011N-. 19,1,GOV or from the VNS Call Centeri  a 
In addition, you may use the Call 

Center or Internet to update your contact information and/or change your decision about participation in the 

notification program. If you update your Information to Include a current email ari • 

information to that add following Victim Identification Numb d • 

Personal Identification anytime you contact the Call Center and the first lime you log on to 

VNS on the Internet. In addition, the first time you access the VNS Internet site, you will be prompted to enter 

your last name (or business name) es eunently contained In VNS. The name you should enter Is a 
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If you have additional questions which Involve this matter, please contact the office listed above. When 

you cat please provide the file number located al the top of this letter. Please remember. your participation 

in the notification pal of this program Is voluntary. In order to continue to receive notiticetionS. it Is your 

responsibility to keep your contact IntormatiOn current 

Sincerely. 

=MI 
Victim Specialist 
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West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
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U.S. Department of Justice 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
FBI - West Palm Beach 
Suite 500 
505 South Rattler Drive 
West Palm Beach, Ft. 33401 
Phone: (581) 833.7517 
Fax: (581) 8334970 

Dear James Eisenberg: 

You have requested to receive notifications for ~MP 

This case Is cunently under Investigation. This can be a lengthy process and we request your 

continued patience while we conduct a thorough investigation. 

Ass crime victim, you have the following rights under le United States Code § 3771: (1) The right to 

be reasonably protected from the, accused; (2) The right to reasonable, accurate, and timely notice of any 

public court proceeding, or any parole proceeding, Involving the crime or of any release or escape of the 

accused; (3) The right not to be excluded from any such public court proceeding. unless the court, after - 

receiving clear and convincing evidence, determines that testimony by the victim would be materially altered if 

the victim heard other testimony et that proceeding; (4) The right to be reasonably heard at any public 

proceeding in the district court involving release, plea, sentencing, or any parole proceeding; (5) The 

reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the Government in the case; (8) The right V4, full and timely 

restitution as provided In law; (7) The right to proceedings free from unreasonable delay: (8) The right to be 

treated with fairness and with respect for the victim's dignity and privacy. 

We will make our best efforts to ensure you are accorded the rights described. Most of these rights 

pertain to events occurring after the arrest or Indictment of an individual for the time, and It will become the 

responsibility of the prosecuting United States Attorney's Office to ensure you aro accorded those rights. You 

may also seek the advice of a private attorney with respect to these rights. 

The Victim NotlficatiOn System (VNS) is designed to provide you with direct information regarding the 

case as It proceeds through the criminal justice system. You may obtain current Information about this matter 

on the Internet at WWW.NotIfy.USDOJ.GOV or from the VNS Call Center at 1.686-DOJ4YOU (1-888-355-

4968) (TDOMY:1-868-228-4819) (International: 1.502-213-2787). In addition, you may use the Cell 

Center or Internet to update your contact Information and/or change your decislen about participation In the 

notrfloabon program. If you update your information to include a current email address, VNS wet send 

information to that address. You will need the following Victim Identification Number WIN) '1941741' end 

Personal Identification Number (PIN) '7760' anytime you contact the Call Center end the rat time you log on to 

VNS on the Internet. In addition, the first time you access the VNS Internet site, you will be prompted to enter 

your lest name (or business name) as currently contained in VNS. The name you should enter is Eisenberg. 
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If you have additional questions Which Involve this matter, please contact the office listed above. When 

you call, please provide the ate number located at the top of this letter. Please remember, your paredpation 

in the notification part of this program is voluntary. In order to continue to receive notitIcations, his your 

responsibility to keep your contact information current. 

sincerely. 

 VIcdm Specialist 
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U.S. Department of Justice 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 

FBI • West Palm Beach 
Suite 500 
505 South Fleeter Drive 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Phone: (661) B33-7517 
Fax: (561) 633-7970 

Re: 

Deere 

Your name was referred to the FBI's Victim Assistance Program as being a possible victim of a federal 

crime. We appreciate your assistance and cooperation while we are investigating this case. We would like to 

make you aware of the victim services that may be available to you and to answer any questions you may have 

regarding the criminal justice process throughout the Investigation. Our program Is part of the FBI's effort to 

ensure the victims are heated with respect and are provided Information about their rights under federal law. 

These rights include notification of the status of the use. The enclosed brochures provide Information about 

the FBI's Victim Assistance Program, resources and instructions for accessing the Victim Notification System 

(VNS). VNS is designed to provide you with information regarding the status of your case. 

This case is currently under Investigation. This can bee lengthy process and we request your 

continued patience while we conduct a thorough investigation. 

As a crime victim, you have the following rights under 18 United States Code § 3771: (1) The right to 

be reasonably protected from the accused; (2) The right to reasonable, accurate, and timely notice of any 

public court proceeding. or any parole proceeding, involving the crime or of any release or escape of the 

accused; (3) The right not to be excluded from any such public court proceeding. unless the court, after 

receiving clear and convincing evidence, determines that testimony by the victim would be materially altered If 

the victim heard other testimony at that proceeding; (4) The right to be reasonably heard at any public 

proceeding In the district court Involving release, plea. sentencing, or any parole proceeding; (5) The 

reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the Government in the case; (6) The right to full and timely 

restitution as provided 1-t law; (7) The right to proceedings tree from unreasonable delay; (8) The right to be 

treated with fairness end with respect tOr the victim's dignity and privacy. 

We will make our best efforts to ensure you ere accorded the rights described, Most of these rights 

pertain to events occurring after the arrest or indictment of an Individual for the crime, end it will become the 

responsibility of the prosecuting United States Attorney's Office to ensure you are eeeorded those rights. You 

moy also seek the advice of a private attorney with respect to these rights. 

The Victim Notification System (VNS) is designed to provide you with direct information regarding the 

case as it proceeds through the criminal justice system. You may obtain current information about this matter 

on the Internet at WWW.Netify.USD0J.GOV or from the VNS Can Center at 1.866-DOJ-4YOU (1-886-365-

4968) (TOIYTTY: 1466-228.4619) (International: 1-502-213-2767). In eddlbon, you may use the Call 

Center or Internet to update your contact information andlor change your decision about participation in the 

notification program. if you update your Information to include a current email address, VNS will send 

information to that address. You will need the following Victim Identification Number (VIN) '2074381' end 

Personal Identification Number (PIN) '1816' anytime you contact the Caii Center end the first time you log or. to 

VNS on the Internet In addition, the first time you access the VNS Internet site, you will be prompted to enter 

your last name (or business name) as currently contained in VNS. The name you Steroid enter is Flip 
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II you have additional questions which Involve this matter, please contact the office listed above. Whon 

you ant please provide the Ike number located at the top of Ws letter. Please remember, your participation 

in the notification part of this program Is voluntary. In order to continue to receive notifications, it Is your 

responsibility to keep your contact Information current. 

Sincerely, 

peclelisl 

TOTAL P.0? 
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U.S. Department of Justice • 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

401.64 
GOVERNMENT 

EXHIBIT 

caw 
µ0.05-80736•CV-MARRA

EXHIBIT 
NO. 6 

500 South Australian Ave, Suite 400 

West Palm Beach. FL 33401 
(561)820-Ba lm
Facsimile: 

July 9, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE 
Brad Edwards, Esq. 
The Law Offices of Brad Edwards & Associates, LLC 

2028 Street, Suite 202 
Hollywood, Florida 33020. 

Re: Jeffrey E eirm/SaVhiii: NOTIFICATION OF 

IDENTIFIED VICTIM 

Dear Mr. Edwards: 

By virtue of this letter, the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District 

of Florida asks that you provide the following notice to your client, CS VIM 

On June 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea 

of guilty to violations of Florida Statutes Sections 796.07 (felony solicitation of prostitution) 

and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in prostitution), in the 15th Judicial Circuit in 

and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-009454AXXXMB and 2008-cf-

00938 I AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve months' imprisonment to be 

followed by an additional six months' imprisonment, followed by twelve months of 

Community Control 1, with conditions of community confinement imposed by the Court. 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to 

defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 

conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 

enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 

rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 

EFTA00183680
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BRAD EDWARDS, ESQ. 

NOTII- ICA now OF IDENTIFIED VICTIM cal vat 
JULY 9, 2008 
PAGE. 2 Or 2 

had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 

of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 

attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 

Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 

authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 

which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 

the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 

as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 

less." 

Through this letter, this Office hereby provides Notice that your client, ComairWal 

is an individual whom the United States was prepared to name as a victim of an enumerated 

offense. • ; 

Should your client decide to file a claim against Jeffrey Epstein, his attorney, Jack 

Goldberger, asks that you contact him at Atterbury Goldberger and Weiss, 250 Australian 

Avenue South, Suite 1400, West Palm Beach, FL 33401, (561) 659-8300. 

Please understand that neither the U.S. Attorney's Office nor the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation can take part in or otherwise assist in civil litigation; however, ir you do file a 

claim under 18 U.S.C. § 2255 and Mr. Epstein denies that your client is a victim of an 

enumerated offense, please provide notice of that denial to the undersigned. 

Please thank your client for all of her assistance during the course of this examination 

and express the heartfelt regards of mysel f and Special Agents and Richards for 

the health and well-being of Ms. Valk 

By: 

cc: Jack Goldberger, Esq. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 

EFTA00183681
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GOVERNMENT 
EXHIBIT 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

CASE 
no.08.8073C-CV-MARRA 

EXHIBIT 
NO. 7 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach. FL 33401 
O6O820-871am
Facsimile. 

July 9, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE 
Brad Edwards, Esq. 
The LarnLices of Brad Edwards & Associates, LLC 

2028 UMIStreet, Suite 202 
I lollywood, Florida 33020. 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein/SUM an NOTIFICATION OF 

IDENTIFIED VICTIM 

Dear Mr. Edwards: 

By virtue of this letter, the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District 

of Florida asks that you provide the following notice to your client, am imp 

On June 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea 

of guilty to violations of Florida Statutes Sections 796.07 (felony solicitation of prostitution) 

and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in prostitution), in the 15th Judicial Circuit in 

and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-009454MOOCM13 and 2008-cf-

009381AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve months' imprisonment to be 

followed by an additional six months' imprisonment, followed by twelve months of 

Community Control I, with conditions of community confinement imposed by the Court. 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to 

defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 

conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 

enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 

rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 

EFTA00183682
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EWAD EDWARDS, ESQ. 

NOTIFICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICtIM S

JULY 9, 2008 
PAGE 2 or 2 

had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 

of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 

attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 

Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 

authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 

which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 

the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 

as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 

less." 

Through this letter, this Office hereby provides Notice that your client, S

lag is an individual whom the United States was prepared to name as a victim of an 

enumerated offense. 

Should your client decide to file a claim against Jeffrey Epstein, his attorney, Jack 

Goldberger, asks that you contact him at Atterbury Goldberger and Weiss, 250 Australian 

Avenue South, Suite 1400, West Palm Beach, FL 33401, (561) 659-8300. 

Please understand that neither the U.S. Attorney's Office nor the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation can take part in or otherwise assist in civil litigation; however, if you do file a 

claim under 18 U.S.C. § 2255 and Mr. Epstein denies that your client is a victim of an 

enumerated offense, please provide notice of that denial to the undersigned. 

Please thank your client for all of her assistance during the course of this examination 

and express the heartfelt regards of myself and Special Agents and Richards for 

the health and well-being of Ms. Rauh, 
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

By: 

cc: Jack Goldberger, Esq. 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO.: 08-8081 I -CIV-ZLOCH/SNOW 

C.M.A., 

Plaintiff, 

VS. 

JEFFREiiiii.N and 

Defendants. 
/ 

FILED UNDER SEAL' 

FILED bar/  D.C. 

JUL 25 2008

STEVENU.S.
 M. 

LAIST CT
RMORE 

CLE 

DEFENDAN FREY EPSTEIN AND 

MOTION FOR STAY 

• This motion is filed under seal because the deferred-ski ent between the United 

States Attorney's Office (by Assistant U.S. Attorney . l Esq.) and Mr. Epstein, 

discussed herein, contains a confidentiality clause. 

Lewis T isin 

3059 GLAND MINIM-SUIT' NO. COCONUT GROVE, ROMA )3133 
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Defendants Jeffrey Epstein and 11. al respectfully move for a 

mandatory stay of this action under Title 18, United States Code, Section 3509(k), 

Section 1595(3)(1), and alternatively, under this Court's discretionary authority to 

stay civil litigation, based on the existence of a pending federal criminal action. 

Introduction 

This lawsuit arises from a pending federal criminal action concerning, 

among other things, an alleged assault of the plaintiff Jane Doe, who, according to 

her complaint, on "numerous occasions" provided "massages" to Epstein with "no 

credentials to provide massage therapy" and was "sometimes paid . . . for the 

`sessions'." Compl., ¶¶ 6, 11. A federal statute directly on point provides that 

when a civil suit alleging damages to a minor victim arises out of the same 

occurrence as a "criminal action," the civil suit "shall be stayed until the end of all 

phases of the criminal action." 18 U.S.C. § 3509(k) (emphasis added).' 

I The full text of the mandatory-stay provision reads: 

If, at any time that a cause of action for recovery of compensation for damage or 

injury to the person of a child exists, a criminal action is pending which arises out 

of the same occurrence and in which the child is the victim, the civil action shall 

be stayed until the end of all phases of the criminal action and any mention of the 

civil action during the criminal proceeding is prohibited. As used in this 

subsection, a criminal action is pending until its final adjudication in the trial 

court. 

18 U.S.C. § 3509(k). 

LeAya..T .E.41 

309 GRAND Avott*Suri 340.CocomvrGitort, FLOIUDA 33133 
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Accordingly, a stay of this case is mandatory until the criminal action arising from 

the same allegations is no longer pending. 

The Pending Federal Criminal Action 

In 2006, a Florida state grand jury indicted Jeffrey Epstein on allegations 

similar to those in the instant action (State of Florida I Jeffrey Epstein, Case No. 

2006 CF 09454A, Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County) (the "Florida 

Criminal Action"). Shortly thereafter, the United States Attorney's Office for the 

Southern District of Florida (the "USAO") began a federal grand-jury investigation 

into allegations arising out of the same incidents alleged in the instant action (Grand 

Jury No. 07-103 (WPB), United States District Court for the Southern District of 

Florida) ("the Federal Criminal Action"). 

In September 2007, the USAO and Mr. Epstein entered into a highly unusual 

and unprecedented deferred-prosecution agreement (the "Agreement"), in which the 

USAO agreed to defer (not dismiss or close) the Federal Criminal Action on the 

condition that Mr. Epstein continue to comply with numerous obligations, the first of 

which was pleading guilty to certain state charges in the Florida Criminal Action. 

The Agreement itself uses the term "deferred" (rather than "dismissed" or "closed") 

to describe the status of the Federal Criminal Action: 

THEREFORE, on the authority of R. Alexander Acosta, United States 

Attorney for the Southern District of Florida prosecution in this 

District, for these offenses shall be deferred in favor of prosecution by 

2 

Levftvitin".
3059 GlIANO AVM/E.SUITE 340. COCONUT GROVE. FLOIUDA 33133 
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the State of Florida, provided that Epstein abides by the following 

conditions and the requirements of this Agreement . . 

Agreement, at 2. 

By no stretch did the USAO finalize, close, complete, dismiss or abandon 

the Federal Criminal Action. Indeed, as the lead federal prosecutor recently 

explained, the USAO merely "agreed to defer federal prosecution in favor of 

prosecution by the State of Florida . . . ." See In re: Jane Doe, Case No. 08-

80736-C1V-Marra/Johnson (S.D. Fla.) (D.E. 14), Decl. of AUSA 

07/09/08, ¶ 5, attached hereto as Exhibit "A" (emphasis added). Under the 

Agreement, the USAO presently retains the continuing right to indict Mr. Epstein - 

- or to unseal "any" already-existing federal "charges" that may already have been 

handed up by the federal grand jury and sealed - - should he breach any of its 

provisions. Agreement, at 2. 

The period of the deferral continues until three months after Mr. Epstein 

completes service of his sentence in the Florida Criminal Action. Id. Indeed, the 

final three months of the Agreement's term constitute an extended period during 

which the USAO expressly retains the ability to evaluate whether Epstein 

committed any breaches of his numerous obligations under the agreement while he 

was serving his state sentence, and, if it so determines, reserves the right to indict 

3 
Leyda 'rein 
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(or unseal an existing indictment against) Mr. Epstein - - even after he has 

completed serving his entire state sentence. 

The Agreement further provides that upon Epstein's execution of a plea 

agreement in the State Criminal Case, the Federal Criminal Action "will be 

suspended" and all pending grand-jury subpoenas "will be held in abeyance unless 

and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement." Agreement, at 5 

(emphasis added). The Agreement directs the USAO and Epstein to. "maintain 

their evidence, specifically evidence requested by or directly related to the grand 

jury subpoenas that have been issued," and to maintain such evidence "inviolate." 

Id. (emphasis added). It also expressly provides that the grand-jury subpoenas 

continue to remain "outstanding" until "the successful completion of the terms of 

this agreement." Id. (emphasis added). 

Further, it includes a promise not to prosecute movant/defendant 

MB only if "Epstein successfully fulfills all of the terms and conditions of th[e] 

agreement." Id. 

Finally, the Agreement provides that the USAO's declination of prosecution 

for certain enumerated offenses and dismissal of any existing (sealed) charges will 

not occur until 90 days following the completion of his state sentence: 

If the United States Attorney should determine, based on 

reliable evidence, that, during the period of the Agreement, Epstein 

willfully violated any of the conditions of this Agreement, then the 

4 

l 'evAttaS in a
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United States Attorney may, within ninety (90) days following the 

expiration of the term of home confinement discussed below, provide 

Epstein with timely notice specifying the condition(s) of the 

Agreement that he has violated, and shall initiate its prosecution on 

any offense within sixty (60) days' of [sic] giving notice of the 

violation. Any notice provided to Epstein pursuant to this paragraph 

shall be provided within 60 days of the United States learning of facts 

which may provide a basis for a determination of a breach of the 

Agreement. 

After timely fulfilling all the terms and conditions of the 

Agreement, no prosecution for the offenses set out on pages 1 and 2 of 

this Agreement, nor any other offenses that have been the subject of 

the joint investigation by the Federal Bureau of Investigation and the 

United States Attorney's Office, nor any offenses that arose from the 

Federal Grand Jury investigation will be instituted in this District, and 

the charges against Epstein, if any, will be dismissed. 

Agreement, at 2. 

Consistent with the Agreement and its position that the Federal Criminal 

Action continues to remain pending, the USAO recently sent letters to attorneys for 

people that the USAO has designated as "victims." In those letters, the USAO 

asked, "[I]f you do file a claim under 18 U.S.C. § 2255 and Mr. Epstein denies that 

your client is a victim of an enumerated offense, please provide notice of that 

denial to the undersigned [AUSA]." See Decl. of AUSAMIN, Exhs. 6 & 7, at 

2 (July 9, 2008). The clear implication of the USAO's request (by which the 

USAO appears to involve itself in the instant litigation, despite advising the 

recipients that it cannot "take part in or otherwise assist in civil litigation," id. at 2), 

is that the USAO believes that such denial might breach the Agreement. 

5 
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Accordingly, the Federal Criminal Action remains "pending." 

Discussion 

I. Section 3509(k) Imposes a Mandatory Stay. 

The language of Title 18, United States Code, Section 3509(k) is clear and 

mandatory: a parallel "civil action shall be stayed until the end of all phases of the 

criminal action." 18 U.S.C. § 3509(k) (emphasis added). The word "shall" means 

that the statute's command is mandatory and not subject to a Court's discretion. 

See, e.g., 1. 531 U.S. 230, 241 (2001) (noting Congress' "use of a 

mandatory `shall' to impose discretionless obligations") (emphasis added); 

Lexecon Inc.'. Milberg Weiss Bershad Hynes & Lerach, 523 U.S. 26, 35 (1998) 

(explaining that "the mandatory 'shall' . . . normally creates an obligation 

impervious to judicial discretion") (emphasis added). Cf. 1. French, 530 

U.S. 327, 350 (2000) (construing the litigation-stay provision of the Prison 

Litigation Reform Act, holding, "Through the PLRA, Congress clearly intended to 

make operation of the automatic stay mandatory, precluding courts from 

exercising their equitable powers to enjoin the stay. And we conclude that this 

provision does not violate separation of powers principles.") (emphasis added). 

One District Court within the Eleventh Circuit recently construed "the plain 

language of § 3509(k)" as "requirlind a stay in a case . . . where . . . a parallel 

criminal action [is] pending." Doe, Francis, No. 5:03 CV 260, 2005 WL 950623, 

6 
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at *2 (N.D. Fla. Apr. 20, 2005) (Francis If) (emphasis added), Accord Doe I 

Francis, No. 5:03 CV 260, 2005 WL 517847, at *1-2 (N.D. Fla. Feb. 10, 2005) 

(Francis I) (staying federal civil action in favor of "a criminal case currently 

pending in state court in Bay County, Florida, arising from the same facts and 

involving the same parties as the Instant action," noting that "the language of 18 

U.S.C. § 3509(k) is clear that a stay is required in a case such as this where a 

parallel criminal action is pending which arises from the same occurrence 

involving minor victims") (emphasis added). There is no contrary opinion from 

any court. 

In determining that the federal stay provision is mandatory, the Francis 11 

court expressed that there was apparently no case law supporting, or even 

"discussing the [avoidance] of a stay [under the command of] § 3509(k)." Francis 

II, 2005 WL 950623, at *2. Deferring to the statute as written, the Francis II court 

rejected the plaintiffs' argument that some of the alleged victims had already 

reached their majority. See id. The court similarly rejected the plaintiffs' 

argument that it would be in the victims' best interests to avoid a stay so as to 

counteract the victims' "ongoing and increasing mental harm due to the `frustrating 

delay in both the criminal case and [the civil] case.' Id. 

7 
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II. Section 3509(k) Applies to Investigations, Not Just Indictments. 

While there is no unsealed indicted criminal case against Mr. Epstein, the 

government's criminal investigation against him remains open. Section 3509(k) 

clearly applies to stay civil cases during the pendency, not only of indicted 

criminal cases, but also of pre-indictment criminal investigations. 

The term "criminal action" is not expressly defined in § 3509(k). It is 

defined, however, by a closely related statute. Title 18, U.S.C. § 1595 provides a 

civil remedy for "forced labor" and "sex trafficking" violations, but stays such 

actions "during the pendency of any criminal action arising out of the same 

occurrence in which the claimant is the victim."2 In enacting § 1595, Congress 

'The full text of that statute provides: 

§ 1595. Civil remedy 

(a) An individual who is a victim of a violation of section 1589, 

1590, or 1591 of this chapter may bring a civil action against 

the perpetrator in an appropriate district court of the United 

States and may recover damages and reasonable attorneys 

fees. 

(b) (1) Any civil action filed under this section shall be 

stayed during the pendency of any criminal action 

arising out of the same occurrence in which the 

claimant is the victim. 

18 U.S.C. § 1595. 

(2) In this subsection, a "criminal action" includes 

investigation and prosecution and is pending until 

final adjudication in the trial court. 

8 
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specifically intended that the term "criminal action" would be applied extremely 

broadly. Accordingly, Congress took pains to ensure that courts would give it the 

broadest possible construction and, for that reason, specified in the definition 

provision that "criminal action" also "includes investigation." 18 U.S.C. 

§ 1595(b)(2). The only reported decision addressing this provision interpreted it 

according to its plain language. See Ara I. Khan, No. CV 07-1251, 2007 WI, 

1726456, *2 (E.D.N.Y. June 14, 2007) (ordering "all proceedings in this case 

stayed pending the conclusion of the government's criminal investigation of the 

defendants and of any resulting criminal prosecution") (emphasis added). 

Given that the USAO's Agreement with Epstein indicates that: 

the grand-jury's subpoenas remain "outstanding" (Agreement, at 5); 

the subpoenas are "h[e]ld . in abeyance" (id.); 

• the subpoenas are not "withdrawn" (id); 

the parties must "maintain their evidence" (id.) (which would be 

entirely unnecessary if the investigation against Epstein were closed); 

• "any" existing "charges" will not "be dismissed" until after Epstein 

has "timely fulfill[ed] all the terms and conditions of the Agreement" 

(id. at 2) (emphasis added); and 

"prosecution in this District . . . shall be deferred" (id.) (but not closed 

or dismissed) - - 

then the only reasonable conclusion is that the Federal Criminal Action remains 

"pending." 
9 
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The ordinary meaning of the adjective "pending" is "[r]emaining undecided; 

awaiting decision . . . ." Black's Law Dictionary 1154 (8th ed. 2004).3 See also 

White". Klitzkie, 281 F.3d 920, 928 (9th Cir. 2002) (relying on Black's Law 

Dictionary, in the context of a criminal case, for the definition of "pending" as 

"awaiting decision"); Swartz'. Meyers, 204 F.3d 417, 421 (3d Cir. 2000) (relying 

on Black's Law Dictionary for the definition of "pending," expressly because 

"'pending' is not defined in the statute"). Any common-sense reading of the 

Agreement and the USAO's recent sworn construction of it, is consonant with the 

Federal Criminal Action's "remaining undecided" and "awaiting decision." See 

Unified Gov't of Athens-Clarke County f. Athens Newspapers, LLC, No. 

S07G1133, ___, 2008 WY, 2579238, *3 (Ga. June 30, 2008) (reviewing a 

public-records request against Georgia's "pending investigation" exception to its 

open-records law, and holding that "a seemingly inactive investigation which has 

not yet resulted in a prosecution logically "remains undecided," and is therefore 

"pending," until it "is concluded and the file closed") (emphasis added). 

' The United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit routinely relies on Black's Law 

Dictio ry for the definition of statutory terms, including in criminal cases. See e.g., United 

States.. Young, 528 F.3d 1294, 1197 n.3 (11th Cir. 2008) (definitions of criminal "complaint" 

and "indictment"); United States,. Brown, 526 F.3d 691, 705 (11th Cir. 2008) (definition of 

"knowingly" in criminal statute). 
10 
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III. Section 3509(k) Applies Even After a Plaintiff Turns 18. 

The parallel stay provision in § 1595, discussed supra at 8-9, mandates, 

without exception, that any civil action brought under that section for violation of 

§ 1591 (prohibiting transportation of minors for prostitution) "shall be stayed 

during the pendency of any criminal action arising out of the same occurrence in 

which the claimant is the victim." 18 U.S.C. § 1591(b)(1). Whether the § 1595 

plaintiff has turned 18 does not vitiate the efficacy of this mandatory stay. 

An example illustrates why the stay provided in § 3509(k) has the same 

broad scope as the stay provided in § 1591(b)(1). As discussed above, § 3509(k) 

stays any civil suit for injury to a minor, arising out of the same occurrence as a 

pending criminal action. One type of civil suit falling within § 3509(k)'s ambit is a 

suit seeking redress for a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2423(a). Section 2423(a) - - just 

like § 1591 - - prohibits transportation of minors for prostitution. The elements of 

both statutes are identical. There would simply be no legitimate basis for Congress 

to differentiate between the consequences attached to violating these two sections. 

Thus, just as Congress mandated under § 1595(b)(1) that civil discovery shall be 

stayed when there is an ongoing federal investigation under § 1591 (even after the 

victim turns 18), the identical treatment should apply under § 3509(k) to civil 

actions brought for the identical violation of § 2423(a). 

11 
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Logic compels a rule requiring continued application of the § 3509(k) stay to 

a putative victim who has since turned 18. Consider again the example of 

§ 2243(a). Assume that the USAO is investigating a § 2243(a) violator with two 

alleged victims; one who is now 17, and one who has turned 19. Assume further 

that both decide to sue the alleged offender while the USAO is still in the process 

of conducting its criminal investigation. Why would Congress enact § 3509(k) to 

prohibit the defendant from conducting civil discovery in the 17-year-old's lawsuit, 

but permit him to conduct full discovery in the 19-year-old's lawsuit, including 

taking the depositions of both the 19- and the 17-year-old, the federal investigating 

agents and all the grand-jury witnesses? This could not have been Congress' 

intent. 

The legislative history to a statute resembling § 1595 is also instructive. 

When Congress enacted 18 U.S.C. § 2255, it provided a civil remedy to any 

"minor . . . victim" of enumerated federal sex offenses. See Child Abuse Victims' 

Rights Act of 1986, Pub. L. No. 99-500, 100 Stat. 1783, § 703 (1986). In 2006, 

Congress amended the statute to clarify that the civil cause of action was available 

not just while the victim was a minor, but even after she or he turned 18. See Pub. 

L. 109-248, 120 Stat. 650, § 707 (b)(1)(A) (amending § 2255 to permit suit by 

adults who were victims of enumerated federal offenses when they were minors, 

by deleting "Any minor who is [a victim]" and adding "Any person, who, while a 
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completion of a criminal action. See also 18 USC § 3509(k). 

H.R. Rep. 108-264(11), 108th Cong., 1st Sess. (2003), reprinted at 2003 WL 

22272907, at *16-17 ("agency view" by the Department of Justice on bill later 

codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1595). 

The Department specifically argued to Congress in the clearest terms: "We 

believe that prosecutions should take priority over civil redress and that 

prosecutions should be complete prior to going forward with civil suits." Id. at 17 

(emphasis added). Nowhere did the Department suggest that pending prosecutions 

warrant less protection (i.e., should be "hinder[ed]") simply because a particular 

civil plaintiff happens to reach his or her 18th birthday. 

IV. A Stay is Mandatory Despite Resulting "Delay" to Civil Lawsuits. 

Inherent in any § 3509(k) stay is delay to the progress (discovery, trial, 

appeal) of all related civil lawsuits. Congress recognized this in enacting the stay 

provision, which necessarily prioritized the interests of completing a criminal 

investigation and prosecution over the interests of a particular plaintiff in seeking 

personal pecuniary damages. Based on this reasoning, the Francis II court 

specifically refused to provide any relief to plaintiffs "simply because the state 

[criminal] matter is not progressing as fast as they would hope." The court made 

this determination despite the plaintiffs' complaints about the "frustrating delay" 

and that "the state criminal case 'has languished for almost two years with no end 

14 
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in sight,' finding that this "is a matter to be addressed in state [criminal] court." 

Id. Accordingly, the anticipated delay in this case, attendant to the term of the 

deferred-prosecution agreement, does not change the clear command of § 3509(k). 

According to her own pleadings, the plaintiff waited seven years before 

filing this lawsuit, Compl. ¶¶ 2,6, and so cannot rightfully claim prejudice from 

additional temporary delay. 

B. Section 3509 Aside, a Discretionary Stay is Warranted. 

Even, arguendo, were this Court not to apply the mandate of § 3509, a 

discretionary stay should still be entered during the pendency of the Federal 

Criminal Action. SEC,. Healthsouth Corp., 261 F. Supp. 2d 1298, 1326 (RD. 

Ala. 2003) ("No question exists that this court has the power to stay a civil 

proceeding due to an active, parallel criminal investigation."). Other federal 

statutes support such a stay -- particularly when the criminal action may be 

adversely affected by the civil litigation. For example, under 18 U.S.C. 

§ 2712(e)(1), "the court shall stay any action commenced [against the United 

States] if the court determines that civil discovery will adversely affect the ability 

of the Government to conduct a related investigation or prosecution of a related 

criminal case." Allowing this lawsuit to progress while Epstein remains subject to 

the Federal Criminal Action will prejudice him irrevocably and irreparably. As 
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provided below, there are several adverse effects to allowing this case to proceed 

while the Federal Criminal Action remains pending. 

In this lawsuit, Epstein has a right to defend himself. In the Federal 

Criminal Action, Epstein has a right against self-incrimination.4 Without a stay, 

Epstein will be immediately forced to abandon one of these rights. 

Should he choose his Fifth Amendment rights, he will expose himself to an 

adverse inference at the summary-judgment stage and at trial. See generally, 

Wehlingl. Columbia Broad. Sys, 611 F.2d 1026, 1027 (5th Cir. 1980) (observing 

that "invocation of the privilege would be subject to the drawing of an adverse 

inference by the trier of fact"). On the other hand, should Epstein choose his right 

to defend himself in this lawsuit, the USAO will be able to use his responses at 

every stage of the discovery and trial process (e.g., his Answer, responses to 

document requests, responses to requests for admissions, sworn answers to 

interrogatories, answers to deposition questions, and trial testimony) to his 

detriment in the Federal Criminal Action.5

° The privilege applies in "instances where the witness has reasonable cause to apprehend 

danger" of criminal liability. Hoffman United States, 341 U.S. 479, 486 (1951). 

This could give the USAO a tremendous advantage in prosecuting Epstein in the Federal 

Criminal Action. See Comment, Using Equitable Powers to Coordinate Parallel Civil and 

Criminal Actions, 98 Han,. L. Rev. 1023, 1026 (1985) (observing that "the prosecutor may have 

access to detailed civil depositions of the accused witnesses, while the rules of criminal 

procedure bar the accused from deposing the prosecutor's witnesses"). 
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In this lawsuit, even before civil discovery begins, under the Initial 

Disclosures required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 26 and S.D. Fla. Local Rule 26.1, Epstein 

"must" disclose the identities of all the witnesses he would call in his defense to 

the Federal Criminal Action (Rule 26(a)(1)(A)(i)), copies of "all documents" he 

"may use to support [his] defenses" (Rule 26(a)(1)(A)(ii)), as well as the identity 

of "any" expert witness he "may use at trial," along with mandatory disclosure of 

"a written report" containing "a complete statement of all opinions the [expert] will 

express and the basis and reasons for them" (Rule 26(aX2)(A) and (B)(i)). 

In contrast, in the pending Federal Criminal Action, which is governed 

exclusively by the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the USAO would not be 

entitled to compel pre-trial production of any of this information. See Fed. R. Cr. 

P. 16(b)(1)(A), (C), and 16(b)(2); United States Argomaniz, 925 F.2d 1349, 

1355-56 (11th Cir. 1991) (explaining act-of-production privilege). 

Thus, absent a stay of this civil action, the USAO would receive 

fundamentally unfair access to defense information and highly prejudicial advance 

insight into criminal defense strategy. See Comment, 98 Han& L. Rev. at 1030 

("To the extent that a prosecutor acquires evidence that was elicited from the 

accused in a parallel civil proceeding, the criminal process becomes less 

adversarial."). 
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Without a stay in place, discovery will proceed, including against third 

parties. Mr. Epstein will have no alternative but to issue subpoenas seeking 

evidence from state and federal law-enforcement officers. For example, Epstein is 

clearly entitled to discover evidence of prior statements (including inconsistent 

statements) given by witnesses whom law-enforcement has previously interviewed. 

See, e.g., Cox'. Treadway, 75 F.3d 230 (6th Cir. 1996) (holding that district court 

properly admitted testimony of prosecutor about prior inconsistent statements that 

witness made to the prosecutor). Likewise, Epstein may be entitled to discovery of 

relevant evidence that is in the present possession of the grand jury or other law-

enforcement agencies. See, e.g., Simpson E. Hines, 729 F. Supp. 526, 527 (E.D. 

Tex. 1989) ("The grand jury has concluded its deliberations . . . . The need for 

secrecy of these specific tapes no longer outweighs other concerns."); Golden 

Quality Ice Cream Co., Deerfield Specialty Papers, Inc., 87 F.R.D. 53, 59 

(E.D. Pa. 1980) ("[W]here, as here, the grand jury has completed its work and all 

that is sought are those documents turned over to the grand jury by the 

corporations which are defendants in the civil case, the considerations . . . 

militating against disclosure are beside the point.") (citing Douglas Oil Co. of 

Calif, Petrol Stops Nw., 441 U.S. 211 (1979)). 

In response to such third-party subpoenas to law-enforcement witnesses, we 

anticipate that it will be the government, not Mr. Epstein, who will object to 
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discovery in this civil case, until the final conclusion of the Federal Criminal 

Action. 

Conclusion 

Because this lawsuit arises from the same allegations as the Federal Criminal 

Action, this Court should stay this lawsuit until that action is no longer pending. 

Respectfully submitted, 

By: 

LEWIS TEIN, P.L. 
3059 Grand Avenue, Suite 340 
Coconut Grove, Florida 33133 
Tel: 305 442 1101 
F• • 305 67110.. 

SA/.
A. EWIS 

Ha. Bar No. 623740 
lewis@lewistein.com 
MICHAEL R. TEIN 
Fla. Bar No. 993522 
tein@lewistein.com 

ATTERBURY, GOLDBERGER & WEISS, P.A. 
250 Australian Avenue South, Suite 1400 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
Tel. 561 659 8300 
Fax. 561 835 8691 

By: Jack A. Goldberger 
Ha. Bar No. 262013 
jgoldberger®agwpa.com 

Attorneys for Defendant Jeffrey Epstein 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 08-80736-Civ-Marra/Johnson 

IN RE: JANE DOE, 

Petitioner. 

FILED by  'P  D.C.

JUL 0 9 2008 

VDU M. LARIMORt 
CLEAXUAL Wit Ct 
II. 0. yr FLA. • Walt 

DECLARATION al 
IN SUPPORT OF UNITED STATES' RESPONSE 

TO VICTIM'S EMERGENCY PETITION FOR ENFMCEMENT 

QF CRIME VICTIM RIGHTS ACT. 18 U.S.C. ti 3771 

do hereby declare that 1am a member in good standing 

of the liar of the State of Florida. I graduated from the University of California at Berkeley 

School of Law (Boalt Ili in 1993. After serving as a judicial clerk to the Hon. David F. 

Levi in Sacramento, California, I was admitted to practice in California in 1995. I also am 

admitted to practice in all courts of the states of Minnesota and Florida, the Eighth, Eleventh, 

and Federal Circuit Courts of Appeals, and the U.S. District Courts for the Southern District 

of Florida, the District of Minnesota, and the Northern District of California. My bar 

admission status in California and Minnesota is currently inactive. I am currently employed 

as an Assistant United States Attorney in the Southern District of Florida and was so 

employed during all of the events described herein. 
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2 I am the Assistant United States Attorney assigned to the investigation of 

Jeffrey Epstein. The case was investigated by the Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI"). 

The federal investigation was initiated in 2006 at the request of the Palm Beach Police 

Department ("PBPD") into allegations that Jeffrey Epstein and his personal assistants had 

used facilities of interstate commerce to induce young girls between the ages of thirteen and 

seventeen to engage in prostitution, amongst other offenses. 

3. Throughout the investigation, when a victim was identified, victim not i fication 

letters were provided to her both from your Milani and from the FBI's Victim-Witness 

Specialist. Attached hereto are copies of the letters provided to Bradley Edwards' three 

clients, al, and Your Affiant's letter to was provided by the FBI. (Ex. 

I ). Your Affiant's letter to was hand-delivered by myself to al at the time that she 

was interviewed (Ex. 2).2 Both. and also received letters from the FBI's Victim-

Witness Specialist, which were sent on January 10, 2008 (Exs. 3 & 4). S was identified 

via the FBI's investigation in 2007, but she initially refused to speak with investigators. 

lits status as a victim of a federal offense was confirmed when she was interviewed by 

'Attorney Edwards filed his Motion on behalf of "Jane Doe," without ti  whic " 

his clients is the purported victim. Accordingly, I will address facts related Iona. ME, and MR 
All three of those clients were victims of Jeffrey Epstein's while they were minors beginning when 

they were fifteen years old. 

2Please note that the dates on the U.S. Attorney's Office letters to S and... are not the 

dates that the letters were actually delivered. Letters to all known victims were prepared early in the 

investigation and delivered as each victim was contacted. 
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%me 

federal agents on May 28, 2008. The FBI's Victim-Witness Specialist sent a letter to 

on May 30, 2008 (Ex. 5). 

4. Throughout the investigation, the FBI agents, the FBI's Victim-Witness 

Specialist, and your A (tient had contact with C.W. and II Attorney Edwards' other client, 

was represented by counsel and, accordingly, all contact with MB was made through 

that attorney. That attorney was James Eisenberg, and his fees were paid by Jeffrey Epstein, 

the target of the investigation.' 

5. In the summer of 2007, Mr. Epstein and the U.S. Attorney's Office for the 

Southern District of Florida ("the Office") entered into negotiations to resolve the 

investigation. At that time, Mr. Epstein had been charged by the State of Florida with 

solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Florida Statutes § 796.07. Mr. Epstein's attorneys 

sought a global resolution of the matter. The United States subsequently agreed to defer 

federal prosecution in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, so long as certain basic 

preconditions were met. One of the key objectives for the Government was to preserve a 

federal remedy for the young girls whom Epstein had sexually exploited. Thus, one 

condition of that agreement, notice of which was provided to the victims on July 9, 2008, is 

the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 

enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 

rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 

'The undersigned does not know when Mr. Edwards began representing ■. or whether 

ever formally terminated Mr. Eisenberg's representation. 
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had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 

of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 

attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 

Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 

authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 

which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 

the intent of the panics to place these identified victims in the same position 

as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 

less." 

6. An agreement was reached in September 2007. The Agreement contained an 

express confidentiality provision. 

7. Although individual victims were not consulted regarding the agreement, 

several had expressed concerns regarding the exposure of their identities at trial and they 

desired a prompt resolution of the matter. At the time the agreement was signed in 

September 2007,. was openly hostile to the prosecution of Epstein. The FBI attempted 

to interview ■. in October 2007, at which time she refused to provide any information 

regarding Jeffrey Epstein. None of Attorney Edwards' clients had expressed a desire to be 

consulted prior to the resolution of the federal investigation. 

8. As explained above, one of the terms of the agreement deferring prosecution 

to the State of Florida was securing a federal remedy for the victims. In October 2007, 

shortly after the agreement was signed, four victims were contacted and these provisions 

were discussed. One of those victims was who at the time was not represented, and she 

was given notice of the agreement. Notice was also provided of an expected change of plea 

in October 2007. When Epstein's attorneys learned that some of the victims had been 
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notified, they complained that the victims were receiving an incentive to overstate their 

involvement with Mr. Epstein in order to increase their damages claims. While your Affiant 

knew that the victims' statements had been taken and corroborated with independent 

evidence well before they were informed of the potential for damages, the agents and I 

concluded that informing additional victims could compromise the witnesses' credibility at 

trial if Epstein reneged on the agreement. 

9. A nein. had been notified of the terms of the agreement, but before Epstein 

performed his obligationsn. contacted the FBI because Epstein's counsel was attempting 

to take her deposition and private investigators were harassing her. Your Affiant secured pro 

bono counsel to represent'''. and several other identified victims. Pro bono counsel was 

able to assists. in avoiding the improper deposition. That pro bono counsel did not 

express to your Affiant that. was dissatisfied with the resolution of the matter. 

10. In mid-June 2008, Attorney Edwards contacted your Affiant to inform me that 

he represented'''. and'''. and asked to meet to provide me with information regarding 

Epstein. I invited Attorney Edwards to send to me any information that he wanted me to 

consider. Nothing was provided. I also advised Attorney Edwards that he should consider 

contacting the State Attorney's Office, if he so wished. I understand that no contact with that 

office was made. Attorney Edwards had alluded toll., so I advised him that, to my 

knowledge,III. was still represented by Attorney James Eisenberg. 
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II. On Friday, June 27, 2008, at approximate 4:15 p.m., your Affiant received a 

copy of the proposed state plea agreement and learned that the plea was scheduled for 8:30 

a.m., Monday, June 30, 2008. Your Affiant and the Palm Beach Police Department 

attempted to provide notification to victims in the short time that Epstein's counsel had given 

us. Although all known victims were not notified, your Aftiant specifically called attorney 

Edwards to provide notice to his clients regarding the hearing. Your Affiant believes that 

it was during this conversation that Attorney Edwards notified me that he represented.., 

and I assumed that he would pass on the notice to her, as well. Attorney Edwards informed 

your A fliant that he could not attend but that someone would be present at the hearing. Your 

Affiant attended the hearing, but none of Attorney Edwards' clients was present. 

12. On today's date, your Aftiant provided the attached victim notifications to 

and■. via their attorney, Bradley Edwards (Exs. 6 & 7). A notification was not 

provided to.. because the U.S. Attorney's modification limited Epstein's liability to 

victims whom the United States was prepared to name in an indictment. In light 01 .'s 

prior statements to law enforcement, your Affiant could not in good faith include'''. as a 

victim in an indictment and, accordingly, could not include her in the list provided to 

Epstein's counsel. 

13. Furthermore, with respect to the Certification ofEmergency, Attorney Edwards 

did not ever contact me prior to the filing of that Certification to demand the relief that he 

requests in his Emergency Petition. On the afternoon of July 7, 2008, after your Aftiant had 
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already received the Certification of Emergency and Emergency Petition, l received a letter 

from Attorney Edwards that had been sent, via Certified Mail, on July 3, 2008. While that 

letter urges the Attorney General and the United States Attorney to consider "vigorous 

enforcement" of federal laws with respect to Jeffrey Epstein, it contains no demand for the 

relief requested in the Emergency Petition. 

14. I declare under penalty of perjury, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746 that the 

foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Executed this day of July, 2008. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

500 South Australian Avt , Suits, 400 
Wen Palm &ark Ft 1)401 
(560670.1ams
Facsimile. 

June 7, 2007 

DELIVERY BY HAND 

Miss @ill wea 
Re: Crime Victims' and Wapcsses' Rights 

Dear Miss We 

Pursuant to the Justice for All Act of 2004, as a victim and/or witness of a federal offense, 

you have a number of rights. Those nghts arc: 

(I) The right to be reasonably protected from the accused. 

(2) The right to reasonable, accurate, and timely notice of any public court proceeding 

involving the crime or of any release or escape of the accused. 

(3) The right not to be excluded from any public court proceeding, unless the court 

determines that your testimony may be materially altered if you are present for other 

portions of a proceeding. 
(4) The right to be reasonably heard at any public proceeding in the district court 

involving release, plea, or sentencing. 

(5) The reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the United States in the case. 

(6) The right to full and timely restitution as provided in law. 

(7) The right to proceedings free from unreasonable delay. 

(8) The right to be treated with fairness and with respect for the victim's dignity and 

privacy. l( 

Members of tie U.S. Department of Justice and other federal investigative agencies, 

including the Federal Bureau of Investigation, must use their best efforts to make sure that tlaw 

ri hts arc protected. If you l this regard, please feel free to contact me at IN 

, or Special Agent fromthe Federal Bureau of Investigation at 561 

822.5946. You alsu• can contact the Justice Department's Office for Victims of Crime in 

Washington, D.C. at 202.301-5983. That Office has a website at www.ovc.gov. 

You con seek the advice of an attorney with respect to the rigliik listed above and, if you 

believe that the rights set forth above are being violated, you have the right to petition the Court for 

relief. 
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In addition to these rights, you are entitled to counseling and medical services, and protection 

from intimidation and harassment. If the Court determines that you arc a victim, you also may be 

entitled to restitution from the perpetrator. A list of counseling and medical service providers can 

be provided to you, if you so desire. If ou or our family is subjected to any intimidation or 

harassment, please contact Special Agent or myself immediately. It is possible that 

someone working on behalf of the targets of the investigation may contact you. Such contact does 

not violawlse lave:, However, if you arc contacted, you have the choice of speaking to that person 

or refusing led° So. I u refuse and feel that you are being threatened or harassed, then please 

contact Special Agent or myself 

You also are entitled to notification of upcoming case events. At this time, your case is under 

investigation! If anyone is charged in connection with the investigation, you will be notified. 

By: 

cc: Special Agent_-, F.B.I. 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 

United States Attorney 

Assistant United States Attorney 

f 
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%ay 
U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 

Southern District of Florida 

500 Sough Australian Arc.. Suite 400 
West Palm !leach. Ft 53401 
(5611820.87 I 
Facsimile 

August 11, 2006 

Re: Crime Vicijins' and Witnesses' Ruth's 

Dear Miss a 

Pursuant to the Justice for All Act of 2004, as a victim and/or witness of a federal offense, 

you have a number of nghts. Those rights are: 

(I) The right to be reasonably protected from the accused. 

(2) The right to reasonable, accurate, and timely notice of any public court proceeding 

involving the crime or of any release or escape of the accused. 

(3) The right not to be excluded from any public court proceeding, unless the court 

determines that your testimony maybe materially altered if you are present for other 

portions of a proceeding. 

(4) The right to be reasonably heard at any public proceeding in the district court 

involving release, plea, or sentencing. 

(5) The retsonable right to confer with the attorney for the United States in the case. 

(6) The right to full and timely restitution as provided in law. 

(7) The right to proceedings free from unreasonable delay. 

(8) The right to be treated with fairness and with respect for the victim's dignity and 

privacy. ( 

Members of the U.S. Department of Justice and other federal investigative agencies, 

including the Federal Bureau of Investigation, must use their best efforts to make sure that t ese 

protected. If you e an concerns in this regard, please feel free to contact me al 

, or Special Agent from the Federal Bureau of Investigation at 561 

822.5946. You also can contact the Justice DeparRnent's Office for Victims of Crime in 

Washington, D.C. at 202.307.5983. That Office has a website at www.ovc.gov. 

You can seek the advice of an attorney with respect to the rights listed above and, if you 

believe that the rights .fel forth above are being violated, you have the right to petition the Court for 

relief 
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MISSTea 
AuGuST 11,7006 
PAGE 2 

In addition to these tights, you are entitled to counseling and medical services, and I., 

from intimidation and harassment. if the Court determines that you are a victim, you -1. . 

entitled to restitution from the perpetrator. A list of counseling and medical service p" . 

be provided to you, if you so desire. If you or out family is subjected to any iMir 

harassment, please contact Special Agent or myself immediately. It is p, • 

someone working on bchalfof the targets of the investigation may contact you. Such cu • 

not violate the law. However, if you are contacted, you have the choice of speaking in . 

or refusing to do so. If ou refuse and feel that you are being threatened or harassed, tlic 

contact Special Agent or myself. 

You also are entitled to notification o f upcoming case events. At this time, you' t . • 

investigation. If anyone is charged in connection with the investigation, you will he 

Sincerely, 

R. Alexander Acosta 

United States Attorney 

By: 

Assistant nite a es 

cc: Special Agent MIME F B 

fi 
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U.S. Deparbnent of Justice 
Federal Bureau of investigation 
FBI • Weal Palm Beach 
Suite 500 
505 South Pinter Drive 
West Pen Beach, FL 33401 
Phone: (681)6317517 
Fax: (561) 833.7970 

January 10, 2C08 

Re: Case Number:de 

Dear Mae. 

This case le currently under Investigation. This can be a lengthy process and we request your 

continued patience while we conduct e thorough Investigation. 

Ass crime victim, you hive the following rights under 18 United States Code § 3771: (1) The right to 

be reasonably protected from the *ceased; (2) The right to reasonable, accurste, and Ornery notice of any 

public coup proceeding, or any parole proceeding, Involving the crime of of any release or escape of the 

accused; (3) The right not to be excluded from any such public court proceeding, unless the court, after 

receiving clew and convIndng evidence. determines that testimony by the victim would be natality altered it 

the victim heard other testimony at that proceeding; (4) The right to be reasonably heard at any public 

proceeding in the district cowl Involving redone, plea, sentencing. or any parole proceeding; (5) The 

reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the Government in the case; (0) The right to foil end timely 

restitution as provided In NW; (7) The right to proceedings free from unreasonsble delay; (8) The right to be 

treated wan fairness end with rasped for the viotIm's dignity and privacy. 

We will make our best efforts to ensure you are accorded the eights described. Most of these rights 

pertain to events occurring after the arrest or indictment or en Individual for the crime. and it will become the 

responsibility of the prosecuting United Stings Attorney's Office to ensure you era accorded those rights. You 

may also seek the advice ore private attorney with respect to these rights. 

The Victim Notification System (VNS) is designed to provide you with direct Information regarding the 

case as 4 proceeds through the criminal justice system. You may obtain current Information about this matter 

on the Internet at WWW.Nodty.USDOJ.GOV w from the VNS Cali Center at 1.666-00J-4YOU (14366461 

4968) (rOD/ITY: 1.886.2284619) (International; 1.502.2132767). In addition, you may use the Call 

Cents: or Internet to update your contact information end/or charge your dedsion about Pettish:480n in the 

negation program, if you update your Information to Include a current email address, VNS will send 

information to that address. You will need the following Victim identification Number (MN) '1941737' Mai' 

Persons identification Number (PIN) '5502' anytime you contact the Call Center and the first time you log on to 

VNS on the Internet In addition, the first time you access the VNS Internet site, you will be prompted to enter 

your last name (or business name) es currency contained In VNS. The name you should enter is 
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N•ror sem/ 

n you have &Monet questa:ins which Ne this matter, please contact ma office listed above. When 

you cal, pines provide the fee number bested et the top of IIIIs latter. Plane remember. your participation 

In the noeficabon part of this program Is adultery. In order to continue to receNt notlficebons. Il ls your 

responsibility to leap your contact Inform Mon current 

Sincerely. 

Vic rriggallst 
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U.S. Department of Justice 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
FBI - West Pe/in Beech 
Suite 500 
505 South Hagler Drive 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Phone: (581)833-7517 
Fax: (501)8334970 

January 10, 2008 

James Eisenberg 
One Cluariake Center Stu 704 Ausbellan South 

West Palm Beach. Ft. 33401 

Re: 

Dear Dear James Eisenberg: 

You have requested to receive notifications for Talbfalp 

This case Is currenCy under Investigation. This oan bee lengthy process and we request your 

continued patience while we conduct a thorough Investigation. 

As • crime victim, you hetes the following tights under 18 United Stales Code § 3711: (1) The right to 

be reasonably protected from the, accused: (3) The right to reasonable, accurate, end timely notice of any 

public court proceeding, or any parole proceeding, Involving the crime or of any release or escape of the 

accused: (3) The right not to be excluded from any such public court proceeding, unless the court, after 

receiving clear and convinoIng evidence, determines that testimony by the victim would be materially altered If 

the victim heard other testimony at that proceeding (4) The dght to be reasonably heard et any public 

proceeding In the district court Involving release, pies. sentencing. or any parole proceeding; (5) The 

isogonal* right to confer with the stormy for the government in the case; (6) The right to full and timely 

restitution as provided in law: (7) The night to proceedings bee from unreasonable delay: (8) The right to be 

treated with fewness and with respect for the victim's dignity and privacy. 

We will make our best etforte to ensure you are accorded the rights described, Most of these nghb 

pertain to events °caning after the arrest or Indictment of an Individual for the came, and It will become the 

responsibalty of the prosecutIng United States Attorney's °Moe to ensure you are accorded those rights. You 

may abo seek the edvIce of a peal* attorney with respect to these rights. 

The Victim N0tificeitI0n System (VNS) is designed to provide you with direct Information regarding the 

case as It proceeds through the criminal Justice system. You may obtain current Information about this matter 

on the Internet at WWW.Natify.U,SDO.I.GOV or from the VNS Call Center at ¶.885-DOJ-4YOU (1.886.385-

4968) (TDD/ITY: 1-866.228.4819) (International: 1.802.213-2767). In addition, you may use the CO 

Center or impureto update your contact inforrnebon end/Or change your decision about participation in the 

notrflostion program. If you update your Information to Include a current email address. VNS will send 

information to that address. You wit need the following Victim Identification Number (VIN) '1941741' and 

Personal Identification Number (PIN) '7760' anytime you contact the Call Center and the first time you log on to 

VNS on the Internet. In addition, the first time you leases the VNS Internet site, you will be prompted lo enter 

your last name (or business name) as currently contained in VNS. The name you should enter Is Eisenberg. 
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v ' 

II yOU have addlUonel questions width Involve this matter, please contact the office fisted above. When 

you cell. please provide the ale number located at the top of this letter. Please remember, your participation 

in the notification part of this proven Is voluntary. In order to continue to receive notifications. It is your 

responsibility to keep your conical Intonation current. 

Sincerely. 

Victim Spe6aksi 
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U.S. Depertment of Justice 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
FBI. West Palm Beach 
Suite 600 
505 South Flagler Drive 
West Palm Beech, FL 33401 
Phone: (661) 833-7517 
Fax: (661) 6334870 

1A0) 3C 2CM? 

Re: 

DeerMan 

Your name was referred to the FBI's Victim Assistance Program as being a possible victim of a federal 

crime. We appreciate your assistance and cooperation while we ere Investigating this case. We would like to 

make you aware of the victim services that may be available to you and to answer any questions you may have 

regarding the criminal justice process throughout the InvesSeaton. Our program is part of the FBI's effort to 

ensure the victims are treated with respect and are provided information about their rights under federal law. 

These rights Include notification of the status of the case. The enclosed brochures provide Information about 

the FBI's Victim Assistance Program, resource and Instructions for accessing the Victirn Notification System 

(VNS). VNS is designed to provide you with information recording tee status of your case. 

This case Is currently under Investigation. This can be a lengthy process and we request your 

continued patience while we conduct a thorough investigetion. 

As a crime victim, you have the follovAng rights under 18 United States Code § 3771: (1) The right to 

Co reasonably protected from the accused; (2) The right to reasonable, accurate, end timely notice of any 

public court proceeding, or any parole proceeding, involving the crime or of any release or escape of the 

accused; (3) The right not to be excluded from any such public court proceeding, unless the court, alter 

receiving clear and convincing evidence, determines that testimony by the victim would be materially altered If 

the victim heard Other testimony et that proceeding; (4) The right to be reasonably heard et any public 

proceeding in the district court Involving release, plea, sentencing. or any parole proceeding; (6) The 

reasonable right to confer with the attorney for the Government In the case; (6) The right to full and timely 

reattuton is provided Is law; (7) The right to proceedings tree from unreasonable delay; (6) The right to be 

treated with fairness end with respect for the victIm's regNty and privacy. 

We will make or best efforts to ensure you era sccorded the rights described, Most of these rights 

pertain to events occurring after the snit or Indictment of an Individual for the crime, end it cold become the 

responsibility of the prosecuting United States Attorney's Office to ensure you are accorded those rights. You 

may also seek the advice of e private attorney with respect to these rights. 

The Victim Notification System (VNS) Is designed to provide you with direct information regarding the 

case as it proceeds through the criminal Justice system. You may obtain current information about this matter 

on the Internet at WWW.Notity.USDOJ.GOV or from the VNS Cell Center et 1.666-DOJ-4YOU (1-866.355-

4968) (TDD/TTY: ta366-226.46191 (Intemetionat 1-602.213-2767). In addition, you may use the Call 

Center or Internet to updete your contact Information and/or change your decision about participation in the 

notification program. if you update your Information to include e current email address, VNS will send 

Information to that address. You will need the following Victim Identification Number (VIN) '2074381' end 

Personal Identification Number (PIN) '1816' anytime you contact the Call Center end the first lime you tog or. to 

VNS on the Internet. In addition, the first time you access the VNS Internet site, you will be prompted to enter 

your lest name (or business name) as currently contained in VNS. The name you should enter Is Alpe 
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GOVERNMENT 
WINDT U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Florida 

CASE 
Nop840136CV-MARRA 

EXHIBIT 
NO 6 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 400 
West Palm Beach. FL 33401 
(561) 820-8711 
Facsimile. O6O820.8777 

July 9, 2008 

DA FACSIMILE 
Brad Edwards, Esq. 
The Law Offices or Brad Edwards & Associates, LLC 
2028 Street, Suite 202 
Hollywood, Florida 33020. 

Re: 

Dear Mr. Edwards: 

sleffity Epstein/C va NOTIFICATION OF 
IDENTIFIED VICTIM 

By virtue of this letter, the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District 
of Florida asks that you provide the following notice to your client, OBS wit 

On June 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea 
of guilty to violations ofFlorida Statutes Sections 796.07 (felony solicitation of prostitution) 
and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in prostitution), in the 15th Judicial Circuit in 
and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-009454AXXXMB and 2008-cf-
009381AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve months' imprisonment to be 
followed by an additional six months' imprisonment, followed by twelve months of 
Community Control 1, with conditions of community confinement imposed by the Court. 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to 
defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 
conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 
enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 
rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 
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BRAD EDWARDS, ESQ 
NOTOICATION OF IDENTIFIED VICTIM Ca Vi 
Mix 9, 2008 
PAGE 2 or 2 

had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 
of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 
attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 
Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 
authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 
which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 
the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 
as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 
less." 

Through this letter, this Office hereby provides Notice that your client, CIIIIMIlpWa 
is an individual whom the United States was prepared to name as a victim of an enumerated 
offense. 

Should your client decide to file a claim against Jeffrey Epstein, his attorney, Jack 
Goldberger, asks that you contact him at Atterbury Goldberger and Weiss, 250 Australian 
Avenue South, Suite 1400, West Palm Beach, FL 33401, (561) 659-8300. 

Please understand that neither the U.S. Attorney's Office nor the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation can take part in or otherwise assist in civil litigation; however, ifiyou do file a 
claim under I8 U.S.C. § 2255 and Mr. Epstein denies that your client is a victim of an 
enumerated offense, please provide notice of that denial to the undersigned. 

Please thank your client for all of her assistance during the course of this examination 
and express the heartfelt regards of myself and Special Agents and Richards for 
the health and well-being of Ms. a 

By: 

cc: Jack Goldberger, Esq. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

ASSISTAN .S. AT RNEY 
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Southern District of Florida 
United States Attorney 

OCIVEREXHIBIT NUENT

CASE 
Na0S8073(-CV-MARRA 

OM 
NO. R 7 

Nee 

US. Department of Justice 

500 South Australian Ave., Suite 000 
West Palm Beach. FL 33401 
(5611810-8711 
Facsimile: 

July 9, 2008 

VIA FACSIMILE 
Brad Edwards, Esq. 
The Law Offices of Brad Edwards & Associates, LLC 
2028 Street, Suite 202 
Hollywood, Florida 33020. 

Re: Jeffrey Epstein/Site a NOTIFICATION OF 
IDENTLFIEp VICTIM 

Dear Mr. Edwards: 

By virtue of this letter, the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District 
of Florida asks that you provide the following notice to your client, IMMO 

On June 30, 2008, Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as "Epstein) entered a plea 
of guilty to violations of Florida Statutes Sections 796.07 (felony solicitation of prostitution) 
and 796.03 (procurement of minors to engage in prostitution), in the 15th Judicial Circuit in 
and for Palm Beach County (Case Nos. 2006-cf-009454AXXXMEI and 2008-cf-
009381AXXXMB) and was sentenced to a term of twelve months' imprisonment to be 
followed by an additional six months' imprisonment, followed by twelve months of 
Community Control 1, with conditions of community confinement imposed by the Court. 

In light of the entry of the guilty plea and sentence, the United States has agreed to 
defer federal prosecution in favor of this state plea and sentence, subject to certain 
conditions. 

One such condition to which Epstein has agreed is the following: 

"Any person, who while a minor, was a victim of a violation of an offense 
enumerated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2255, will have the same 
rights to proceed under Section 2255 as she would have had, if Mr. Epstein 
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BRAD EDWARDS, ESQ. 
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had been tried federally and convicted of an enumerated offense. For purposes 
of implementing this paragraph, the United States shall provide Mr. Epstein's 
attorneys with a list of individuals whom it was prepared to name in an 
Indictment as victims of an enumerated offense by Mr. Epstein. Any judicial 
authority interpreting this provision, including any authority determining 
which evidentiary burdens if any a plaintiff must meet, shall consider that it is 
the intent of the parties to place these identified victims in the same position 
as they would have been had Mr. Epstein been convicted at trial. No more; no 
less." 

Through this letter, this Office hereby provides Notice that your client, Salk 
P  is an individual whom the United States was prepared to name as a victim of an 
enumerated offense. 

Should your client decide to tile a claim against Jeffrey Epstein, his attorney, Jack 
Goldberger, asks that you contact him at Atterbury Goldberger and Weiss, 250 Australian 
Avenue South, Suite 1400, West Palm Beach, FL 33401, (561) 659-8300. 

Please understand that neither the U.S. Attorney's Office nor the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation can take part in or otherwise assist in civil litigation; however, if you do file a 
claim under 18 U.S.C. § 2255 and Mr. Epstein denies that your client is a victim of an 
enumerated offense, please provide notice of that denial to the undersigned. 

Please thank your client for all of her assistance during the course of this examination 
and express the heartfelt regards of myself and Special Agents- and Richards for 
the health and well-being of Ms. R` 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

By: 

ASS A U- S. ATTORNEY 

cc: Jack Goldberger, Esq. 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SECOND
 JUDICIAL CIRCUI 

IN AND FOR LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA 

FLORIDA S 
INC. 

CANE 
1 B1517110554

LEAGUE, . ) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) Case Number: 

vs. ) 
) 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ) 

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION, ) 
) 

Defendant. ) 

 ) 

ORDER 

This cause is before the Court on the C
omplaint of the Florida 

Sugar Cane League, Inc. ("League"). The League seeks an order 

requiring a state agency, the Florida
 Department of Environmental 

Regulation ("DER"), to release certain
 documents under its custody 

and control, pursuant to the Florida 
Public Records Act, Chapter 

119, Florida Statutes. The facts in this case are as follows:
 

DER is a Defendant in the case styled 
United States N. South 

Florida Water Management District. et
 al., Case No. 88-1886-CIV-

Hoeveler, United States District Court, Southern District of 

Florida ("U.S. lc SFWMD"). DER, as a Defendant in that case, 

entered into settlement negotiations with the plaintiff as 

represented by the United States 
Department of Justice ("DOJ"). 

During the negotiations, drafts of 
proposed settlement agreements 

and other information relating to th
e settlement proposal were 

made, sent or received by DER to and
 from federal agencies and 

representatives, including DOJ. DER also entered into an agreement 

with DOJ to keep all documents it rec
eived during the settlement 

'negotiations confidential. 

C, 
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On May 21, 1991, the League made a public re
cords request for 

a draft of the Settlement Agreement which
 the Secretary of DER had 

publicly stated as having been received 
by DER. On May 28, 1991, 

DER responded to the League's request by re
fusing to disclose the 

requested document claiming the document wa
s privileged and immune 

to discovery. On May 31, 1991, the League filed t
his action, 

pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. A hearing was 

originally scheduled before this Court f
or June 5, 1991, but DER 

removed the case to federal district cour
t, where it was ultimately 

transferred to the Southern District o
f Florida. The League filed 

a Motion to Quash DER's Notice of Removal
, which motion was argued 

before Judge William Hoeveler on July 10,
 1991, and was granted on 

September 10, 1991. The federal court held that there was 
no 

federal jurisdiction over the matter as 
the League's claim arises 

purely under state law, and Judge Hoevel
er remanded the case back 

to this Court. A hearing was held before this Court on 
September 

16, 1991. Attorneys for the parties appeared a
nd argued their 

respective positions. DOJ also appeared, pursuant to title 28
, 

United States Codes, section 517, to argu
e in support of DER and to 

advise the Court of the United States' ass
erted interest in keeping 

the documents from public disclosure. 
DER asserts that Florida's 

Public Records Act is not applicable in thi
s matter because it has 

been preempted by "federal immunities and
 privileges." DER further 

claims that it has contractually vowed 
to the United States to 

withhold requested documents under the c
onfidentiality agreement 
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into which it entered with DOJ, and tha
t DER is acting as DOJ's 

agent in withholding the documents from 
public disclosure. 

This Court rejects these arguments. Florida's public records 

law is sweeping in its breadth and requ
ires virtually unfettered 

public access to records in the custody o
f state agencies. Unless 

a statutorily provided exemption permit
s nondisclosure of public 

records, Florida law requires that all such
 records in the custody 

of state agencies be open and available f
or public inspection. The 

parties agreed that there is no statutory exem
ption in the Florida 

Public Records Act which would prevent di
sclosure of public records 

received by state agencies during settle
ment negotiations in U.S. 

I. SFWMQ, including the records sought b
y the League in this case. 

DER has cited no applicable statutory exe
mption in the Florida 

Public Records Act, and the judiciary is
 without any authority to 

expand or create an exemption to Flori
da's public records law. 

Wait I. Florida Power & Light Co., 372 So. 2d 420 (Fla. 1979); 

Times Publishing Co. I. City of St. 
Petersburg, 558 So. 2d 487 

(Fla. 2d DCA 1990). 

Principles of federal preemption under t
he Supremacy Clause 

may, in limited circumstances, act to preve
nt application of 

Florida's public records law where the
re is a clear conflict with 

an express requirement of confidentia
lity provided in a federal 

statute. See Cummer I. Pace, 159 So. 2d 679, 68
1-82 (Fla. 1935); 

see generally, pp. 81-82, Florida's Government-in-t
he-Sunshine 

Manual, Office of the Attorney General
 (1991). In this case, 

although DER claims preemption under fede
ral law of privileges and 

3 
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immunities, it has cited no
 specific federal statute wh

ich clearly 

requires that the documents
 in question be kept confid

ential. 

DER also relies on DOJ's 
assertion that the document

s would 

not be "discoverable" fro
m DOJ in the pending case, 

and that 

documents are exempt from 
disclosure by DOJ under FO

IA. Even 

assuming that were true, i
t is irrelevant to the app

lication of 

Florida's public records law to documents in the custody of 

Florida's state agencies. As stated by Judge Hoeveler 
in remanding 

this action: 

Thus, while FOIA may prov
ide an independent cause o

f 

action insofar as the doc
ument in dispute is also in 

the 

custody of a federal agen
cy, i.e., the Department o

f 

Justice, it cannot be said
 to displace and supplant 

a 

state statute directed at state agencies and state 

records. (Hoeveler Order at p. 12.) 

DER's reliance on its conf
identiality agreement with 

DOJ is 

equally misplaced. A state agency cannot barga
in away its Public 

Records Act duties or create 
a "self-exemption" with a 

promise to 

third parties to keep records from disclosure to
 the public. 

Tribune Co. I. Hardee Memor
ial Hospital, Case No. CA-

91-370, Tenth 

Judicial Circuit in and 
for Hardee County, Florida

. See also 

Browning Walton, 351 So. 2d 380 (Fla
. 4th DCA 1977). 

THEREFORE, it is hereby ORD
ERED and ADJUDGED that: 

1. Settlement agreements made 
or received at any time by DE

R 

in connection with U.S. U
. SFWMD are hereby declare

d to be public 

records subject to disclos
ure under the Public Records

 Act, Chapter 

119, Florida Statutes. 

2. The Federal Freedom of In
formation Act, title 5, 

United 

States Code, section 552, 
does not preempt Chapter 11

9, Florida 

4 
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Statutes, to exempt from public disclosure
 public records in the 

custody of Florida state agencies, including D
ER; 

3. DER shall provide access to the League, w
ithin forty-

eight hours of rendition of this Order, t
o inspect and examine any 

and all draft settlement agreements DER 
has withheld from public 

disclosure based on a claim of federal pree
mption; 

4. If DER desires to appeal this Order, DER s
hall prepare 

and deliver to the clerk of this Court, fo
r inclusion in the record 

under seal, at the time it files its not
ice of appeal, all draft 

settlement agreements exchanged with the
 DOJ relating to U.S. I. 

SFWMD which it asserts are exempt from Flori
da's public records law 

based on a claim of federal preemption. 
Such documents shall be 

held under seal pending final dispositio
n of the appeal; and 

5. As the parties have not yet agreed to a st
ipulation as to 

an appropriate award of attorneys' fees, the Court retains 

jurisdiction to determine the award of 
attorneys' fees pursuant to 

section 119.12, Florida Statutes. 

DONE and ORDERED in Chambers at Tal
lahassee, Leon County, 

cpc
Florida, this -  day of September, 1991. 

Copies furnished to 

counsel of record 

2
P. Kevin Davey 
Circuit Court Jud 
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606 So.2d 1267 
17 Fla. L. Weekly D2571 

(Cite as: 606 So.2d 1267) 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION, 

Appellant, 

FLORIDA SUGAR CANE LEAGUE, INC., 

Appellee. 

No. 91-3128. 

District Court of Appeal of Florida, 
First District. 

Oct. 29, 1992. 

*1267 An appeal from the Leon County 

Circuit Court; P. Kevin Davey, Judge. 

Robert G. Gough, Asst. Gen. Counsel, 

Florida Dept. of Environmental Regulation, 

Tallahassee, for appellant. 

Judith S. Kavanaugh, William L. Hyde and 

Richard A. Russell of Peeples, Earl & Blank, 

P.A., Miami, for appellee. 

Barry M. Hartman, Acting Asst. Atty. Gen., 

Dexter W. Lehtinen, U.S. Atty., and Susan 

Hill Ponzoli, Asst. U.S. Any., Miami, Keith E. 

Saxe, David C. Shilton and Ellen J. Durkee, 

Dept. of Justice, Washington, D.C., for amicusi 

U.S. 

PER CURIAM. 

AFFIRMED. Wait I. Florida Power & Light 

Co., 372 So.2d 420 (Fla.1979). 

MINER, ALLEN and KAHN, IL, concur. 

END OF DOCUMENT 
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